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NATIONAL PARTNERSHIP TO PREVENT DRUG
AND ALCOHOL ABUSE

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 1986

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMUTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10 a.m., in room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Dale E. Kildee (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding. Members present: Representa-
tives Kildee, Tauke, and Petri.

Staff present: Sus.tn Wilhelm, subcommittee staff director; S. Jef-
ferson McFarland, legislative counsel; Margaret Kajeckas, clerk;
Carol Lamb, minority legislative associate; and Dan Yeager, minor-ity counsel.

Mr. KILDEE. The Subcommittee on Human Resources convenes
this morning to discuss the circumstances surrounding funding and
subsequent termination of the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention's grant for the National Partnership for Alcoholand Drug Abuse.

The concept for the national partnership grew out of a number
of meetings sponsored by the Office .of Juvenile Justice and Delin-
quency Prevention in late 1984. The partnership received a grant
from OJJDP effective August 1, 1985, with the ambitious mandate
of bringing together people and resources from a number of disci-
plines to address the serious problem of alcohol and drug abuse inour Nation.

Eleven months later, after the expenditure of close to $1 million,
OJJDP announced the suspension and then termination of the
grant. It appeared that few of the grant's objectives had been metin spite of the expenditures of large sums of money.

Juvenile justice funds are extremely limited. That $1 million wasspent with apparently little or no impact on services available for
the children the act was designed to assist is of great concern tothe committee.

It is important to determine the factors contributing to thedemise of a program that was begun with such large expectations.
It is also important to understand what must be done differently
should such an undertaking be attempted again.

The Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act was estab-
lished out of a great concern for the children of our Nation. This
hearing is being held with the intent of ensuring that juvenile jus-tice funds are expended as effectively as possible to benefit chil-
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dren. We are pleased to have with us several witnesses who have
agreed to help us in this learning process.

In this program, we must see that children are served and we
also as people in Government must see that in so doing that we be
careful custodians of the taxpayers' dollars.

It is for that reason that we come together this morning to see
why this happened and what can be done to prevent similar things
occurring in the future.

I call upon now the ranking minority or Republican member of
the committee, Mr. Tauke of Iowa.

Mr. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would like to suggest that minority wouldn't long be applicable,

but I am not certain that that is a likely scenario.
I do want to note, Mr. Chairman, that this is probably the last

hearing that this subcommittee will hold during the current Con-
gress, and I have enjoyed very much the opportunity to serve on
this subcommittee and to work with you and your staff.

It has been a great pleasure for us. We very much enjoyed all of
the courtesies that you have extended, and I hope that in the next
Congress we will both be here again and will be able to work to-
gether on these issues that are of such concern.

Mr. KILDEE. God and the voters will determine that.
Mr. TAUKE. And the causes that we both share.
Mr. Chairman, I also want to express appreciation this morning

to Mr. Speirs and to the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention for the cooperation that they have extended to this sub-
committee in the investigation of this particular issue and on other
matters.

We very much appreciate the good working relationship that we
have had with you and your office, Mr. Speirs. I recognize that this
hearing is brought about by an unfortunate set of circumstances
that led to the termination of the grant with the National Partner-
ship to Prevent Alcohol and Drug Abuse. I hope that while this
grant has been terminated that we are not in any way diminishing
our desire to achieve the goals and objectives of the grant, essen-
tially to prevent alcohol and drug abuse among youth.

Although the issue has been hyped a little bit and probably sub-
jected to a little bit of political grandstanding over the last couple
of months, that should in no way diminish the intensity of our ef-
forts to prevent alcohol and drug abuse among youth, I hope that
the problems which have arisen relating to this grant do not dimin-
ish our desire to meet that objective.

We should learn from the problems associated with this grant
and do all that we can to guard against similar situations develop-
ing in the future.

If that requires additional oversight on the part of this subcom-
mittee, we should recognize that. If it requires changes in legisla-
tion, obviously we will have to deal with that. It may just mean
that there needs to be some change at the administrative level.

In any event, I look forward to the testimony today. I hope it
helps us get a better handle on this issue and helps us make cer-
tain that the program works even better on behalf of the young
people of our Nation in the years ahead.

Thank you.
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Tom.
Our first witness is Verne L. Speirs, the Acting Administrator of

the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention. We look
forward to working with you on this issue and all issues affecting
children as they are administored by your agency.

Thank you for your appearance. If you wish to have people ac-
company you, that is all right with us.

STATEMENT OF VERNE L. SPEIRS, ACTING ADMINISTRATOR,
OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVEN-
TION, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Mr. SPEIRS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman and thank you, Mr.
Tauke. Thank you for inviting me to testify before the subcommit-
tee today concerning the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquen-
cy Prevention's grant to the National Partnership to Prevent Alco-
hol and Drug Abuse among youth.

As you know, the Partnership was launched in October 1985 with
a $1 million OJJDP grant amid high expectations that it would
foster increased public and private sector involvement in combat-
ing the problem of substance abuse by our Nation's youth.

Unfortunately, these expectations were never realized. Therefore,
soon after I became Acting OJJDP Administrator, I suspended fur-
ther funding for the partnership, and later, based on the fmdings
of a subsequent program review, decided to terminate the program
activities and not fund the program past July 1, 1986, the end of
the grant period.

I have attached to my testimony a chronology of majar events
concerning OJJDP's monitoring of the partners-hip and our actions
not to continue funding, so I will not take up the subcommittee's
time this morning by detailing these events.

I would like to say before responding to questions that you may
have, that the final decision not to continue funding the partner-
ship should not be construed to be a reflection on the level of com-
mitment of the partnership staff. I understand the hardship this
decision caused partnership employees. It was unfortunate that it
was necessary to take this action.

We believe the employees conducted themselves in a professional
manner throughout the life of the program, particularly during the
difficult days of program closeout.

For a variety of reasons, however, the program's potential was
never achieved.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will be pleased to respond to any
questions that you may have.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much for your testimony, Verne.
Let me start with these questions. Federal law prohibits a Feder-

al agency from establishing a nonprofit corporation without specif-
ic statutory authorization.

In assisting with the national partnership organizing activities,
did OJJDP stay within the bounds of this law, in your opinion?

Mr. SPEIRS. The answer that I have is yes, that they stayed
within the bounds as based upon the review of the advice given by
the general counsel.
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Mr. KILDEE. I guess we have to ask, because we are trying to
work together to see how we can continue to serve these young
people. We must see whether the spirit of the law was kept in some
of the apparent assistance which the national partnership received
in those early days of organization.

Do you feel that the spirit of the law was kept?
Mr. SPEIRS. I would have to address you this way from my knowl-

edge, or I should say my lack of knowledge, of what went on at
that time, Mr. Kildee. I don't believe I could pass a value judgment
on that because I was not there. I did not take any part in that.

Mr. KILDEE. I guess what we will try to ferret out in this hearing
and subsequent investigation, too, to see whether there was such
a close relationship betweei: *:,- national partnership and the
OJJDP that it could be accusetZ i.eing cozyI use that word; that
is a rather subjective wordwhett.vv the relationship was too close.

Let me ask you this in conjuncti on with that: Did the OJJDP fi-
nancially support the preparation of the national partnership's
grant application?

Mr. SPEIRS. The answer is no. I think you are referring to the
situation of the writing of the actual grant application, and money
to pay for that was from a private source paid to a consultant, who
wrote that application.

Mr. KILDEE. What was that private source?
Mr. SPEMS. I believe it was from a brewery company. I can get

the exact name or trace that back for you if you would like.
[The information is included in the appendix.]
Mr. KILDEE. They were at that time accepting then private con-

tributions?
Mr. SPEIRS. Well, to say accepting, I am not sure what that delin-

eates. I know that that money was available or at least was made
available to pay for that particular activity, but it was not OJJDP's
funds that went to pay for the service of writing the application.

Mr. KILDEE. In reviewing the national partnership's application
for assistance, did the Office use peer reviewers with expertise in
the alcohol and drug abuse prevention field, did they clearly fmd
that the application had outstanding merit, and were any of the
application review criteria changed? I ask this because when you
do award something on a noncompetitive basis, there are certain
criteria that must be followed, and one is that it be reviewed by a
peer review panel.

Can you tell us whether that took place in accordance with the
law?

Mr. SPEMS. From what I understand there was a peer review
process. There was an initial panel. Two individuals on that panel
either removed themselves or were disqualified because of an ap-
parent conflict of interest, that conflict being that they were in-
volved in the early stages of the meetings or the early formation of
the concept of the Partnership. So they disqualified themselves or
were asked to leave.

Two new individuals were put in and there was a peer review
that was done by that panel.

Mr. KILDEE. NTho asked them to leave, the first two?
Mr. &EMS. I think the program manager who was involved in

handling the process or one of the staff members that was handling

8
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the process. I know that Mr. Frank Porpotage asked, I believe, one
of the peer reviewers to remove herself, and I think one of the
second peer review panel members removed themselves.

Mr. KILDEE. Who was the program manager?
Mr. SPEIRS. It was the staff person working to get the peer

review process done, Mr. Porpotage.
Mr. KILDEE. To whom did he report?
Mr. SPEIRS. At that time, his chain of command was through Mr.

Donahue, but he was reporting directly to the Administrator.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you.
Mr. Tauke.
Mr. TAUKE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Who would you say initiated this effort to establish the national

partnership?
Mr. SPEIRS. Who initiated the effort?
Mr. TAUKE. Yes.
Mr. SPEIRS. From my understanding, the initiation or the force

behind it was the former Deputy Administrator of the office.
Mr. TAUKE. Do you have any feeling as to why there was the

belief that it was necessary to establish a new organization?
Mr. SPEIRS. My impression is this: that the concept where you

are taking such diverse groups, the business community, concerned
citizens, drug and alcohol people, and trying to bring them together
on such a large-scale basis and trying to establish a national voice
to combat the alcohol and drug abuse problem, it was the thought
that there was a need to have a unique entit- that could handle
that level of program direction and policy formulation.

Mr. TAUKE. SO the idea, from your perspective, ofiginated within
OJJDP? They didn't think there was another appropriate group to
take on this task, so it served as a catalyst in crder to establish
what would hopefully be a national group that could tackle this
challenge?

Mr. SPEIRS. I think that is a fair characterization.
Mr. TAUKE. You indicated that the board was made up of four

groups. I am not sure I can identify the four groups.
Mr. SPEIRS. If you are talking about the four general areas that

the groups were drawn from--
Mr. TAUKE. Yes.
Mr. SPEIRS. One was the business community, you had a commu-

nity from the media, you had private sector business and then you
had the professionals involved in drug and alcohol abuse, those
people involved in the actual business of treatment or prevention.

Mr. TAUKE. The business community, the media---
Mr. SPEIRS. Private citizens
Mr. TAUKE. Private citizens--
Mr. SPEIRS. And professionals in the field.
Mr. TAUKE. What kind of legal responsibility did the board have

for the operation of the national partnership?
Mr. SPEIRS. I cannot answer that. I do not know.
Mr. TAUKE. I presume they adopted some kind of charter or

bylaws?
Mr. SPEIRS. The partnership was a duly incorporated entity and

had a status all of its own. From a management perspective or
from an organizational perspective, there was a broad-based mem-
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bership group or this broad-based input. Then you had a subse-
quent step where the membership would take input or give input
to a coordinating committee and they would establish policy and
gain implementation consensus. Then you went from there to a
board of trustees that took direction from this coordinating com-
mittee and from there it filtered down into the organization.

Mr. TAUKE. It seems to me part of our effort here should be
trying to determine who was responsible for this. I serve on a
couple of boards. I assume when I serve on those boards that I take
some responsibility for the organization. In this ease, it would
appear as ifif I perceive the facts correctlyit would appear as if
nobody was taking responsibility for the operation of this organiza-
tion, and it prompts me to ask what happened to the board of
trustees? Have they simply washed their hands ofany responsibil-
ity for the operation of the organization and the expenditure of
funds?

Mr. SPEIRS. I don't know. No one has come to me to ask about
the project, to mention salvaging the project or taking the concept
in any other direction.

Mr. TAUKE. Suppose it were private funds and that I and Mr.
Kildee and you, have maybe a lot of money and decided to transfer
some to this organization to carry out a task. I would assume that
if this kind of thing had occurred that maybe the board of trustees
hadn't done what it was supposed to do, and there might be at
least a review of the legal responsibility of the board of trustees for
the actions of the partnership.

Has your office--
Mr. SPEIRS. We have not.
MT. KILDEE. Would you yield?
MT. TAUKE. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. Is there any possibility that you are aware of or any

attempt that you are aware of trying to recover any of the moneythat was
Mr. TAUKE. That was the next question.
Mr. SPEIRS. What we have done was based on our financial

review. And to answer your question shortly, no, we have not
taken steps or made that as an option. What we have done, since I
came on board, was to go in and look at the books. At that time
$764,000 approximately was expended or obligated and that was
gone.

At the rate of spending that continued within the final 2 months,
you virtually had all the money expended. As far as looking to the
expenditures or looking to what the money had gone for, within
certain exceptions, the expenditures were allowable costs per the
terms and conditions of the grant and other OMB circulars and
regulations. So we could not go back and sayas far as the way
the money was expended for the programwe could not reach in
and say this was wrong. There where some exceptions that we
dealt with.

Mr. TAUKE. About $80,000 in exceptions?
Mr. SPEIRS. Approximately $81,000 and we have looked at those

and negotiated them out and it is down to quite an amount less
than that.

Mr. TAUKE. What do you mean negotiated out?

1 0
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Mr. SPEIRS. At first blush when we sent the comtroller's staff into look at the expenditures, there were some areas that we ques-
tioned on cost and when they came back with explanations or
when the Partnership took whatever remedial action was neces-
sary, the bottom line was less than $81,000.

Mr. TAUKE. So if the money is misspent outside of the context of
the grant, let's say, what happens then? Is there any way to recov-er that money?

Mr. SPEIRS. When you are dealing with a grant either it is viableand has a budget. If there is a misexpenditure, you disallow that
cost, don't let them draw down or recover the money. In this case,
the balance within the last week, there is $34,000 or $35,000 left
out of the original $1 million.

Mr. TAUKE. You found this situation when you came aboard.
What was going on before you came aboard?

Mr. SPEIRS. I cannot answer that because I don't know. I wasn'tthere.
Mr. TAUKE. Did it just come to you out of the blue, or when you

came aboard did somebody say, "Hey, we have been looking at thisand there is a problem here?"
Mr. SPEIRS. Basically, I was asked to take the office. One of the

problems that I was told that I was going to have to step in andhandle was the partnership, from several voices, such as the Comp-
troller's Office, and general counsel. It was indicated that I neededto look at this and very quickly get into a program review and lookat the project.

At that time the administrator was gone and I stepped in.
Mr. TAUKE. Is this considered a contract?
Mr. SPEIRS. This is a grant. There is a formal grant document

signed with the Government.
Mr. TAUKE. And somebody signed it on behalf of the nationalpartnership?
Mr. SPEIRS. Yes.
Mr. TAUKE. Who did?
Mr. SPEIRS. Mr. Rex Thompkins.
Mr. TAUKE. What was his role?
Mr. SPEIRS. He was president of the partnership.
Mr. TAUKE. I presume that he on behalf of the partnership takes

on certain obligations, contractual obligations?
Mr. SPEIRS. The obligations spelled forth in the grant plus anyspecial conditions, yes.
Mr. TAUKE. I believe in other areas of Government we would bebeating up on people to, first of all, pinpoint responsibility, andsecond, to try to recover the money. I understand the problem that

you have with the recovering of the money. I guess I still go backto the board of trustees. It seems to me that the board of trusteesdid not carry out their fiduciary responsibilities to the organizationand therefore have some responsibility for the failure of the organi-zation to meet its contractual obligations. I am not sure this is afair question, you can tell me if it isn't, but why has no consider-ation been given to checking that out? Is that just not the policy ofGovernment?
Mr. SPEIRS. I can't say it is not the policy of OJJDP. I don't think

the track we were following was back to the board of trustees. We

11
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were looking to the officers of the corporation or to the entity that
received the grant. And that was the partnership, a legally consti-
tuted not-for-profit organization that was the recipient of the grant.

To make that connection back to the board of trustees, at this
point would not be appropriate, in my judgment.

Mr. TAUHE. Let me just observe, Mr. Chairman, I am not sure
that I will accomplish anything by continuing to hammer this to
death, but we do set a fairly bad precedent if we suggest that there
is kind of an unknown entity out there that does have responsibil-
ity, but the people who run it don't have the responsibility.

In this case, the people who run the entity, it seems to me, were
those members of the board of trustees. It appears as if there was a
terrible leadership problem and management problem within the
national partnership. If there is a leadership and management
problem, that is the responsibility of the board.

Now, the board, it occurs to me understood that they were taking
money from the Government in order to carry out certain responsi-
bilities, and if they are unable to fulfill those responsibilities, they
have two choices: They ought to either, change the management so
they can; or, B, stop the expenditure of the money and send it back
to the Government. I am not sure that in this instance what all of
the legal possibilities might be, but I think that somewhere along
the line we should send signals to those who have responsibility,
whether they be board members of a nonprofit or a profit organiza-
tion that they do have some obligation when they receive Federal
funds to see that those funds are expended appropriately.

So I guess as you carry on with the activities of the OJJDP, that
I hope that that is reviewed. I suppose I hope, too, that you take a
look at what the potential responsibility of the board in this case
might be. Somebody should rattle their cage a little bit is the
bottom line.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you.
In going over the peer review panel worksheets, we notice that

one of the peer reviewers in evaluating this group on organization-
al capability, which in retrospect seems to have been somewhat de-
ficient, before the grant was given, while doing the peer review, out
of 15 points, gave 5 points.

Now, that isI am a teacher. That would be flunking. Is that
considered flunking in your agency?

Mr. SPEIRS. I can't tell youI will say that that was a very low
score on that capability. I don't know what the scale was that they
were using, but it was obviously a very low score.

Mr. KILDEE. Total points were 15; they got 5. That would be
about one-third. In my Latin classes I would have advised the stu-
dent to take another course. I recognize, Verne, that you came in
after the fact and you were not involvedwe may want to be call-
ing other witnesses later on to find out what was happening at the
time this was given.

I want to go back to what I consider really a moral obligation
that goes beyond a legal obligation; that is, to be really careful cus-
todians of taxpayer dollars. I think it is a real moral obligation and
I think that those that we bring into Government should have that
sense of morality, which goes beyond the sense of legality.

12
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This certainly is in no way direct or indirect criticism of you, be-
cause I am aware of the chrGnology here.

While I have the chance, I would like to say we in Government
have an obligation to morally spend the taxpayers' dollars. I think
that is a very important thing to do.

I last year returned $47,000 to the Treasury which I did not need
to spend. At all times, but particularly in these times of very, very
high deficits we should try to have that moral attitude, and again
that is not directed at you because I know very well the chronology
of these events here.

How extensively did the OJJDP use ASPEN Systems to perform
tasks and incur costs associated with the national partnership?

Mr. SPEIRS. ASPEN Systems, Mr. Kildee, was involved earlier in
the formative and organizational activities of the partnership, pro-
viding technical assistance dating back into May 1984, and up until
the time of the grant award, possibly some activities afterwards.

It was responsible for organization of meetings, putting on the
meetings, the four constituency groups that we talked about, it
worked with those groups and worked with the organization of the
meeting in Willisrnsburg, which seems to be the hallmark of the
formation of the partnership and it worked until after the actual
awarding of the grant.

Most of its work was from a technical assistance aspect.
Mr. KILDEE. Would you provide us a record of the details of all

ASPEN Systems tasks and costs relating to the national partner-
ship, beginning with the January 1985 meeting in Williamsburg?

Let me ask you this question, too. The award to the national
partnership was made October 1. It was backdated to August 1 and
was terminated on July 1 of the following year.

Let me ask, first, why was it backdated and is that commonly
done in awarding grants like this?

Mr. SPEIRS. In this particular case, the reason for backdating, ap-
parently was that there were some preagreed-upon costs. Basically,
there were four consultants who eventually became senior vice
presidents in the organizational structure and there were some
costs related to those individuals. The preagreement was that they
would go back to August 1 to cover some of those costs.

I can't say it is common; I have seen it done, where there are
allowable expenditures that are directly related to the project.
That can be covered if the backdating takes place.

Mr. KILDEE. I would say that whenever one does predate some-
thing that one should be well prepared to give compelling reasons
why such predating takes place, because that is, I would say, not
considered standard operating procedure in dealing again with the
taxpayers' dollars.

In conjunction with a question Mr. Tauke asked earlier, of the $1
million, he asked what was it spent for, and it was for, you replied,
various types of expenses.

Do you have any breakdown as to the type of expenses? Was it
for travel? For meals? For entertainment? Do you have any break-
down available for the committee as to how those expenses oc-
curred?

Mr. SPEIRS. I can give you a breakdown as of the end of June. We
are still calculating or the bookkeepers are calculating to the end

13
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of the grant period because there are minor things that need to be
cleaned up. As of the end of June, personnel, right at $285,000;
fringe benefits, $47,000; travel, $40,000; equipment, $13,000; sup-
plies, $22,000; consulting and contractual fees, almost $190,000;
other expensesand I am not sure what all that includesabout
$141,000.

Mr. KILDEE. Other expenses, $141,000?
Mr. SPURS. Yes, and taxes, interest, and insurance, et cetera,

$10,000 plus, with a total figure of right at almost $750,000.
Mr. KILDEE. The other expenses seems to be the bigger item?
Mr. SPEIRS. Well, outside of your personnel and your consultant,

because your personnel is $284,000 and your consultant is $188,000
for a total of $473,000.

Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Tauke.
Mr. TAUKE. In testimony Mr. Keker is offering on the next panel,

he suggests that part of the problem with this operation was that
the efforts to recruit key, full-time staff came to a standstill pre-
sumably at the request of the prospective chairman that was
coming aboard any day.

Who was selecting the chairman of the board of this operation?
Mr. SPEIRS. I believe that the board of trustees had the final vote

on who was going to be chairmanthe decision had to go through
the board of trustees.

Mr. TAUKE. But who was really out recruiting the chairman?
Mr. SPEIRS. The only person I knew of involved with that was a

gentleman by the name of Mr. Baldwin, who was interim chairman
of the board of trustees. That is the only person I talked to who
talked about a full-time chairman.

Mr. TAUKE. As I read some of the other testimony, one gets the
impression that the board was brought together with the assump-
tion that maybe this was an honorary-type operation, that the
OJJDP was going to take over the responsibility of setting this up
and ensuring that there was management for the national partner-ship.

Is there any truth to that perspective?
Mr. SPEIRS. I can't say that OJJDP was going to step in and

manage the program. I can say that was not an appropriate func-
tion and I don't see that in documents that I have.

Mr. TAUKE. There was apparently some fairly famous and well-
known American who was being recruited for this position of pro-
spective chairman. I get the impression that that person was being
recruited by the administration, not by the board of trustees of this
organization.

Mr. SPEIRS. The only time this individual was mentioned was
when I came on in June. My question was where are they and the
indication was that this individual had made the decision not to be
associated with the partnership.

Mr. TAUKE. What is the OJJDP doing giving a grant to an orga-
nization that has no chairman of the board and no president?

Mr. SPEIRS. I think as far as the structure, OJJDP thought it wasgoing to be in place. They had a president of the partnership. They
had the formal organization as put together by the partnership.

When you get into the board of trustees or the coordinating com-
mittee, I don't know that that was focused on. I think the focus

14
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was on the partnership as an entity and whether they could re-
ceive the grant moneys. The action was based on that act.

Mr. TAUKE. Mr. Keker says that the instructions to delay the re-
cruitment of full-time staff, it was his impression, were initiated or
at a minimum concurred in by the OJJDP. Is that true?

Mr. SPEIRS. There was a point in time when the previous admin-
istrator did instruct the organization not to go ahead and recruit or
move forward and the basis for that instruction was an analysis of
the moneys expended at that time.

Almost one-half of the moneys were expended. There was no im-
plementation or operation plan. The office was, I would say, this is
an understatement, was extremely concerned about the lack of
progress, the lack of implementation, the lack of attention to the
detail of what had to be accomplished in the grant and did inform
them to focus their energies and efforts in putting together an im-
plementation plan. This instruction was given so they could move
from the concept phase into making a functional organization.
That was in February, and they were directed to take on the task
of showing how they could move the project forward.

Mr. TAUKE. I recognize you weren't involved at the time, but
what went wrong? I mean, what happened? Where do we put our
finger?

Mr. SPEIRS. From my involvement, I think you had a concept,
you had an idea that had merit, but where it breaks, in my estima-
tion, from looking at the material, it was taldng the concept and
what was written and turning it into an organization that could
move forward. It broke. It tore. That transition never happened.

Mr. TAUKE. And what was the reason? What was the reason that
the concept didn't turn into reality? Because no one assumed re-
sponsibility, that is why.

I don't know who was supposed to assume responsibility, whether
it was the granting agency or the recipient of the grant, but it
seems to me that in part the granting agency had responsibility to
ensure that there was someone responsible on the other end.

Mr. SPEIRS. There are several areas. The leadership or lack of ef-
fective leadership or control of the leadership. There was a vacancy
in the presidency. There was a style of management, I think, where
management, as I read the documents and go back, starting in the
months of January and February, lacked a sense of direction. A
lack of solid, forceful authority within the organization, directing
the daily operation.

I think the staff picked that up, that lack of direction, and our
staff sensed it from their visits. The record is replete with staff
visits starting, say, in January or February. There were a number
of visits, the Comptroller's Office going in, project managers going
in and looking at what was happening.

There is an issue of taldng an organization and looking at the
grant document and saying, "Does the organization understand
what they have to do to take the money, take the concept and then
move forward?"

In some of the material I have received, an understanding of
what was required by the grant was not there, I think., this lack
was a very, very big issue.
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The problem was in taking the implementation plan, as in any
business, taking a strategy to move to where you want to go to ac-
complish your goals and objectives. That strategy was not in place
until the office stopped the effort, and directed them to write the
implementation strategy and put that in line.

A special condition in the grant indicated that that implementa-
tion plan had to be approved by January 10, 1986. It was not sub-
mitted to the office until, I think, March 14 and finally passed by
their board of trustees sometime in April.

So you are looking from January to April, actually before that,
that you had no implementation plan to take the concept and it
into functional reality.

Mr. TAUKE. What do we learn from this? How do we prevent this
from happening in the future? Do we need new guidelines?

Mr. SPEIRS. I have to tell you how I would approach it, if it were
not to happen again.

One, I would maybe look at a competitive process in selecting a
grantee. Two, I think I would look to an organization that is up
and on line and has some kind of track record.

I would look for subject matter experts not only in the field that
I was trying to impact, but also people in grants management and
the area of handling the money or have some concept of it.

I think I would have maybe put my managers on sooner to deal
with the grantee. I don't think I would use a grant, but I would
work with a cooperative agreement which would give me as much
say and as much control in that program as the redlpient of the
money and I would manage the daylights out of it.

MT. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDF Pptting again back to the predating of the award to

August 1, i awarded October 10. It would seem that since the
grant was prt., ,ed that there must have been assurances that the
grant was coming.

Do you know who gave the assurances to whom?
Mr. SPEIRS. I do not.
Mr. KILDEE. Because they had incurred some expenses and then

those expenses were covered by the grant which as made in Octo-
ber. It would seem that they did not have a printing press to make
money, that they must have had some assurances that the money
was going to come and it was OK then to spend this money and
that the expenditure would be covered then by the grant when it
came.

It would seem that someone had to give assurances to someone
else. What I would like to find out as chairman of the committee
and Mr. Tauke, I am sure as the ranking minority member, is who
gave the assurances to whom?

Mr. Snms. I do not know who was in conversation or what com-
munication channel was used, nor what all the expenses were. I
just don't have that knowledge.

Mr. TAUKE. Can you get it for us?
Mr. SPEMS. I will certainly try.
Mr. KILDEE. I think that is a very essential thing. We are trying

to do two things here. We are trying to see what went wrong, and
we are going to be hard pressed to recover any of this money, I am
sure. We also want to see what we can do in our oversight responsi-

1 CZ
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bility as members of this committee, to see that that does not
happen again in the future. Mr. Tauke and I have to go to the ap-
propriations committee regularly and urge them to spend money
for good programs to srzve the youth of this Nation. It makes our
job difficult when they can point out, as they must and as they
should, that here was a million dollars frittered away, money that
was sent to us by the taxpayers of this country, with the expecta-
tion that we would at least try to spend that money prudently and
carefully.

And really I can't see where it touched one young person in this
country, not one young person.

Congress has made a massive commitment to put together pro-
grams right now in the area of drug abuse. This type of action
makes that job really very difficult. With the criteria you have
enunciated as to how you would have handled this thing, I wish
that you had been there when this was being born.

Mr. SPEIRS. Mr. Kildee, so do I, because I wouldn't be here today.
Mr. K1LDEE. That would have been very nice for all of us, for the

taxpayers and for the kids of this country, too.
Would you also provide for the recordwe will keep the record

open for two additional weeksinformation such as resumes show-
ing that each of the peer reviewers was an expert in the drug and
alcohol abuse field?

Mr. SPEIRS. I would be glad to do that.
[Information in appendix.]
Mr. KILDEE. That is one of the criteria that the Congress has set

for noncompetitive grants.
Mr. SPEIRS. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. Also, could you provide information which demon-

strates how the peer review resulted in the finding that the propos-
al was of outstanding merit. In other words, to give a grant that is
not based upon a competitive process, then there has to be the find-
ing by the peer review panel that the proposal is of outstanding
merit.

If you could give us the background of the peer reviewers and
something that would demonstrate how those peer reviewers con-
cluded that the proposal was of outstanding merit.

Mr. SPEIRS. I would be glad to provide that.
Mr. K1LDEE. You are really dealing with programs that are ex-

tremely important and you are dealing with dollars that are very
important. I don't have any further questions.

Mr. TAUKE. Would the gentleman yield for one question?
Mr. KILDEE. Certainly.
Mr. TAUKE. Do you have copies in your files of the minutes of the

board of trustees of the National Partnership?
Mr. SPEIRS. I have a draft copy of a meeting held on April 14. I

believe there are some other minutes.
Mr. TAUKE. You could perhaps include in your submission to the

subcommittee any documents that would give us an indication of
the workings of the board of trustees, specifically minutes of their
meetings. That would be helpful to us for our files. [Minutes re-
tained in subcommittee files.]

Mr. KILDEE. There is, as we well know, a deep interest now in
the whole field of drug abuse. We know that the appropriations
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committee as we sit here right now is trying to pull money from
existing programs, to fund this new drug program without really
impacting upon the deficit. Are you aware of any efforts within the
administration and perhaps more specifically within the Justice
Department to reach into OJJDP to find dollars to fund this new
approach to drug abuse in this country?

Mr. SPEIRS. What has happened in the last approximately 6
weeks or so, is that the whole Office of Justice Programs, which
has several components, has been asked to look at the programs,
currently addressing the drug problem, programs that could possi-
bly be used in 1987 to address that issue, and what types of possible
redirection we could take with existing programs to have them re-
emphasize or redirect some of their efforts in prevention, treat-
ment, et cetera.

Mr. KILDEE. I think we will be asking more questions as this de-
velops. I am very concerned that in funding this new concern of
the Congress and the administration that we don't as a matter of
fact defund other programs in order to take care of this new drug
program.

I look forward to working with you this remaining session of
Congress and God and the voters willing in the next session of Con-
gress to help do two things.

First of all, to serve the needs of the young people of this Nation,
and to in so doing, be careful custodians of taxpayer dollars. I
think those two things have to always be in front of us and one
helps the other.

So I look forward to working with you on that and I appreciate
your appearance this morning and your cooperation with the com-
mittee.

Mr. SPEIRS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Mr. Tauke.
Mr. TAUKE. Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Verne L. Speirs follows:]

18
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF VERNE L. SPEIRS, ACTING ADMINISTRATOR, OFFICE OF
JUVENILE JUSTICE AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for inviting me to testify before

the Subcommittee this morning concerning the Office of Juvenile

Justice and Delinquency Prevention's grant to the National

Partnership to Prevent Alcohol and Drug Abuse Poong Youth.

As you know, the Partnership was established in October 1985

with a $1 million OJJDP grant amid high expectations that it

would foster increased public and private sector involvement in

combatting the problem of substance abuse by our Nation's young

people. Unfortunately, these expectations were never realized.

Therefore, soon after I became Acting OJJDP Administrator, I

suspended further funding for the Partnership, and later, based

on the findings of a subsequent program review, terminated the

grant.

I have attached to my testimony a chronology of major events

and OJJDP's monitoring of the Partnership grant. While I am

prepared this morning to give the Subcommittee as full an

accounting as possible of OJJDP's involvement with the

Partnership, I would ask you to keep in mind that it was not

until June 9, 1986, when I was named Acting OJJDP Administrator,

that I first became involved in activities regarding the

Partnership. Therefore, in preparing information for the

Subcommittee about events up to that time, I have based my

statements on the grant file records and my subsequent

involvement in decisions concerning the Partnership.
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The concept of a National Partnership emanated from the

belief that the Federal government could play a significant and

appropriate role in substance abuse'prevention by providing a

forum for citizens and private sector organizations to discuss

the problem and by coordinating the activities of organizations

working to combat this problem. To help the various

organizations meet and share resources and ideas, 0,7,70P hosted a

series of meetings during 1984 and 1985 attended by

representativeo from businesses, the media, citizens groups.

Federal, state and local governments, and professionals such as

drug and alcohol counselors, physicians, educators, and lawyers.

These meetings led to the formation of the National Partnership

to Prevent Alcohol and Drug Abuse Among Youth as a private,

nonprofit corporation.

The goals of the National Partnership were as follows:

1. To promote the ri-ht of young people to grow up healthy.

2. To prevent self-initiated early experimentation with

alcohol and drugs.

3. To increase the awareness and availability of alcohol

and drug treatment services for youth.

4. To increase the availability of promising and effective

approaches to alcohol and drug problems.

5. To promote social disapproval of drunkenness.

6. To eliminate use of illegal drugs.

7. To eliminate all use of alcohol by underage youth out-

side of parental supervision and liturgical functions.

8. To eliminate nonmedical use of prescription drugs by

youth.
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The Partnership leadership was vested in a Board of Trustees

comprised of approximately 50 representatives of the four

membership groups. The Board was responsible for establishing

policy objectives and implementation strategies and for

providing overall leadership. A separate Coordinating Committee

was responsible for recommending policy objectives to be

established by the Board. In addition, the Partrarship's

headquarters office was staffed by a president and four

vice-presidents heading the main divisions of the

Partnership--Communications, Development/Operations, Programs,

and State and Local Partnerships. I have attached to my

statement a chart showing the organization of the Partnership

management.

The highest priority of the National Partnership was to

establish state and local partnerships. The original objective

of the National Partnership was to establish local partnerships

in at least 20 states and 100 "anchor cities" by the end of the

program's first rear. This target later was reduced to the

development of 34 to 60 state and local partnerships.

The other core function of the Partnership was to be the

review, selection, and replication of model programs which could

be implemented in jurisdictions across the country. The Program

branch had three essential functions: identify drug and alcohol

prevention projects worthy of replication; oversee implementa-

tion of selected projects; and arrange for technical assistance

to members seeking to implement or improve projects of their

own. By the end of its first year of funding, the Partnership
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was to have selected between 10 and 15 drug and alcohol

prevention projects for implementation in conjunction with local

partnerships.

In addition, the Partnership was to manage an awareness

campaign designed to inform the public about the causes of and

possible solutions to the problem of alcohol and drug abuse as

well as educational programs for use by local partnerships in

schools and civic forums.

To ensure adequate resources to begin this process of

creating public and private partnerships and operate its other

programs, the Partnership was awarded a $1 million OJJDP grant

on October 10, 1986, for a one-year period. The National

Partnership was expected raise an additional $1.5 million from

private sources during its first year to continue the

Partnership and supplement Federal funding.

OJJDP believed the Partnership would be able to achieve its

stated objectives because of the commitment at the highest

levels of government and the private sector and the expertise of

project staff. After almort three months of operation, however,

a site visit by OJJDP staff indicated that, while progress had

been made in hiring staff and establishing operational

procedures, the main work of the Partnership--developing

programs and state and local partnerships and private

fund-raising--had not gotten underway as quickly as had been

stated in the time and task statement included in the grant

application. The Partnership's own first progress report to

OJJDP confirmed these findings. In addition, the Partnership
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was.experiencing personnel problems between its board and its

president and a chairman had never been appOinted. Eventually,

on January 27, 1986, an interim chairman was appointed.

Further site visits were made by OJJOP staff in an attempt

to support the program and help the Partnership move towards its

program goals. During these site visits, OJJOP staff briefed

Partnership employees on Federal policies and procedures

concerning the administration of a Federal grant and discussed

with Partnership staff the approach, components, products,

personnel resources, and time frames to be contained in the

required project implementation plan which had not yet been

completed. The implementation plan was required as a special

condition appended to the grant award by OJJOP and was to have

been submitted to OJJOP by January 10, 1986. These meetings

follow the general procedures OJJOP employs when working with a

new grantee with no proven track record of grant management.

However, as the Partnership fell further and further behind

in making progress with the program, and after learning that the

Partnership had already obligated almost half of its grant

award, the OJJOP Administrator imposed a limited freeze on grant

funds on February 28, 1986, until such time as the Partnership

submitted the required implementation plan which was then six

weeks late. The freeze curtailed all expenditures by the

grantee except for salaries and fringe benefits for Partnership

employees. A few weeks later, on March 14, 1986, the

Partnership president resigned.
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In its second progress report submitted in April 1986, the

Partnership was able to report progress on a number of tasks,

including the establishment of the first local partnership--in

Mobile, Alabama--and the completion of its implementation plan,

which because of the above-mentioned delays, included a revised

budget and time and task statement. Fourteen other sites were

in the preliminary stages of partnership development.

In May, however, OJJDP staff became concerned about a number

of expenditures made by the Partnership and the OJJDP

Administrator directed that a limited financial audit be

conducted. The financial review was conducted on May 28, 1986,

and two days later the Partnership's acting president was

notified of the findings and the necessary corrective action.

For example, we found that proper records were not being kept on

the bills submitted by senior consultants, that the Partnership

had no viable policy concerning travel by staff, and that there

was no written policy concerning the use of credit cards issued

by the Partnership to staff members. In addition, we found that

the Partnership had authorized reimbursement for employees'

expenses that could not be paid with Federal grant funds.

Corrective action was taken by the Partnership to address

these problems. The Partnership reimbursed the grant for

unallowable expenditures with private funds, staff reimbursed

the Partnership for personal expenditures and, with the

assistance of OJJDP, policies were developed for travel, use of

credit cards, and for contracting with other organizations.
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At the same time, concern was increasing in OJJDP that the

management and financial problems the. Partnership was

experiencing was severely impeding ite progress. By early June,

after eight months of operation, only one local partnership had

been established, $9,000 in private funds--from contributions

and membership fees--had been raised, limited action had been

taken to identify and begin efforts for the replication of

exemplary programs, and some action had been taken to implement

the national awareness campaign on drug and alcohol abuse, while

almost all its grant money had been expended.

.This was the situation / learned about when / was appointed

Acting OJJDP Administrator on June 9, 1986. Because more than

three-quarters of the grant funds ($764,000 or 76 percent) had

been spent by the Partnership and program results were not

consistent with the volume of dollars spent, on June 13, 1986, I

notified the Partnership that funding was suspended pending a

thorough review before a final decision was made concerning the

future of the program.

Over the next several days OJJDP program staff and staff

from the Office of Justice Programs' Office of the Comptroller

and the Office of General Counsel conducted further programmatic

and financial reviews. The reviews confirmed that, while

Partnership staff had conducted themselves in a professional

manner and a number of tasks had been conscientiously taken

toward establishing the organization and in working toward the

overall objectives, programmatic achievements were limited.
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In adLition, the Partnership had euffered from the beginning

from a lack of stable leaderehip. Since the Partnership

presid,AL reuigned in March 1986, no one had assumed the

presidency, nor had a permanent chairman of the board been

found. Without preper management, the staff had a limited

understanding of the program and policy goals of the Partnership

and little guidance on implementation. The decisionmaking

process was often hindered by disagreements between the

president and the board or between senior and line staffs.

There seemed to be no common understanding of the objectives of

the Partnership and the means of reaching these objectives. And

without the necessary leadership, the management of the

Partnership never improved.

Therefore, on June 23, 1986, I notified the Partnership's

interim chairman that OJJDP would not provide continued funding

for the program and that Federal support would end July 31,

1986, which was the end of the first budget period.

Following this notification, OJJDP and the Partnership

chairman agreed to close out the program. With the withdrawal

of Federal funds and few private funds, the Partnership had no

means to continue. Therefore, OJJDP and Office of Justice

Programs staff worked with the Partnership to assist in the

orderly close out of grant-supported activities and to determine

severance procedures and payments for employees. On July 9,

1986, a close out agreement drafted by OJJDP was delivered to

the Partnership, which was signed two weeks later oy the

Partnership's Acting Chairman of the Board. On July 31, 1986,

the Partnership grant formally ended.

2 6
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When the Partnership closed, its files were transferred to

the possession of the Federal government and one Partnership

staLf.:!: worked at OJJDP to complete the closing out of the grant

program. There are currently a few financial matters related to

the Partnership- -payment of bills or refunds from

contractors--that are being resolved through contact with a

bookkeeper and the an attorney for the Partnership. At the

present time, the Pari-nership grant has $35,144 of unobligated

funds remaining from the original $1 million award. Bowever,

because there are these few financial matters outstanding, we do

not yet have a final tally on the expenditure of funds under

this grant.

Before responding to any questions you may have, Mr.

Chairman, I would like to say that the final decision to

terminate the grant to the Partnership should not be construed

to be a reflection of the level of commitment of the Partnership

staff to the goals of this project nnd that I understand the

hardship this decision caused Partnership employees. I regret

that circumstances necessitated this decision.

We believe the staff conducted themselves in a professional,

conscientious, and responsible manner t toughout the life of

this program, particularly during the difficu] days of the

program close out. For a variety of reasons, howeverp tne

program's tremendous potential was never achieved.
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OJJDP continues to endorse the original concept which led to

the formation of the Partnership program and hope that we will

be able to support efforts in the future to prevent alcohol and

drug abuse by our Nation's young people. As you know, Mr.

Chairman, this Administration is committed to ending the

terrible toll drug and alcohol abuse exacts on our society,

particularly our young people. We will continue to explore

every avenue to find ways to bring an end to this plague that is

ravaging our society and robbing our young people of their

future.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would be pleased now to respond

to any questions you cc members of the Subcommittee may have.
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CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS REGARDING TI-E NATIONAL PARThERSHP

October 3-4,198i 1st meeting to organize the Partnership - with the media

November 13-14, 198 4 2nd meeting to organize.- with citizen groups

November 27-28, 1984 3rd meeting to organize - with business groups

Jawary 10, 1985 4th meeting to organize - with professional groups

January 29-31, 1985 1st national meeting to organize the Partnership,
'.Villiansburg, Virginia

April, 1985 NESC beings search to recruit senior executives, and Board
of Trustees

June 7, 1985 Articles of Incorporation filed, Law Firm of Webster,
Chanberlain & Bean provide legal services.

August 1, 1985 imt period officially begins

Ausgust 1,1985 NE.sr completes recruit ement effort through October, 1985.

October 10, 1985 Gusit awarded with White House ceremony and Kick-Off
Dinner with Attorney General

December 10, 1985 Grmt Monitor makes first official site visit

January 15, 1988 OJJDP staff Donahue and Parpatage make on-site visit and
provide technical assistance to staff and learn that progran
is not proceeding an schedule

Jawary 17, 1986

January 17, 1986

OJJDP staff learn of NESC sale-source contract for the
first time during site visit

Partnership President attempts to fire Partnership's low
firm an retainer when he learns of attempt by the Board to
ask far his resignation

January 27, 1986 1st Bonrd Meeting of Partnership Robert Baldwin
appoirted as Interim Chairman

January 30, 1986 Assistance again provided to Partnership staff by OJJDP's
Porpot age and Donahue

February 7, 1986 OJJDP again provides an site assistance

February 26, 1986 OJJDP staff on-site again to provide technical assistance
learn that $482,000 of award has already been obligated

February 28,1986

March 14, 1986

OJJDP Adninistratar imposes limited freeze an grmt funds

President of Partnership, Rex Thankins, resigns



March 19,1986

April I, 1986

April 7,1986

April 14, 1986

May 9, 1986

May 19, 1986

May 28,1986

May 30, 1986

June 13, 1986

June 16, 1986

June 17, 1986

June 17, 1986

June 18 - 19, 1986

June 20, 1986

June 23, 1986

June 24, 1986

June 25, 1986

June 26, 1986
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Implementation Plan submitted to Office

OJJDP staff learn of Honeywell sole-source contract far
ADP services

Som Keker assumes Acting Presidency

Board of Trustees Meeting

OJJDP staff told of additional financial improprieties --
recommend full audit

OJJDP directs the Partnership to take corrective action
including the forced resignations of senior consultants
Gerrish, Caursen, and Stover

Parpotage and Neal Berg conduct I imi ted financial review

Findings and corrective action of review delineated to
Partnership

PartnersNp staff notified by Donahue and Porpotage that
OJJDP Acting Administrator Verne Speirs has placed progran
in suspension status.

ABC and CBS networks air stcry an national news regarding
Part nersNp

Assistant Attorney General Herrington given comprehensive
briefing an Partnership activities by OJJDP staff.

Parpotage, Jock Nodal, cnd Neal Berg visit Partnership and
discuss financial review and progran review methodology.

Porpotage conducts progrcrn review by interviewing Division
Directors.

Verne Spiers, Charles Lauer, Frank Parpotage, and Herbert
Ellingwood visit Robert Baldwin in New York City and discuss
close-out of Partnership.

Partnership staff given formal notice that progran will
formally end an July 31, 1986 and that 9.,vernment has claim
of $81,971. Results of progrcm review also shored with staff.

Letter sent to Partnership delineating major activities to be
undertaken during close out of the program.

Partnership sends to OJJDP formal proposal to continue all
staff through July 31,1986.

Partnership staff formally notified that their proposal is
unacceptable. Phase out plan for staff is suggested by
OJJDP.



July 2, 1986

July 8, 1986

July 8, 1986

July 9, 1986

July 10, 1986

July II, 1986

July 18, 1986

July 24, 1986

July 24, 1986

July 25, 1986

July 29, 1986

OJJDP notifies Partners', d by letter that government
cannot approve charges lor dissolution of Partnership.

Formal respcmse On Partnership on questioned costs is
received oy 0.12, ".

OJJJDP and OJP officials conduct inventory of all grant
purchased equipment and furniture.

A cicoe-out agreement drafted by OJJDP is delivered to
Partnership for consideration.

Acting President Arkin tells Porpotage that Interim
Chairman Baldwin will not authorize the signing of the
agreement by the Acting President.

First group of 5 staff members of Partnership leave
employment status with the organization.

Porpotage, Herbert Ellingwood and Associate General
Counsel John Wilson meet with Partnership attorney Alai
Dye and discuss government's position on questioned costs,
assignment of claim against the National Executive Service
Corps, and the close-out agreement proposal.

Landlord for Partnership offices takes possession of
Partnership furniture.

Partnership Board Chairman Robert Baldwin signs Close-Out
Agr cement.

2nd group of Partnership staff end employment status with
the organization.

Landlord for Partnership offices agrees to allow government
to take possession of Partnership furniture in return for
"settlement" of lease for $46,856.

July 30, 1986 Government takes possession of furniture and files of the
Partnership.

July 31,1986 Partnership grant formally ends.

August 1 - 14, 1986 The last staff perscn of the Partnership, the financial officer
Alexandra Rollins, works at OJJDP offices in closing-out
activities of the grant program

August 28-29, 1986 Alexandra Rollins again works on close-out activities at
OJJDP offices. Makes request to hove government pay for
formal dissolution of the Partnership corporation.

August 29, 1986 OJJDP formally natifies Rollins artd the Partnership that it
will not authorize payment of any legal f ees beyond the end
date of the gratt, July 31, 1986 and that the government
cannot authorize federal grant funds to formally dissolve the
corporation.
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Mr. KILDEE. Otir next witnesses will consist of a panel: Mr.
Samuel J. Keker, former acting president, National Partnership to
Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse, Washington, DC; Mr. William
Butynski, executive director, National Association of State Alcohol
and Drug Abuse Directors, Washington, DC; and Mr. Ken Eaton,
trustee of the National Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol
Abuse, Washington, DC.

If they would come forward.

STATEMENTS OF SAMUEL J. KEKER, FORMER ACTING PRESI-
DENT, NATIONAL PARTNERSHIP TO PREVENT DRUG AND ALCO-
HOL ABUSE; WILLIAM BUTYNSKI, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE
DIRECTORS; AND KEN EATON, TRUSTEE, NATIONAL -PARTNER-
SHIP TO PREVENT DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE
Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Keker, you will be our lead-off witness.
Mr. KEKER. My name iS Sam Keker.
Thank you, Chairman Kildee and members of your committee

for the invitation to testify before the subcommittee regarding the
National Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse among
youth.

I will refer to the national partnership asin the abbreviated
formthe NP.

I think the committee is to be commended for undertaking an in-
quiry into this particular aspect in the conduct of public business.
There are important considerations, short term and long term.

I cannot speak on behalf of the national partnership board of
trustees, but I am pleased to offer observations from my own expe-
rience. Although my professional career has been mainly in the
private sector, I have served on several public commissions and
task forces. I retired from U.S. News & World Report in early 1984
as chairman of the board. I presently serve as chairman of the ad-
visory council of the Maryland Department of Human Resources.

My association with the NP covers the period July 1985 to July
1, 1986, and falls in two distinct periods. In July 1985, I was re-
cruited by the National Executive Service Corps, acting in behalf of
the Administrator of the Office of Juvenile Delinquency, as a con-
sultant to plan and help execute the mission of the soon-to-be-
launched national partnership.

The nonprofit corporation was formally organized and launched
in October 1985. It was launched with a designated president and
chief operating officer, no full-time staff, and with a chairman and
chief executive officer still to be selected. The bylaws called for the
secretary to be the interim chairman of a nonprofit organization.
The chairman did not materialize all through the remaining 1985
and an interim chairrs An was elected in January 1986, so we could
get on with the business of the corporation.

My initial commitment was short term and limited. My responsi-
bility was to recruit permanent staff for the communications and
public affairs division and to act in a volunteer consultant capacity
until the NP was off and operating. I reported to the president and
served at his direction and pleasure. In mid-March, the president
resigned.

64-942 0 - 87 - 2 33
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On April 1, 1986, I agreed to assume the responsibility of acting
president until a successor could be recruited at the instance of Mr.
Baldwin, the chairman at the time. I served in this capacity until
June 1986 at the direction and pleasure of the interim chairman of
the corporation.

I resigned when I learned in mid-June that the operations of the
NP were again being reviewed by a new administration of OJJDP
and that a freeze on all program expenditures was directed pend-
ing his reviewthe second in less than 3 months.

The partnership was formally launched on October 10, 1985. It
was dissolved in July 1986.

A central question before the committee must surely be how and
why a unique public/private effort committed to a long range com-
mitment to organize the country at the grass-roots level failed in
its stated mission.

Admittedly, many factors contributed to the demise of the NP.
Some major, some minor, but all of them incident in the start up of
any ambitious initiative of a new organization.

I was surprised when I was approached to be associated with the
national partnership that there had never been a coalition
throughout the country of the various groups, alcohol, drugs, a
caretaker, treatment centers, educators. They were all out there
with their own turf battles, all fighting for the congressional pri-
vate dollar. Again this country is one massive coalition, but the
fact there was not a coalition to prevent alcohol and drug abuse
among youth was mind boggling and the concept that you would
have a small organization, get to the grass roots level, get people
organized locally across all the boards, all the interests, the liquor
interests, drug interests, youth interests, and do the thing locally.

Everything has been done. For years we have been screaming
about drug and alcohol abuse. We are talking about billions of dol-
lars reallocated in the current program.

The cry is, "Say no," but nobody has gotten down to the trench
warfare that has to go on in this kind of program of doing it at a
grass roots level and get people to stop wringing their hands and
doing something about it in their own communities.

I dedicated myself to this volunteer effort. Many things have con-
tributed to the demise of the national partnership, so I will limit
my testimony to one major factor, that the progress and ability of
the partnership to function in a viable way was impaired from the
beginning by raid changes in leadership and direction in the ad-
ministration of the grant by the Office of Juvenile Delinquency.

The fact that there was not in place a leadership, total leader-
ship was a defect that had been promised would be taken care of in
2 to 3 weeks, but the fact that you started with an army, a crusade
without a commander in chief is a defect right from the start.

So it was impaired from the beginning.
This took me a long time to make a decision in this connection,

but whether this stemmed from lack of professionalism on the part
of Government administrators, a different agenda from the part-
nership, or internecine warfare in various levels of the Justice De-
partment, I can only surmise.

All I got was rumors and back and forth. I am a bystander. I had
the responsibility to recruit permanent staff, we were organized
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October 10, we had Government funds, we felt a responsibility for
those Government funds, let's get the show on the road.

I can testify to specific instances which hobbled the partnership
from the beginning. Some time in November, the national partner-
shipI specifically had people lined up to take on responsibilities
was instructed by the administrator not to discuss partnership mat-
ters with the deputy overseeing the grant and to contact only a
designated subordinate.

In the same period, preliminary efforts to recruit key, full-time
staff, vice presidents for communications, developing local partner-
ships and programs came to a standstill at the request, presum-
ably, of the prospective chairman who was "coming aboard any
day. '

In other words, they were running prospective, don't do anything
on communications, the ultimate success of the partnership, you
are getting seed money from the Government, seed money of a mil-
lion dollarsmy understanding was presumably there would be an-
other million dollars if progress had been made at the end of the
grant period and in this interim year and a half period, this pri-
vate/public organization would match those funds and private
fundraising and replicate and duplicate and proceed much further
than the original schedule.

Mr. KEICER. Again, no permanent leadership coming on for the
remainder of the year. In February, spending freeze was ordered by
OJJDP on all new hiring, and pending a preparation of a revised
implementation plan, and approval of the trustees.

Again, a freeze, submit a revised implementation plan, don't do
anything, don't form local partnerships, until we do the revised
plan yet approved by the Board of Trustees.

The original grant also had a plan to hire these people to move
on, form local partnerships, and I never did figure out why the hell
you had to stop doing what you were doing on your original pro-
gram while you reviewed the thing and stopped and gone through
all these administrative things, and then proceed.

This happened twice in the period of 3 or 4 months again, so
eventually why the partnership failed, it did not show much
progress, fell back on its original plan, this, that and the other,
stop and go.

What do you expect?
More stops than go on the spending freeze, which was lifted in

March. Full-time presence for communications and local partner-
ships were fmally hired 6 months after launch, many standing in
the wings.

It was not until March that any significant effort could be made
to move forward. Within a few weeks rapid progress in developing
local partnerships was being made.

In that few weeks, 8 weeks, there were 10 local partnerships well
on the way to being formed throughout the country. Another 10
that were in the stages of negotiation, these things tAe time.

You are going to form the local partnership in the city of Chica-
go, a lot of people you have to talk to, and it doesn't happen in a
week or a day. This was a long-term commitment, there has been
$750,000 spent as of the end of June, fully a third of that went to
startup costs.
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You had a private corporation, no space, no typewriters, no com-
mitment, so in effect it is the same thing you would have in estab-
lishing a school or a manufacturing plant or any kind of program,
you have certain startup costs.

My estimate would be that fully a third or more of that money
that was expended by the partnership were startup costs that
should be viewed as amortization over a period of 3 to 5 years.

In other words, they were basic to the startup of the organiza-
tion, and in the second 6 months or the following year, whatever
funds were being raised would go towards the formulation of local
partnerships.

In May, the Administrator of OJJDP resigned, and the successor
informs the grant was being reviewed. A week later, the decision
was not enough progress was being made.

The testimony I am making here is not the complete story on the
demise of the national partnership, and there were other factors
contributing to it.

Overall, they got. off to a bad start, did not have the necessary
leadership, and within our partnership, a great opportunity has
been lost, and I would hope that down the road another agency,
some kind of national coalition has to be formed, funded, whether
it is public, private or public-private, but one of the avenues, if the
committee is interested in this whole area, is that the rhetoric and
hand-wringing and all the other things that are going on presently,
and in the past, it is not going to show much improvement until
you do the dirty work in the trenches, and that is what this part-
nership was set up to do.

The discussion here is drug abuse, that has been raised, the great
thing that is going to disable this country, and even today as we sit
here, alcohol abuse among children, our families in our society, is a
much greater danger than drug abuse presently.

I think that there are others here that can testify. We are not
even talking about the alcohol abuse that goes on in this country.

Mr. Krum. Thank you very much, Mr. Keker.
[The prepared statement of Samuel J. Keker follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SAMUEL J. KEKER, FORMER ACTING PRESIDENT, NATIONAL
PARTNERSHIP To PREVENT DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE

My thanks to Chairman Kildee for his invitation to testify before
the Sub-Committee regarding the grant to the National Partnership to'
Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse Among Youth. (The NP) The committee is
to be commended for undertaking an inquiry into this particular aspect
in the conduct of the public business.

I cannot speak on behalf of the National Partnership Board of
Trustees but I am pleased to offer some observations drawn from my own
experience. Although my professional career has been mainly in the
private sector, I have served on several public commissions and task
forces. I retired from U.S. New & World Report in early 1984 as
Chairman of tne Board. I presently serve as Chairman of the Advisory
Council of the Maryland Department of Human Resources.

My association with the NP covers the period July 1985 to July 1,
1986 and falls in two distinct periods. In July 1985 I was recruited by
the National Executive Service Corps, acting in behalf of the
Administrator of the Office of Juvenile Delinquency, as a consultant to
plan and help execute the mission of the soon to be launched National
Partnership. The non-profit corporation was formally organized and
launched in October 1985. It was launched with a designated president
and chief operating officer, no full-time staff, and with a chairman and
chief executive officer still to be elected - presumably in a matter of
weeks. )n interim chairman was elected in January 1986.

My initial committment was short term and limited. My responsi-
bility was to recruit permanent staff for the communications and public
affairs division and to act in a volunteer consultant capacity until the
NP was off and operating. I reported to the president and served at his
direction and pleasure. In mid March the president resigned.

On April 1, 1986 I agreed to assume the responsibility of acting
president until a successor could be recruited. I served in this
capacity until June 1986 at the direction and pleasure of the interim
chairman of the corporation.

I resigned when I learned in mid June that the operations of the NP
were again being reviewed by a new administration of OJJDP and that a
freeze on all program expenditures was directed pending his review --
the second in less than three months.

The Partnership was formally launched on October 10, 1985. It was
dissolved in July 1986.

A central question before the committee must surely be how and why
a unique public/private effort committed to a long range committment to
organize the country at the grass roots level failed in its stated
mission.

Admittedly, many factors contributed to the demise of the NP. Some
major, some minor, but all of them incident in the start up of any
ambitious initiative of a new organization. The Sub-Committee will
undoubtedly hear testimony from others in these areas in the course of
its inquiries.
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I will limit my testimony to one major factor. The major factor,
in my judgment, is that the progress and ability of the Partnership to
function in a viable way was impaired from the beginning by rapid
changes in leadership and direction in the administration of the grant
by the Office of Juvenile Delinquency. Whether this stemmed from lack
of professionalism on the part of the government administrators, a
different agenda from the Partnership, or internecine warfare in various
levels of the Justice Department, I can only surmise.

What I can testify to are specific incidents which hobbled the NP
in a serious way in accomplishing its basic organizational and
programmatic tasks from the very beginning.

For example, sometime in November, the NP was instructed by the
Ac.ninistrator of OJJDP not to discuss partnership matters with the
Deputy overseeing the grant and to contact only a designated
sub,Drdinate.

In this same period, preliminary efforts to recruit key full time
staff, vice presidents for communications, developing local partnership
and programs came to a stand still at the request, presumably, of the
prospective chairman who was "coming aboard any day." These
instructions came from the president, but my positive inpression is that
OJJDP initiated, or at a minimum concurred in these personnel delays. I
do not know if the president resisted these delays.

Just as importantly, and cruical to ultimate success, was the delay
in moving ahead with fund raising efforts from the private sector.
Again, the fund raising effort was postponed pending the acceptance of
the chairmanship by the prospective candidate.

In February a spending freeze was ordered by OJJDP on all new
hiring, travel and program development pending the preparation of a
revised implementation plan and approval of the trustees. More stop and
go the spending freeze was lifted in March a full time vice presidents
for communicatons and local partnerships were finally hired - six months
after launch! It was not until March that any significant effort could
be made to move forward externally.

Within a few weeks rapid progress in developing local partnerships
was being made.

In May, the administrator of OJJDP resigned. Early in June his
successor informed the NP the grant was being reviewed and pending a
final decision by the new administrator, another financial freeze was
imposed on all activity. After what appears to me to have been a casual
and cursory review, the grant was terminated.

Granted, the testimony submitted herewith is not the complete story
on the demise of the NP. I reiterate, however, my judgment on the major
factor which contributed to its disolution.

Samuel J. Keker
3203 Milling Road
Chevy Chase, Maryland 20815
(301) 652-1083

3,8
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Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Butynski.
Mr. BUTYNSKI. I would like to thank you sor the invitation to

appear and to testify on this important subject of the national part-
nership before your committee.

I would like to preface my remarks by indicu H 11,Lt-

ment represents my personal views as a professional ,1Lii years'
experience in the alcohol and drug field, and the remarks should
not be construed as necessarily representing those of the organiza-
tion for which I work, the National Association of State Alcohol
and Drug Abuse Directors.

On the assumption that the full written testimony will be en-
tered into the hearing record, I would like to verbally summarize
my remarks.

Mr. KILDEE. Yes; we would appreciate it.
Mr. BUTYNSKI. I would like to organize my remarks in four areas,

background and need, concept, problems and recommendations for
the future.

In terms of background and need, it is clear that alcohol and
drug abuse pose severe economic costs to our society overall, but
also that drug abuse by youth is closely related to other forms of
juvenile delinquency.

There are various statistics cited here, and you may be more fa-
miliar with than I am in terms of the relationship between alcohol,
drug abuse, and delinquency.

In terms of concept, the idea of the national partnership to pre-
vent drug and alcohol abuse was rather ambitious, but with appro-
priate support and leadership, a viable concept that had a tremen-
dous positive potential for stimulating public awareness and for
creating an ongoing mechanism for sharing information for the
public and private sector to work together in combatting alcohol
and drug abuse problems among youth.

With regard to the problems encountered by the national part-
nership, there are a number. I will discuss three areas of problems
as I saw them.

One, expectations; two, leadership; and three, communications.
First, in term of expectations, as far as I know, a clear and de-

tailed program of work was never reviewed nor adopted by either
the membership of the partnership, nor by the board, prior to sub-
mission to the Justice Department.

Thus, five people had different expectations as to what could and
should be accomplished.

Second, in terms of leadership, overall, there was considerable
prestige, expertise, and competence in terms of honorary leader-
ship. The First Lady, Senate Majority Leader Dole, House Speaker
O'Neill, all lent their names to the partnership.

However, a permanent chairperson was never selected nor elect-
ed by the board of directors. Also, most of the initial staff of the
partnership did not have either extensive knowledge or direct expe-
rience in working on alcohol and drug problems.

In terms of communications, it is evident at this point that insuf-
ficient communication occurred among many of the components re-
lating to the national partnership, ranging from the president to
the board, between the president, looard, and the members, between
the president, board, and the alcohol and drug field, et cetera.
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In terms of recommendations for the future, I would suggest that
consideration might be given to the following guidelines:

First, that grants should be awarded only to established organi-
zations with proven records of accomplishment, or if awarded to a
new entity, should be directly supported by some other known
groups who have some clearly designated responsibility to nurture
the new organization until it can stand alone as a fully responsible
entity.

Second, the expectations in terms of specific grant objectives,
methods and time frames, should be clearly communicated to all
responsible parties, including the board of directors, staff, as well
as to other significant parties, the members of the partnership.

Finally, as the Department of Justice awards future grants and
contracts in the drug area, I would recommend that it should work
in even close collaboration with other appropriate Federal agen-
cies, specifically the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Ad-
ministration. They have the demonstrated experience in this area,
and if they had been involved in joint funding or joint oversight of
the partnership, we might well have had much greater success.

I would be pleased to respond to any questions that you or other
committee members may have.

[The prepared statement of William Butynski follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF WILLIAM BUTYNSKI, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION OF STATE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE DIRECTORS

Chairman Kildee, distinguished Committee members and honored
guests I would like to thank you for the invitation to appear before your
Committee and to discuss the important subject of the National
Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse. I wish to preface my
remarks by indicating that my statement represents my personal views as a
professional with 17 years of experience in the alcohol and drug field.
The remarks should not be construed as representing the views of the
organization for which I work, the National Association of State Alcohol
and Drug Abuse Directors.

With regard to the U.S. Department of Justice Office of Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention grant to the National Partnership to
Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse I have organized my remarks around the
following four topics: (1) background and need: (2) concept; (3)
problems; and (4) recommendations for the future.

In terms of background and need it is clear that not only do
alcohol and other drug abuse pose severe economic costs to our society,
but also that drug abuse by youth is closely related to other forms of
juvenile delinquency. Data from a variety of relevant reports and
research studies is summarized and/or excerpted below:

o The annual economic costs of alcohol and other drug abuse, :A.)
our society in 1983 have been estimated to exceed 0176.4
billion (Research Triangle Institute report for the Alcohol,
Drug Abuse and Mental Health Administration, 1984).

o In 1980 almost one-half of serious juvenile offenders were
also users of a variety of illicit drugs, e.g., the rate of
marijuana use among chronic serious juvenile offenders was 14
times higher than the rates of use by nonoffenders (Ellicott
and Huizinga, National Youth Study, 1984)

o The proportion of youthful drinkers of alcohol and users of
marijuana with delinquencies is approximately twice as high as
the proportion among abstainers (Akers, Drohn, Lanza-Kaduce,
and Hadoevick, Boys Town Study supported by the Boys Town
Center for the Study of Youth Development, 1979.

o Serious drug involvement is a significant contributor to as
well as an indicator of high rates of most forms of
criminality (Johnson, wish a^d Huizinga, The Concentration of
Delinquent Offending: The Contribution of Serious Drug
Involvement to High Rate of Delinquency, 1983).

In terms of concept I feel that the idea of a National Partnership
to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse was rather ambitious, but, with
appropriate support and leadership, a viable concept that had a
tremendous positive potential for stimulating public awareness and
creating an ongoing mechanism for the public and private sector to share
information and cooperate in combatting alcohol and drug abuse problems
among youth.

With regard to the problems encountered by the National
Partnership there were a number. These problems included, but were not
necessarily limited to, the following areas: expectations, leadership
and communications. Each of these three major problem areas is described
further below:

o Expectations - A clear and detailed program of work was, as
far as I know, never reviewed nor adopted by either the
membership or the Board of Directors, prior to submission to
the Justice Department; thus different people had different
expectations as to the specific objectives of the Partnership:
the methods by which objectives would be pursued, and the
timeframes that would be followed.

o Leadership - Overall, the prestige, expertise and competence
of many of the honorary leaders of the Partnership was
impressive. First Lady Nancy Reagan, Senate Majority Leader
Dole and House Spaaker O'Neill all lent their names to the
Partnership. However, a permanent Chairperson was never
selected nor elected by the Board of Directors. Also, most of
the initial staff of the Partnership did not have extensive
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suledge or direct experience in working to develop or
,plement alcohol or drug programs or services at a national
state level.

t mununications - Insufficient communication occurred among
many of the components at the National Partnership (e.g.,
between the Presider!) and the Board of Directors; between the
President/Board and the members; betwe,..,i'. the Predent/Board
and prospective memlizrs; between the PLesident/Board and the
alcohol and drug field, tween the President/Board and the
private sector). Also, it appears that the communications
between the Justice Department and the Partnership
President/staff were not as constructive as they could have
been.

In terms of recommendations for the future I would suggest that
consideration should be given to the following guidelines:

o Grants should be awarded only to established organizations
with proven records of accomplishment, or, if awarded to a new
entity, should be directly supported b other known groups who
have some clearly designated responsibility to nurture the new
organization until it can stand alone as a fully responsible
entity.

o The expectations in terms of thA specific grant objectives,
methods and timeframes should be clearly communicated to all
responsible parties (e.g., to the Board of Directors and staff
leadership of any new organization), as well as to other
significant parties (e.g., to organization members and to
relevant field groups).

o As the Department of Justice awards future grants and
contracts in the alcohol and drug area it should work in even
closer collaboration with other appropriate federal agencies
(i.e., the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Bealth
Administration); joint funding of such alcohol and drug
projects could serve to strengthen both oversight and
potential positive outcomes.

I would be pleased to respond to any questions that you or other
Committee members may have.

4 2
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Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Eaton.
Mr. EATON. I .am delighted to be here, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Tauke,

it is good to see you, and I appreciate the incisive questions that
you asked of the prior witness, and with your permission, I would
like to address a few of those myself.

By way of my background, I have been involved in the field for a
long, long time, beginning in Iowa, operating a statewide demon-
stration project in alcoholism for the Governor there, and later as
the Deputy Director of the National Institute on Alcohol Abuse
and Alcoholism, and later also in Michigan, for that State govern-
ment.

My involvement was initiated at the same time that was initiat-
ed. I would be happy and would like an opportunity to provide ad-
ditional information. I do have copies of board meeting minutes,
other documents that will provide expanded information about how
things happen, and who did what and so forth.

I would be happy to go through that if you wish, and provide ad-
ditional information later on.

Mr. KILDEE. The committee very much wishes that.
Mr. EATON. I must at the outset make two points. One, I resist

the sense that the partnership had been a failure at the time the
grant was terminated.

Mr. Keker has mentioned several reasons for that, and I concur
with his observations and will add a few of my own to that. I must
also point out that a Federal grant or a new nonprofit corporation
was not in anybody's mind when this initiative was begun.

It was begun through a series of discussion meetings which were
called by the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency, and most
of us appreciated that leadership.

Three separate meetings were held very early, October, Novem-
ber 1984, calling together representatives of media, including the
National Broadcasting Corp., advertising agencies and other groups
involved in media.

Another meeting was held with members of the private sector,
business corporations, so forth. Another meeting was held with citi-
zen groups and organizations that were involved, and still another
with professional organizations such as ones with which I am affili-
ated, and Dr. Butynski is affiliaked.

The discussions in these meetings did not anticipate a result. It
took some time to review the nature, extent, and seriousness of
drug and alcohol problems and raised questions as to whether or
not, together all of us might, do a more effective job than we can
each do separately and on our own, and the response to those dis-
cussions and those questions frankly were resounding yeses.

Yes; it is a serious problem, and we all have a responsibility to
do even more than we are, and we can probably be more effective
if we work together, and combine our efforts than we can be con-
tinuing to work separately.

With those conclusions, and at the urging of many, a meeting
was called, scheduled in Williamsburg, occurring in January 1985.
I know it was snowing and very cold.

Over 200 people attended this meeting. The core groups were the
same groups of people that were represented at the prior meetings.
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There, we hammered out over about a day and a half the same
kinds of issues.

We broke into small groups, created task forces, looked at the
problem and did some analyzing as to what kind of structure might
permit a combined and a collective effort to occur among the vari-
ous and sundry organizations including the Federal Government
that might be involved or might need to be involved in reducing
the problems of alcohol and drug abuse throughout the Nation.

Still, even then, there was no discussion of a brand new corpora-
tion or a Federal grant, least of all a Federal grant. It was becom-
ing apparent that some structure would be necessary in order to
accommodate this coalition effort, and ultimately in some meetings
later of steering and coordinating committees, with some reluc-
tance.

It was agreed that a new nonprofit corporation should be formed
to accommodate that, and at still a later point, it became apparent
that there was a possibility of some Federal support, and that
notion was pursued as well.

Throughout that entire period, 6 to 9 months, it lasted until late
the following summer of 1985, where many of us were occupied
with the drafting of articles of incorporation, by-laws, and other
parts of the future structure of the partnership, and we specifically
were pleased to work with the National Executive Service Corps,
and they were willing to lend their efforts in recruiting what we
thought of to be a prestigious board of trustees with the capacity to
provide important leadership and representation of the evolving
partnership.

They did an excellent job with this. If you have not seen one
before, I would be happy to provide you with a list of those trust-
ees. The operation fmally became real, as Mr. Keker mentioned, in
October, October 11.

I won't repeat some of the subsequent activities that began at
that particular point, because you have already heard them, and
there are areas I can expand on, I will be happy to do so.

I should emphasize that this concept really came from the varie-
ty of organizations and people who were meeting at the encourage-
ment of the office, but this was not just an office effort.

This was an effort that had the full participation and the full
support of a large number of organizations and professional indi-
viduals who had been working for a long time in the field.

We were pleased to see the stimulus provided by the office and
pleased to see them able to accommodate meetings and assist in
communications about those meetings, so we all knew what differ-
ent committees were doing, and task forces, and I felt that was a
very helpful and appropriate role for the office to play.

It is not possible for me to comment about such things as review
processes, whether they were appropriately done. I would suggest,
however, as someone outside the Federal Government, even though
I sat in roughly the same chair as the person responsible for pro-
mulgating grant award processes, so forth.

I think spurring that partnership was a very appropriate and a
necessary effort on the part of the Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency.
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I cannot bring myself to defend the amount of money that was
spent in the short period of time, and in retrospect, it clearly would
have been wiser if a grant were to be awarded or assuming that
one was, to have phased those expenditures, to put some milestones
in, and I think, as Verne Speirs mentioned, manage the daylights
out of the grant so that the partnership did not have a full-time
chairman, and its executive committee, which we did not at that
point, then certain expenditures should not have occurred until
those things had been achieved.

Frankly, no one thought that these delays in leadership would
occur. We were in an active discussion with a prominent American
with the chairmanship. He was extremely interested, agreed to
serve on the board of trustees, withheld his agreement to serve as
chairman until a couple of critical matters in his personal and pro-
fessional responsibilities had been taken care of.

They represented unfortunate delays, but it was not anyone's ex-
pectation, and they were matters which were beyond his and our
control and delayed the selection of an executive committee, so the
board of trustees generally found itself depending upon the single
individual, the senior management person there which was in
place, and there was not a good vehicle for the board itself to be
involved at that time in thr:- absence of an executive committee,
and a permanent chairman.

Those are normally the mechanisms that an organization would
use to involve the board as opposed to meetings of the 40, or 60-
member board of trustees, so there were clearly a great many com-
munication gaps only between the partnership and the Department
of Justice, but within the partnership as well.

These problems, I began to feel sanguine about in January, when
we determined we should not wait further for the selection of a
chairman, and when we mct in late January and asked Bob Bald-
win to serve as interim chairman and take care of matters until
such time as we could recruit a full-time and permanent chairman,
and we also appointed at that same meeting an executive commit-
tee to look more carefully at the day-to-day operation and manage-
ment of the partnership and its relationships and by then, conflicts
with some staff members in the Office of Juvenile Justice and De-
linquency.

I felt we were getting on top of things as a member of the board.
I was in Washington and able to see more closely than some other

astees who lived outside the area, and I talked with Bob Baldwin
on several different occasions.

There were changes in the senior management, as Mr. Keker has
mentioned. There were initiated what I thought were close and
promising communications between our new interim chairman,
and the Department of Justice.

They unfortunately didn't come to the fruition that I was hoping,
but I think the partnership was at that point in a position to
become successful. That is why I resist the assumption that the
partnership had failed at the point at which the grant was termi-
nated.

I don't question the propriety of that decision having been made
on the part of the office. They did what they felt was proper and
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the wise thing to do in terms of the protection of public funds, and
I must, of course, respect that.

I would like to stress that with respect to the use of money on
the part of the partnership, that the documentation that I have
seen, this does not necessarily justify whether or not the initial
grant should have had so much money in it or whether it should
have had as much money for personnel, offices or travel in it, I
can't remark about that, but I can remark to the effect that basi-
cally speaking, the expenditure of public funds by the partnership
was consistent with the approved budget contained in the grant
award.

There were several areas ultimately which were questioned. I
don't remember what all of them were. We could provide that, but
that was some $81,000 that was mentioned before, and as an exam-
ple, one of the staff persons who came aboard was provided with a
short-term loan to carry over.

I don't know whether that was moving expenses, so forth. This is
not unusual in the private sector. It was not appropriate in particu-
lar case because that was not something called for in the budget.

The resolution to that was to have had the individual pay the
money back, which happened almost instantly when it was brought
to the partnership's attention.

There were a few other matters of that particular nature, and
one or two outstanding issues like that, but those exceptions, the
ones that were included in the documents shared with me, did not
in any way imply that anyone had absconded with money, and
they were by and large technical matters of the nature that I just
mentioned to you, the loans, so forth.

I would be happy to provide a list of those kinds of things. I
would hope that the fact that those questions were asked about sev-
eral expenditures would not permit the implication that the part-
nership misused Federal funds.

My impression is that they used the Federal funds in the fashion
with which the grant award called for them to be used.

It may not have been the best budget, I mean, maybe the way
the grant was made or the amounts of money included should have
been different, and I concur that I think there could have been a
tighter management both on the part of the partnership and the
Office, in terms of what happened on a day-to-day basis.

With that, I will discontinue except to emphasize the remarks
that both other witnesses and that members of the committee have
mentioned. The purpose was extremely important purpose. It still
is an extremely important purpose, and the notion of finding a
mechanism by which the public and private sector can collaborate
to deal rah these problems is extremely important still.

I am very sorry that this effort didn't work out. I think it had
great potential. Perhaps it was too ambitious. The pattern and
timing of management appointments created more problems than
anyone anticipated, and I am afraid that perhaps there was a smat-
tering of panic in the response of the office as these problems
began to be uncovered.

I wish we could go backward in time and look at these problems,
and the mistakes that were made, redo them and see this initiative
doing what it needs to be doing.
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We can't turn the clock back and change some actions that were
taken, but I would emphasize that I think there was a serious and
a conscientious effort made on the part of not only the staff of the
partnership but of those on the Board of Trustees who were active
and there was a well-intended effort on the part of the Federal
Government as well.

I deeply regret that we are needing to talk about it in the tone
we have to today, because it is not out and doing what we would all
like for it to do. I would be happy to provide any other information
or answer questions.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much, Mr. Eaton.
I was not going to dwell too much on the expenses, but let me

ask you this: I think that in some of these unallowable expenses,
we do find a symptom of a careless attitude toward taxpayers' dol-
lars.

I consider that a mortal sin in Government, I really do. I think
that is a very, very serious thing when there is a careless attitude
towards taxpayers' dollars. That is a most serious offense.

For example, the payment of airfare for the fiance of an employ-
ee. That shows a rather careless attitude, almost felonious attitude
maybe, towards the taxpayers' dollars.

What gave rise to even the impression that that could be done
with Federal dollars now? You say that in a private company,
these sorth of things, including personal loans are very often done.

I worked for many an employer; I have never been able to get a
personal loan out of any of them.

Mr. EATON. I haven't, either. The point I am trying to make
about those, Mr. Chairman, and unfortunately, we did not have one
on the staff thoroughly familiar with Federal regulations.

Mr. KILDEE. HOW about morality?
Mr. EATON. Again, I don't have the detr,' ,s, i wasn't there, and it

is unfair for me to suggest motivations ,misons for this kind of
thing. As a new person is being recruit. r,o accept a job, and in
thiG case, probably there was a request, could you cover the airfare
for myself and my fiance from wherever they were, moving to
Washington to take the new job, that is not something that is possi-
bly to be done with Federal funds, but it is not so unusual in a
large corporation thatfrom which many of the people in the part-
nership came prior to that.

Again, the solution to that is to have that corrected.
Mr. KILDEE. Private corporations are for-profit. The Federal Gov-

ernment has a huge deficit. Now, for-profit companies that want to
do that, that is their business, but I tell you, I think there is a lack
of morality when that attitude prevails with the use of public
funds.

I am looking for symptoms here, and I am dumbfounded by that
lack of a careful attitude towards taxpayers' dollars. I didn't want
to dwell on that.

Mr. EATON. I asked for that.
Mr. Ku,nzz. That is one of the advantages of having the gavel up

here.
Let me ask more general questions now of yourself maybe at this

point, and Mr. Keker, you may join in, and you may join in, too.
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The original grant application, which was one of the things I
assume gave the OJJDP the reason to think this was a program
thew wanted to fund with taxpayers' dollars, predicted the estab-
lishment of 211 local partnerships. In April of 1986, that number
war revised with the approval of the OJJDP to five model partner-
Ihips, but by June, the national partnership had established only
one partnership in Mobile, AL.

Why were the proposed number of partnerships so drastically re-
duced tn the revised implementation plan?

Nit. EATON. Mr. Keker will probably wish to remark about the
one versus five. The 211 number, and I can't tell you where this
slipped between concept established by people working in the part-
nership and the time it got put on paper, but the 211 came from a
concept of using the national media markets, and they are pieces of
geography that fit into a somewhat natural broadcasting media
market.

As our task forces worked on that, because we were going to at-
tempt to use local media and enlis.t the assistance of the National
Broadcasters in doing so, it made sense to look at this as a strate-
gy, a general way of organizing our thinking and approach and so
forth.

I am not sure how or when that became translated into the for-
mation of 211 local partners. It was never the concept to do that,
certainly not within a short period of time like a year.

Mr. KILDEE. It was put in the grant application?
Mr. EATON. It was. I have not seen the approved grant applica-

tion part that specifies that, but it clearly was. Otherwise, there
wouldn't have been the references to it or a need to make a
change.

I am remarking to the fact the concept was given birth to and
the time it got put on paper, somehow something slipped and it
became translate:1 into an ambition of establishing 211 local part-
nerships.

Mr. KEKEE. That 211 is immaterial. In the original grant, OK,
you are shooting for the Moon. Sure, there was slippage. Programs
are revised, you got a launch date for January 1, things go wrong
so you come up with another date.

The 211 figure, if you organized local partnerships, 211 markets,
you would cover the country, and in effect, you would have a total
coverage of the concept to form local partnerships.

The initial grant called for roughly the formation of 100 partner-
ships in the first year, and this is in the planning stage, without
having tested the market, and no one in the partnership or OJJDP
had gone out and actually attempted to form a local partnership in
Detroit or in Mobile, so whether it took a day to do that or a week
or whether it took a month, nobody knew until you actually did it.

All right, on top of, again, going beyond the concept without
knowing what your program is, how many people it takes, on top of
not hiring people that were supposed to do this particular function,
OK, you slipped further and further back.

There was nothing wrong with the original concept, I mean it
was roughly 100 markets; that is 100 local communities. It became
pretty apparent, with the amount of money the partnership had,
its inability to go out and get money, raising money, matching, in-
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ternally we as consultants and the leadership saw no reason, if you
had a $1 million grant from the Government, that you ought to be
out there raising $5 million, to really do what the national partner-
ship needed to do, to staff, have the number of people and all the
rest that needed to be done, that it would take $5 million or more
dollars to even make a dent in those few markets.

OK, you don't have staff, so on, you are slipping behind, and you
continue tn develop local partnerships and the freeze was put on,
and the plan is revised on the basis that you can't do 100, you are
going tn do 5 or 10 local partnerships and continue tn develop an-
other 10 or 20, and by that time, it became apparent it took several
weeks, a project person in the local community, it was a huge job
that had to be tailored back tn the funds that were available, and
presumably, it could get started, show some progress, and you
could do it at fuller speed.

We were well on our way to develop 10-to-20 partnerships in
March, April, and May of this year, if we had gotten them going,
again, success, the next 20 would have come a lot easier.

Get together here folks, and get on the bandwagon. We never got
the bandwagon growing.

Mr. KILDEE. I appreciate your answers. The 211 then was an ob-
jective number based upon marketing areas in the country?

Mr. KEKER. Right, the morality and the expenditure of public
funds, you are right, I share what you have tn say in that connec-
tion, but again, for example, me personally and perhaps some of
the others, the staff, their careful attention about what could be
spent from Government grant funds and the partnership was
formed that it in effect had two budgets, a Government grant and
you could only expend money from that budget for certain pur-
poses, and these were admittedly not purposes you could spend
from grant money, and we knew that, or should have known, and
expend money from private funds, a private fund budget.

And this had tn do with entertainment, people that came to
town, contacts, things not allowable in the Government grant, and
there was a private fund budget which never really got funded.

Also, you couldn't spend Government funds to go out and raise
funds. You had tn raise private funds to go out and raise funds to
match these Government funds and go beyond your original grant.

Again, as an administrative matter, the partnership hired a local
accounting firm of good reputation, Mc Wade & Capron, who had
extensive business experience in what is permissible under Govern-
ment grants, they do accounting for other grant firms and they
guided us in this area, what is permissible from a grant fund, and
if you need tn do this, you have to do it from private funds.

I submit tn you, when it was called to our attention that the
loan, the $1,200 to a man that was moved from the west coast and
practically getting started, expenses, when it was called tn our at-
tention that this was impermissible under grant funds, it was im-
mediately moved from the grant fund to the private account as far
as showing on our books, a loan from our private funds, and when
it kept coming up after it had been taken care of, pay it, get it off
our books, forget about it.

That happened weeks, months ago and talking about communica-
tions here, it didn't seem to get through the OJJDP records or of-
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flees, because it keeps coming up as an outstanding item, which
was taken care of when it was called to our attention, and particu-
larly on this other matter about the finance, getting moving ex-
penses, a question was raised in California, we are not going to
argue whether it is fiance or commonlaw wife, this was an estab-
lished household of 5 years, and again, whether it is impermissible
from grant funds, the question was raised, reimburse the Govern-
ment grant account, and the individual did.

Again, a couple of bookkeeping instances, a $750,000 budget and
others that came up on entertainment accounts, we went through
this, Lord knows the amount of time we spent, every single vouch-
er which the accounting firm backed up twice, not once, but twice
going back, there was a $320,000 unauthorized government ex-
pense.

Mr. KILDEE. Were you tola by the OJJDP not to engage in pri-
vate fundraising until the chairman was brought on board?

Mr. KEKER. No; the direction I got from the President, at some
point after organization, October 10, we had hired a Vice President
for Fund Raising, an operations manager, but no Communications
Vice President or a local development or Program Vice President.

The fundraising effort, OK, we need some money here, matchup.
We got a big program going here, we need another million dollars,
get on the stick real quick. The word I got directly from the Presi-
dent, one on both the fund raising and on hiring staff, one we have
a chairman coming aboard, and he would like to review the fund-
raising efforts, and communications efforts, and he wanted veto
power, OK, 2, 3, 4 weeks, but again during this organizational
period, cooperation from OJJDP, my impression is that this was
alsobecause there were people from OJJDP in contact with this
prospective chairman, and whether it is coming to the President
from that circle, I mean, everybody was in agreement, that we hold
off in these two very critical areas. Permanent staff to do the fund-
raising.

Mr. KILDEE. How much private funds did the national partner-
ship raise?

Mr. KEKER. I don't think that they raised more than $5,000 to
$10,000, which were just kind of to cover articles of incorporation.
There was no great effort, printing, all that kind of thing.

There was no positive effort made.
Mr. KILDEE. What is the status of the national partnership at

this time? Are you still existing?
Mr. EATON. I have not received any communication to the con-

trary. I have no notices that the corporation has been dissolved.
Mr. KEKER. It eventually will be dissolved as a corporation.
Mr. KILDEE. After the Federal grant was terminated in July,

then, in effect, then national partnership began to disappear?
Mr. KEKER. Yes, it had lease and legal obligations. It had a lease

on space, equipment, leases on typewriters, again saving Govern-
ment money rather than buying them, spending another quarter of
a million dollars right up front for equipment which was necessary
to run an office, they were leased, and the obligations ran over a
period of years, including the space lease, and that had to be nego-
tiated out.
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Mr. KILDEE. After that grant was terminated in July, did the
board consider going out to the private sector to try to raise money
to stay in existence?

Mr. EATON. Thus far, there has not been any active discussion
about that. We have not had a board meeting since the time that
the grant was terminated.

Mr. KILDEE. So, you felt it would have been futile to go out to the
private sector to seek funds?

Mr. EATON. At least I think that the people involved were very
frustrated with this experience. Most of everyone's efforts were vol-
untary efforts. We had people traveling from New York, Chicago,
and it is more likely that people are just bewildered.

I am not sure that we know what a good direction would be now,
if any, and probably with the controversy, many are feeling that
would be perhaps the most appropriate thing, to let someone else
start the same kind of effort in the future.

Mr. KmaF.E. The umbilical cord to the Federal Government was
an essential thing, then?

Mr. EATON. At that particular time, it was. As Sam mentioned,
our plans to engage in private fundraising were held up. I agree,
everyone was in concurrence with that. At that time, it didn't
really make sense to launch a large private fundraising effort.

We felt that we needed the difficulties to be resolved and taken
care of, that we had the partnership on good solid ground, and . i a
good solid direction before we approached the private sector \ th
fundraising.

Mr. KILDEE. What will happen to the equipment and any mato
al actually leased or owned by the national partnership?

Is there a caretaker around?
Mr. EATON. One of the staff remained on board to work with Jus-

tice to deal with all of those issues. I have no personal knowledge
of that.

Mr. KEKER. They were negotiated out, once the decision to termi-
nate the grant was on such short notice, well, again dealing from
my own experience, if a decision had been made to terminate the
partnership say, in March or February, if that was determined, I
have no way of knowing what the internal judgment or decision
was, the partnership probably could have been phased out in a
much more orderly fashion which perhaps would have given the
trustees an opportunity to perhaps continue or at least look at the
situation without getting into a kind of sledgehammer blow.

Again, perhaps the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
did not know itself at the time, but my standpoint, I consider it bad
faith that as late as February and March, a revised plan was put
in, submitted, approved by the office, approved by the board of
trustees.

I have taken over as Acting President as of April 1, and we are
cracking away, and we have a communications vice president, a
vice president for local development, traveling, forming these part-
nerships, getting going and also raised with the people on staff
look, the grant is coming up, what is our budget, how much is left
over, how much money do we have for program?

Product, we need product, and that was local partnerships. How
much money was available? If the partnership had shown progress,
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there would be another half million dollars at the end of the grant
period, and we knew there had to be submission of another grant
for continuation.

And in April, May, the office needed 90 days to have the continu-
ation grant. I asked staff to get that continuation grant, but I kept
getting, no, you don't need it right now.

I was a little naive bungler going on, I should have asked, why
don't you want a continuation request for a grant.

This is my first experience with a grant. Next time it happens to
me, I am going to get that request in for a continuation and let
them say we will do it or we won't do it. They waited until June 1,
and it is all over, middle of June, so in effect, my impression is,
kind of a tentative decision had been made there was going )I-o be
no continuation of the grant as early as April, when I was in the
process of trying to get the requests in.

Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Tauke, I will defer to you now for some ques-
tions.

Mr. TAIIKE. Amazing story. Let's start, who was to recruit the
leadership? The chairman of the board? Who was recruiting the
chairman of the Board, this guy who was going to come on board,
and who was responsible for getting somebody after he turned you
down?

Mr. EATON. The time at which it became most active, this was
being conducted by the interim chairman, Bob Baldwin. There
were communications with several other people on the board, and
there were communications to the National Executive Service
Corps, had been assisting us.

Mainly, it was being carried out by the interim chairman.
Mr. TAUKE. It was being done by the partnership, no involve-

ment by the Justice Department?
Mr. EATON. There was some communication.
Mr. KEKER. I am not coming on board in July 1985, the picture is

presented to me, come ori board, Keker, there were other consult-
ants, three others, one in fundraising, one in operations, another
one in program, who is running this railroad?

OK, there is a designated president, and we haveI am getting
this from the office, right down here on Indiana Avenue, and God
is going to come on board in 2, 3 weeks.

Mr. TAUKE. Who told you that God was coming on board in 3
weeks?

Mr. KEKER. The Administrator of the Office of Juvenile Justice
and Delinquency.

Mr. TAUKE. Was he recruiting him then?
Mr. KEKER. He raised the vision, Holy Grail out there.
Mr. TAUKE. You were recruited by the Administrator of the

Office of Juvenile
Mr. liEHER. Sure.
Mr. TA.UKE. Who asked you to take over as president?
Mr. KEKER. We are talking about July.
Mr. TAUKE. Later.
Mr. KEKER. I was recruited as a consultant. On October 10, the

organizational meeting of the board of trustees, they elected offi-
cers, I was elected senior vice president responsible for communica-
tions at that October 10 meeting.
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Mr. TAUKE. Didn't you then become President for 2 months?
Mr. KEKER. I am a consultant, volunteer, part time, you know,

specific responsibilities in communications areas.
Interim chairman was elected in January, waiting for Godot to

arrive here. Many people saying he isn't going to show up. People
thought he was going to show up prevailed, and we kept waiting.

Finally, an interim chairman was elected in January, and the
President resigned for personal reasons, he got tired of this Mickey
Mouse back and forth, visions about God was going to show up or
not, and the interim chaiyman asked me to stay on as acting presi-
dent until he could recruit a permanent president, at the same
time, proceeding here to get a permanent chairman.

Mr. TAUKE. Was the recruitment of leadership by the board or by
the Office of Juvenile Justice?

Mr. KEKER. The leadership for the partnership was the responsi-
bility of the board.

Mr. TAUKE. OK.
Mr. KEKER. Nonprofit corporation, the trustees, officers had all

the responsibilities of any corporation. It was their responsibility, if
anything where they erred, looking baek, was in deferring too
much toyou know, we have people her,i saying we would have
strong oversight, I would manage the hell out of it.

If you have a different organization, you can manage the hell out
of it, but if you got a private corporation over here that olso gets to
be the private corporation, the trustees have responfdbiity and
they can say, look, we got this agreement, cut it off, this is the way
we are going to do it, getting our leadership, do it this way, and
share this cooperation, but there can't be this interference, like
any, whether public or private corporation, having an outside
agency, a supplier, customer, so to speak.

Mr. TAincE. One thing I don't understand is, listening to the his-
tory that you outline, Mr. Eaton, there was no government involve-
ment anticipated initially.

Then, of course, when the Government involvement came, appar-
ently everything revolved around the Government involvement and
the continuation of the program, it was impossible without Govern-
ment involvement.

Whose idea was it to seek Government involvement in the first
place?

Mr. EATON. I am not sure that I can place that. At that point,
there was not an organization, per se. We were working on articles
of incorporation, bylaws. It just sort of evolved.

Mr. TAUKE. Who wrote the application? Somebody had to write
the application for the grant?

Mr. EATON. The application largely was prepared by a consultant
mentioned before.

Mr. TAUKE. Was the consultant hired by the board or hired by
the Office of Juvenile Justice?

Mr. EATON. The Board didn't exist at that time.
Mr. TAUKE. Who got the consultant to prepare the grant?
Mr. EATON. I am not sure. The arrangement must have been

made. By that time, also, the future President was here, too, and
again selected in a similar fashion.

Mr. TAUKE. Who paid for the consultant who wrote the grant?
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Mr. EATON. I am not aware, unless it was the payment paid to
them after the partnership started.

Mr. TAUKE. Do you think we have a situation here where the
consultant who wrote the grant was paid for with the money in the
grant?

Mr. EATON. I am not sure.
Mr. KILDEE. On that, the $3,900 fee which was disallowed, was

that the payment to the consultant for writing the grant?
Mr. EXION. That must be it.
Mr. TAUKE. In any event, you as a member of the board did not

initiate the application for the grant and didn't know that the
grant was being sought.

Mr. EXION. No; I knew. I was aware, and I was involved in some
discussions about it, so it wasn't a surprise, although I was not a
member of the board at that time, because the board had not yet
been formed, so we didn't really have a board at that point.

Mr. TAUKE. Was the grant awarded before the board was
formed?

Mr. EXION. The articles of incorporation, and so forth, were filed
at that time, but the first operating board was reallyI think it
had its organizational meeting at our kickoff meeting on the 11th
of October, which was within a day or so, at the time thewell,
there was a technical structure.

There were three individuals who filed the articles of incorpora-
tion and served as an interim board. The articles called for that
group of three initial people to appoint the first operating board.

We received nominations from a nominating committee, so they
had been appointed but they had not met and had not been in any
fashion involved, except the new that had been involved for other
reasons.

Mr. TAUKE. You indicated, and I don't mean to play word games
with you, but you indicated one of the reasons why fund raising
was put off was because you wanted to be on solid ground before
approaching the private sector.

Did anybody ever think you ought to be on solid ground before
approaching the public sector, the taxpayers, do r...11 'lave any ob-
servations about that as a taxpayer, not as a subseu-u,, t member of
the board?

Mr. EXION. Yes; I do, and that issue was a matter of considerable
discussion among many of us. A decision to go ahead and concur
with the preparation of a grant proposal was not made as an easy
one, because we recognized that we did not have an ongoing organi-
zation.

We did not have our leadership fully implanted. We finally
agreed to do that, or were willing to do that, based on the supposi-
tion on the hope that the involvement of the Justice Department
and the award of a grant could get us to the point that we were
solvent.

Virtually everybody's involvement at this point was purely vol-
untary and trying to work this in between their other full-time jobs
and duties. It was not an issue that was not taken seriously. Per-
haps it was a calculated risk that turned out to be a poor one.

We knew a lot of things could happen, and we were hoping that
the grant and the close involvement with the Justice Department

5 4
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would be helpful and not lead to the strive that we eventually ex-
perienced.

Mr. TAUKE. T1-,:is is kind of a fundamental question, but you
talked about being out in the trenches and local partnerships, all of
that, I am having a little difficulty envisioning exactly what the
local partnerships were supposed to do.

Mr. KEKER. The local partnerships were to visit a community,
usually somebody invited them or there was a situation that de-
pendedour experience, communities all the way from Dumpsville
operating fat and happy without any kind of infrastructure within
the city itself, and other communities had already had the equiva-
lent of a local partnership, and in every community there were any
number of organizations, there are dozens of organizations, public,private, all the rest, and in some communications there were
pretty well organized in an informal kind of network, and in others
they operated independently.

The prime objective was, one, look, let us get together, you got a
prominent business person in the community to call a meeting,
business, mayor, r:rd in some communities, by virtue ofcalling that
meeting and havi.ig all these groups come together, as the height-
ened awareness, to present the program, what you could get from
the national partnership would be media attention, material, no
funding, and you got to do it locally, and all we do is provide pro-
grams, replications, the kind of things that other organizations
had, although they had it, there was a great deal of information to
be gotten, bitt a lot was written in Ukrainian and had to be trans-
lated into English, from a communications problem, local.

It happened to Mobile, and we were well on our way in several
other cities where one, the advantage to the local community was
that they had a counsel of sorts, that they could come up with an
annual plan, an annual fund-giving plan, equivalent of a United
Way, and instead of each one of these groups beating on the local
leading manufacturer for funds for that particular program, that
they could come up with a kind of a grand plan to educate.

Drug abuse now among youth, school administrators, that they
could have a concerted grand plan, do their own thing without any
specific direction, but at least make their effort more efficient and
perhaps more productive.

Now, that is on the fund-raising side. The media materials and
kinds of things that are available, you were talking about network-
ing here in Washington, but on the media side again each one of
these organizationswe were prepared to go to each one of these
local communities and try to get these people and in effect come up
with a media plan that you could go to the TV stations that every-
body would get their shot and you would stick it to the media and
newspapers so that they could also be productive in their media
campaign on this problem.

So that was the basic purpose of the partnership.
Mr. TAUKE. This is my last question; there are many we could

ask.
Was there any coordination with any other agency of the Federal

Government? Did you have communication with other agencies
that are involved?

.5 5
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Mr. KEKER. Oh, yesADAMHA, they were on the board, NIH
and many of the groupsas a matter of fact, there was a commit-
tee of the partnership which had all the representatives of the Fed-
eral and State agencies that were addressing this program.

Mr. TAUKE. Was there a representative of the Government on
your board outside of the Speaker and Bob Dole and Nancy
Reagan?

Mr. KEKER. No. There were some State directorsState gm, ern-
ment representatives.

Mr. EATON. There was clearly no restriction againsk, that at least
as far as the partnership was concerned. I think some Federak offi-
cials sought counsel and so forth, and I then determined it would
not necessarily be appropriate for Federal officials to serve on the
board of trustees of a non-profit corporation.

Mr. TAUKE. The national partnershipswhat happened to those
local partnerships that were initiated?

Mr. Kmaa. They will probably continue.
Mr. TAUKE. Have you heard anything from them since?
Mr. KEKER. I haven't, no.
Mr. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Tom.
It is not clear to me where the concept of the national partner-

ship was born, whether it was born in Government or out of Gov-
ernment.

In trying to follow the trail, we find this chronology: In October
and November 1984, the OJJDP sponsored -three meetings to ex-
plore the feasibility of a public/private drug initiative. Then, Janu-
ary 28 to 31, 1985, the OJJDP sponsored a meeting in Williams-
burg, VA, and this apparently is the point where the actual part-
nership concept was formulated.

But it appears that some expectations and some planning had al-
ready taken place, because ASPEN Systems had already developed
for the meeting the national partnership's logo, their graphics and
background material and ASPEN works for the OJJDP.

Was this a private sector initiative or was this Government
saying, we got an idea for you and if you accept it, we will give you
some money.

Mr. EATON. I would probably ask the same questions, although if
you accept that, we will get you some money was not in that equa-
tion early at all.

Mr. KILDEE. But they had been courting you a bit.
Mr. EATON. I think, Mr. Chairman, that as many other concepts

that are good ones, when there is an opportunity for people to say
it is a good concept, they just start saying it is a good concept. The
Justice Department clearly received an enthusiastic response to
their initial three meetings and that is, I trust, when they decided
to proceed with scheduling the Williamsburg meeting.

My opinion was asked, should we try to schedule a meeting
where all the groups could get together. I concurred that it would
be a good idea and I think many others did. I don't know who gave
birth to it. When it began to be discussed, it was popular. Who said
h., first is very hard to tell.

56



53

Many of us have worked in other ways to try to develop coali-
tions of national groups dealing with this problem, so that idea has
always been a popular one and we have always favored it.

Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Petri?
Mr. Prrru. I guess I have two questions.
One, did you ever form a partnership here in Washington in the

course of all this, a local partnership?
Mr. KEKER. We were working with one. It was in the process of

being formed, yes.
Mr. Prrut. But it never was?
Mr. KEKER. There was the equivalent of one here already, the

Federal City Council and groups in Washington were pretty well
organized in this area.

Mr. PETRI. In our State, the Federal Government managed to
hammer us down to 21 for the drinking age and it is 18 in the Dis-
trict and kids are bused into D.C. on weekends by the bars. So it
seems well organized. It seems to be on a profitmaking basis.

Mr. K.EKER. Washington and Baltimore and the State of Mary-
land, local partnerships were in the process of developing at the
time.

Mr. PEriu. We are not supposed to be running things. We are
supposed to set policy and provide funds.

Do you have advice for anything we should be doing in Congress
or in this committee to avoid frittering away money like this in the
future?

Mr. KEKER. I have one. I know that the initial concept included
among other things when I was recruited in the summer of 1985
that there was a grant of $1 million available to the partnership
for this particular program, ambitious program, but again in terms
of what it would take to do the program, to execute and implement
what was being envisioned, that even at that time the partnership,
the people that came on board had as a goal to raise at least $5
million from the private sector within the year to pursue the objec-
tives of the partnership.

A million dollars, everyone knew, wasn't going to go very far in
accomplishing the objective. You had to have a matching equiva-
lent, another million and a half during the first 9 months of the
year.

To be involved in a team effort on >,,;.1 or $2 million, I certainly
didn't want to bother with it.

My answer is, if I were doingI was a government administra-
tor, I would say, "Look, we are giving you a million and a half, you
cne up with a million and a half in the next 12 months or spend
your money as you raise; we will give you $100,000 a month as you
raise $100,000."

Mr. PETRI. You think we should appropriate more money up
front?

Mr. KEKER. Up front and administer it.
Mr. PETRI. Our job is not to administer it.
Does anyone else have ideas besides providing money to avoid

this thing in the future?
Mr. BUTYNSKI. I would reiterate some of the recommendations

made in my original testimony. It seems to me if you are going into
an area as far as I know is not the primary focus of the Office of
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Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention that you might have
that agency coordinate directly with the agency most responsible
for working with alcohol and drug problems, ADAMHA.

So in terms of future grants they might consider in this area, it
would be well to foster joint discussions, joint planning, joint fund-
ing of proposals. It would bring in the expertise from the alcohol
and drug side.

Mr. EATON. I have a suggestion.
Mr. Chairman, you made mention early in the hearings that the

Federal Government is not to form nonprofit corporations without
th consent of the Congress or without an affirmative act on the
part of the Congress. Perhaps at maybe a less formal level, when a
government agency is intending to provide a grant to a new corpo-
ration or in a circumstance where, as you pointed out very fluent-
ly, it is hard to tell who is forming what here in this kind of thing.
But I still think collaboration is very important.

Perhaps there needs to be a way to involve appropriate oversight
committees of the Congress when a Federal agency is considering
taking such a step so that everybody who potentially will be in-
volved and has a stake in this can look at it on a prior basis.

I have a notion that had more people looked at some of this early
that probably it still would have happened, but maybe some of the
problems that we experienced would have been predicted and we
perhaps could have built in some protections about.

Mr. limnEE. Thank you very much, Tom.
A question to Dr. Butynski. Earlier this year a trade ;er

serted that the national partnership had not establisheci
with the alcohol and drug abuse prevention community.

Would you agree with that statement?
Mr. BtrrYristo. I think I would agree with the state:nent in terms

of with all parts of tiv:; alcohol and drug community. I think cer-
tuiy with some parts of the community it had reasonable credibil-
ity, there were at least a couple board members, in fact, a number
of board members with some alcohol and drug experience.

Other people in the alz.ohol and drug field felt it did not have
credibility, so I think in reality there was a division within the
partnership.

Mr. KILDEE. We have a vote. I would like to ask if I could one
more question, directed to you, Dr. Butynski. We learn from the
past, and we are trying to learn from this to make things work
better in the future.

If the Justice Department, were to attempt another program, to
draw together various elements in a partnership-type program or
coalition what would you recommend we do differently?

Mr. BuryNsici. I think it would be best clearly if there were a
clear grant application to be submitted that everyone had the same
expectations in terms of 7,:hat would be done, that the objectives
were clearly defined, timeframes were clearly defined and responsi-
bilities were clearly defmed among staff and board members and
then the granting agency could make the determination with some
feeling that someone wa:5 taking responsibility.

I think clearly here in some instances that did not happen. As
far as I know, the grant had not been approved by the board at the
time that it was submitted. That seems to me a very major prob-
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lem. I would think if a grant is approved by the board of trustees of
whatever corporation, they then assume responsibility and will, in
fact, see that it is carried out.

The other comment I will make is it might be well to ensure, in
fact, somehow the kind of reasonable contribution from the private
sector in that at least as far as I can determine you had a lot of
Federal money, a lot of good names from both the Federal and na-
tional level and the private sector, but as pointed out earlier, the
private sector never put in any substantial moneys and if that is
the clear intent or expectation, then possibly some of that should
be required upfront.

Mr. Ki Lem. Mr. Eaton, would you like to summarize briefly?
MT. EATON. Two points.
I would suggest that an undertaking like this, that any funding

be provided on a phase basis, not let the big expenditures start
until the planning is solid; to require solid leadership before the ex-
penditure of significant money and become involved as a concurrer
in the selection of leadership but not to control the selection of
staff or board people; to be involved in a supporting way and
concur, but not to get so close as to try to control the effort.

Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Keker.
Mr. KEKER. I think they have stated some good suggestions.
Mr. KILDEE. That suggestion you made earlier was corroborated

by Dr. Butynski that there be a requirement for matching.
I thank you. We are here to try to serve the kids of this country

in this area and to spend the taxpayers' dollars wisely. You have
been very helpful to the committee this morning and we appreciate
that.

I would like to call attention to a friend of this committee and a
friend of children of this country, Marion Mattingly, the Washing-
ton representative of the State advisory groups.

We appreciate your being here, Marion.
Thank you again for your testimony this morning, and we stand

adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 12:22 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned.]
[Additional information included in appendix.]
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APPENDIX

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

GMOON NOUSE MICK IMMO

WASHINGTON. DC 20515

SUBCOMMFITEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

October 17, 1986

Hr. Verne L. Speirs
Acting Administrator
Offfme of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Preveotion

Department of Justice
Washington, D.C. 20531

Dear Hr. Speirs:

.10111
J IrAuct OW

.016.. COLLY..1101.11
T.064. MTN

ba. Jordon. vurcrT °Mao

Thank you for your testimony at the Subcommittee's September 19, 1986
oversight hearing on the National Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol
Abuse. In order to further complete the record and to satisfy the
requests for information made by Congressman Tauke and myself during the
hearing, I mould appreciate your providing the following material:

the name of the private source which you indicated paid for the
preparation of the National Partnership's grant application;

the details of all Aspen Systems Corporation tasks and costs
relating to the National Partnership, beginning with the January
1985 meeting in Williamsburg;

a detailed breakdown of the types and amounts of National
Partnership expenses incurred under the federal grant;

copies of vitae and any other information used by the Office to
determine that the peer reviewers were experts in the field of drug
and alcohol abuse prevention; and

copies of the documents which specifically show that the peer
reviewers found the National Partnership's grant application to be
of outstanding merit, as well as copies of the proposal review
criteria from the Office's Peer Review Manual and from the
applicable regulations.

Finally, in discussing the fact that the grant award was backdated to
cover "some preagreedupon costs,' I mentioned during the hearing that
such an arrangement suggests that assurances were given to the National
Partnership that the grant award would be forthcoming. Is this the case,
and if so, who gave these assurances?

(57)
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Hr. Verne L. Speirs
October 17, 1986
Page Two

Your cooperation in providing this informatiou is greatly appreciated.
Both this letter and your response will be incloded in th .! printed

hearing record.

Sincerely,

DaleE. KIldee
Chairman

Jr.
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U.S. Department of Justice

Office of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention

ICasAintort. D.C. 20311

31 OCT 1386

The Honorable Dale E. Rildee
Chairman
Subcommittee on Human Resources
Committee on Education and Labor
House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:

This is in response to your letter requesting information
regarding the National Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol
Abuse Among Youth to be included in the record of the hearing on
this subject.
The following materials are enclose& information concerning
the work of Aspen Systems related to the Partnership; copies of
documents regarding the peer review of the Partnersh.p
application; minutes from Board of Directors meetings; a
memorandum from the Off ice of General Counsel about theliability of the Partnership directors; and a listing of
Partnership expenditures up to June 30, 1986.
We have been unable to trace the source of the private fundsthat paid for preparation of the Partnership's application.
However, we understand this money was prcvided either by the
Partnership president, Mr. Rex Tompkins, or by the Miller
Brewing Company. Inasmuch as Federal grant funds were not used,
we have no records indicating the source of the payment.
In addition, in signing the assistance award, former OJJDP
Administrator Alfred Regnery approved the expenditure of funds
by the Partnership for project costs incurred prior to the date
of the grant award. I am enclosing a memorandum provided to the
OJJ013 project monitor concerning this subject. The date of the
award to the Partnership was October 10, 1935. However, in
order to cover the costs incurred in carrying oilt approved award
activities commenced between August 1 and October 10, the date
of the start of the project period was established as August 1,
1985. Had OJJDP wished to do so, it could have provided a full
12month project period beginning October 10 and approved costs
incurred between August 1 and October 10 as "preagreernent
costs." Either action is an allowable assistance award
procedure.
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I trust this information will prove helpful to the Subcommittee.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of additional
assistance in the Subcommittee's inquiry into this matter.

Enclosures
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National Partnership
to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse Among Youth
1110 Vermont Avenue. NW. Su 4e 428
Wnsrgc D C 20005
Tetept-tone 202/42C-2940

MEMO

TO: Frank Porpotage
FROM: Alexandra W. Rollins
DATE: 25 September 1986

RE: Expenses incurred by the National Partnership prior to October
1, 1985 : $12,079.91

The total amount paid out for goods and services prior to October 1, 1985
is 812,079.81. This number includes work and expenses for the 4 consultants
and does not break out whether the expenses were charged to the grant or
private accounts.

Further, it does not take into consideration work done by either Mr. Thompkins
or Ms. Goodwin, but paid for subsequent to October 1, 1985. Those records
are not easy to find and computations would have to be done on a per diem
basis. Equipment or work contracted for prior to October 1 is not included
either.

64-942 0 - 87 - 3 6 4
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NATIONAL PARTNERSHIP TO PREVENT DRUG AND ALCOHOL ABUSE
FINANCIAL REPORT FOR PERIOD ENDING JUNE 1986
EXPENDITURES TO DATE

CATEGORY ANOUNT

Personnel $284,545
Fringe benefits 47,519
Travel 40,063
Equipment 13,110
Supplies 22,593
Consulting/Contractual 188,831
Other 141,570
Taxes, interest expense, insurance 10,667

Total $748,898

6 5
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Aspen Systems GOP wation

MEMORANDUM

TO: Terry Donahue DATE: September 25. 1986

01FROM: Richard Rosenthal SUBJECT: Support to the National Partnership

At your request and as a result of my conversations with Roberta Dorn I am
providing the attached breakdown of costs incurred by Aspen Systems Corporation
in support of OJJDP's National Partnership initiative. As you requested, these
costs are categorized according to specific tasks or functions performed by
Aspen. In addition, the costs have been identified for the periods prior to,
and after January 5, 1985, as requested by you.

I have also attached for your assisttsce an annotated list of all task orders/
relevant corre:pondence issued by OJJOP authorizing Aspen to perform the
activities associated with the National Partnership.

If I can be of further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.

pc: Roberta Dorn, OJJDP



64

Aspen S.-stems Corporation

ATTACHMENT A

Summary of Expenditures for
National Partnership Related Tasks

COST COST

(pre 1/4/85)* (post 1/4/85)

I. Aspen Labor $20,872 $53,713

Il. Other Direct Ccsts
1. Travel, Aspen Staff 1,649 1,788

2. Postage/Expressage 1,182 2,147

3. Consultants/Fees 28,296 36,752

4. Consultants/Expenses 15,408 17,252

5. "Hardship" Travel/Expenses 4,219 20,971

6. Graphics/Audiovisual 20,934 16,752

7. -Conference/hotel/Meeting Expenses 17,678 84,718

8. Word Processing 1,391 3,499

TOTALS: $111,629 $237,592

*Previously documented in January 15, 1985 letter to A. Regnery from R. Rosenthal
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AmxnSwen1,0,quAmim

ATTACHMEWf 8

Annotated List of Task Orders/Rclevant Correspondance
Authorizing National Partnership Activities

1. 12/4/84, Memo, R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Use of S. Jacobs, Consultant

2. 12/5/84, Memo, R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: "Hardship" Travel Authorization

3. 12/14/84, Memo, R. Dorn to E. Grigg, cc. R. Rosenthal: Use of J. Hawkins,
Consultant

4. 1/9/85, Memo, R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Revised "Hardship" Travel Instruction

5. 1/14/85, Task Order V., R. Dorn through J. Wootton to R. Rosenthal: Use of
Expert Consultants, J.D. Hawkins and others

6. 1/15/85, Task Order VI., R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Provide Facilitators/
Planners for Williamsburg Meeting

7. 1/15/85, Task Order VII., R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Use of reporter for
proceedings

8. 2/12/85, Memo. R. Dorn through A. Regnery to R. Rosenthal: Curtailment of
consultant S. Jacobs', activities

9. 2/13/85, Memo, R. Dorn through A. Regnery to R. Rosenthal: Detailed
description of consultant S. Jacobs' assignment

10. 2/26/85, Task Order Xl., R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Use of Professional
Facilitator for Steering Committee

11. 5/16/85, Task Order 14, R. Dorn through J. Wootton to R. Rosenthal: Use of
R. Kramer, Consultant

12. 5/29/85, Task Order 17, R. Dorn through J. Wootton to R. Rosenthal: NCJRS
Responsibilities for July Meeting

13. 6/17/85, Amendment to TO 14, R. Dorn to R. Rosenthal: Use of R. Kramer,
Consultant

14. 9/6/85, Task Order 34, R. Dorn to M. Levine: Use of Garrett O'Keefe,
Consultant

15. 9/9/85, Task Order 35, R. Dorn to M. Levine: Use of R.Thomkins, D. Gerrish.
S. Keker, R. Coursen, C. Stover, Technical Assistance Providers

16. 9/24/85, Task Order 38, R. Dorn through J. Wootton to M. Levine: Use of
Event Planner and Public Relations Firms for October 10, 1985 Meeting

17. 10/7/85, Task Order 41, R. Dorn to M. Levine: Provide Consultant Comment on
Partnership Proposal

18. 10/1E/85, Task Order 42, R. Dorn to M. Levine: Provide Consultant Comment on
Partnership Proposal

19. 1/13/86, Task Order 66 (retroactive), R. Dorn to M". Levine: Use of P.
Schneider for 1-day planning meeting

20. 3/26/86, Task Order 74 (retroactive to 9/23/85), R. Dorn through J. Wootton
tnrough A. Regnery to M. Levine: Use of B. Certner, Consultant

68
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CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 225(d)(I)(Bgi), I hove determined, through peer review, that the
proposed program, The Notional Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse, is of

such outstanding merit that the awort1 of the gront without competition is justified.

Alfred S. Regnery
Administrator

s
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Memorandum

Subject

Peer Review Findings for the
National Partnership Proposal

Dote

9 OCT 1.9135

To

Alfred S. Regnery, Administrator, OJJDP
'ames Wootton, Deputy Administrator

Terrance Donahue, Acting Director, SED
Douglas Dodge, Assistant Director

Eton,

F.M. Parpotage, II
Program Manager, Sge74441\--

L,2%2Z/
Pursuant to Section 225(d)(IXB)li) of the Act and the accompaning regulation of 28 CFRPart 34, a peer revi,w was conducted an October - (31,1985 an the National Partnership
Proposal. Two of the individuals initially selected to participate in the peer review weredicmissed. Dr. William Butynski excused himself due to his feelings of an appearance ofa nflict of interest." Ms. Carolyn Burns was asked to resign due to her professional
ties to one member of the Board of Trustees of the National Partnership.

A three-member board was subrequently convened and included:

Mr. Carl Hampton, Criminal Justice Coordinator, National Institute of Drug Abuse,Rockville, Maryland;

Mr. Thomas R. Ascik, Attorney at Law, Arlington, Virginia;

Mr. Patrick McGuigan, Director, Judicial Reform Project, The Institute for Governmentand Politics, Washington,D.C.

The written statement and findings of all three individualsare attached. All three found"the program outstanding and award is justified without competition and suggestionswere made far improving the application." Accordingly, I shall make their comments
known to the applicant if award is approved.

Attachments

6Lvt E
04,
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TI LOMAS K. ASCII:
ATToRNY V AT LAN.

AI1 N,flh1lI KYNT STIIKET
6105

ARLINGTON. V1.11:INIA

5V.4.1 NO5

WORK HISTORY

PRESENT Attorney-at-law, solo practicioner, Arlington,
Virginia.

Executive Director, The Clearinghouse on
Educational Choice, Arlington, Virginia.

1982-1985 Senic Research Associate, National Institute of
Education, U.S. Department of Education. In turn:
Special Assistant to the Director, Director of
Planning and Program Development, and Senior
Research Associate, Program on Law and Public
Management, Washington, D.C.

1981-1982 Special Assistant to the Executive Secretary,
Office of the Secretary, U.S. Department of
Education, Washington, D.C.

1977-1981 Public Policy Analyst, The Heritage Foundation,
Washington, D.C.

1977 Freelance writer and editor, Washington, D.C.

1976-1977 Englis4 teacher, Gonzaga College High School,
Washington, D.C.

1973-1976 Infantry officer, U.S. Marine Corps.

1973 Apprentice reporter, The Washington Star,
Washington, D.C.

1972 Assistant librarian, Anne Arundel County Public
Libraries, Annapolis,

EDUCATION

1983 J.D., George Mason University School of Law,
Arlington, Virginia.

1976 Six credits, Georgetown University Graduate
School of English.

1974 Marine Corps Infantry Officer School.

1973 Marine Corps Officer Candidate School.

1972 B.A., St. John's College, Annapolis, Maryland.

7 2
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MEMBERSHIPS

Virginia State Bar
Educational Excellence Network
American Educational Research Association

PUBLICATIONS

1985
"School Desegregation and Black Achievement," American
Education, forthco:hing, August, 1985

1984
"Looking at Some Research on What Makes an Effective School,"
Blueprint fey Educational Reform, Connaught Marshner,
editor, Free Congress Research and Education Foundation.

"The Courts and Education," A New Agenda for Education,
Eileen Gardner, editor, The Heritage Foundation.

1981
Studies for the Heritage Foundation:
The Reagan Block Grant ProrJsals and Congressional Revisions
Block Grants and Federalism: Decentralizing Decisions
Draft Registration: Congress, the Supreme Court, and the

Separation of Powers

1980
Studies for the Heritage Foundation:
The Role of Campaign Contributions in the 1980 Senate Elections
Postponing Decisions: The Lameduck 96th Congress
Fair Housing Amendments: Collision Between Pr_:.erty Rights and

Civil Rights
The Balanced Budget Amendment: An Economic and Constitutional

Review
Congress and the Supreme Court: Court Jurisdiction and School

Prayar
The Abortion Right: "A Constitutional Right of Unique Character"

1979
Studies for the Heritage Foundation:
Restricting Political Action Committees: H.a. 4970
The Anti-Busing Constitutional Amendment
Electoral College Reform
Taxpayer Financing of Elections: Government as a Special Interest
Affirmative Action in the Civil Service: The State of the Art
Restricting Political Action Committees: An Update
The Department of Education
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1978
Studies for the Heritage Foundation:
Civil Service Reform and Government Reorganization
ERA Extension: Update on the Arguments
Tuition Tax Credits Proposals
District of Columbia Representation: "As Though It Were a State"
The Drug Regulation Reform Act
Airline Deregulation

1977
Studies for the Heritage Foundation:
The ERA: Is Seven Years Enough?
National Flood Insurance: The End of a Partnership?
Sunset Proposals: Can They Reform the Bureaucracy?

PUBLIC TESTIMONY

1981 Before the Subcommittee on the Constitution of the
Judiciary Committee of the U.S. Senate, concerning
Congress power over the federal judiciary pursuant to
Article III of the Constitution.

1979 Before the state lc, ;latures of Kentucky and Alaska,
concerning the proposed constitutional amendment
providing for representation for the District of
Columbia.

1978 Before the state legislatures of Pennsylvania and Ohio,
concerning the proposed constitutional amendment
providing for representation for the District of Columbia.
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OCTOBER 9, 1985

REVIEW OF "A PROPOSAL FOR THE NATIONAL PARTNERSHIP TO PREVENT DRUG
AND ALCOHOL ABUSE," SUBMITTED TO THE OFFICE OF JUVENILE JUSTICE AND
DELINQUENCY PREVENTION PROGRAMS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

Reviewed by Thomas R. Ascik
Attorney at Low
1611 North Kent Street
Arlington, Virginia 22209
703-525-1505

Overall Evaluation

'his proposal may well be an "outstanding opportunity to achieve the goals and objectives
(-)f the Juvenile Justice Act." A great deal of work has put in to round up an iMpressive
list of people who have committed themselves to active involvemer,t in the project.
This ilst.includes the President and the First Lady themFe-1 -.K. Certainly, the "visibility
;est"1-,7Ps been passed. This project will get public attentie-,.

i addition, one of the stated purposes of the project, to tind out what works and to be a
esource tor ;he replication of workable projects at other sites, is wisely conceived and

may protect th's project from the unsuccessful fote of numerous "top-down"
interventions of tne pmt.

T;ie intergovernm,--,/tf aspect of this project its involvement of notional, state, and
local .scurces, is another safeguard against failure. In addition, the private sector
real.), dominates the public sector in this proposal. That is probably the only way
something like this can succeed.

There ore some deficiencies probably correctable that do, however, call into
question how good this "opportunity" really is. In brief, they ore:

I) There is a very noticeable lock of church involvement in the project. I sow mention of
only two mentions of participation by churches. Is it presumed that priests, robbois, and
ministers have nothing to say about these problems? In addition, don't churches conduct
their own prevention programs these days?

2) There may be less than meets the eye in the media involvement in this project. Are
they agreeing to just run public service announcements, or ore they agreeing to seriously
consider whether their own programs and ads actually contribute to the problem?

3) It is not obvious that there k a "need for notional coordination" to attack this problem.
This is merely asserted but not proved. It could hove been proved by showing how local
efforts hove foiled or by showing that the source of the problem is notional (the national
drug trade, for example). Is a notional figure like the President more effective in
exhortig kids to remain free from drugs or is a kid's father, priest, or teacher?

4) The personnel is heavily from the health community and lightly from the school
community. This should be adjusted.

5) The conception of the project is entirely from on empirical point of view. The section
on theory is almost entirely devoid of theory. It is almost exclusively descriptive. Is there
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na theoretical work in theis field? Or is this proposal deficient in presenting it?
Presumably, since this project aims to prevent these behaviors, some theoretical work is
necessary.

6) It is clear that the "experts," the empirical scientists and the health workers, are going
to dominate the actual substance of what programs are eventually adopted by the
project. The private sector is likely to have the jab ta sell the adopted programs. The
proposal as a whale is short on what substantive programs will be adopted. It is difficult
to assess the opportunity presented by this proposal when so little of the eventual
substance is known.
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Patrick B. McGuigan is Co-Editor of Criminal Justice Reform: A Blueprint. Mr.
McGuigan is Director of the Judicial Reform Project of The Institute for Government
and Politics , Free Congress Foundation. In addition to four books, previously published
in the general subject area of crime and delinquency, he has a book forthcoming on the
topic: Crime and Punishment in Modern America, of which he is co-editor. He holds the
B.A. degree in History, and a M.T:ir-1 History in Medieval History.

Mr. McGuigan is on the Board of Advisors for RESTTA, and a recognized expert in the
area of juvenile justice as related to minority issues.

77



October 9, 19S5

MEXORANDUM

From; Patrick R. McGuigan VeLta
Co-Director
Institute for Government and Politics

75

To: Frank Porpotage, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

Re: National Partnership to Prevent Alcohol and Drug Abuse

I have devoted substantial time and energy to a peer review of the proposed

grant. I believe this program offers a unique and outstanding opportunity to achieve

the goals and objectives of the Juvenile Justice Act. The incidence of drug-related

crime and socill problems is well-documented not only in this grant, but also in the

research documents I peruse r...-ularly in my work. The program concept is sound and

sufficiently specific that I am confident it will'promote the pri.--iry goal of reducing

drug and alcohol abuse among young people.

The mechanism described in this grant for carrying out the program cept is
particularly viable. Further, the ideas described here_are exciting in that they

build on effective community-based models.

To summarize my views after careful analysis of the proposal:

* the statement of the problem is pointed and determined, yet not infused with
the panic-stricken quality so frequently encountered in the literature focusing
on drug abuse prevention and education.

* the definition of objectives is clear and understandable. The objectives are
quite focused and specific, with admirable restraint in the description of what
is achievable given the resources and personnel desired by the applicant.

* the project design is perhaps the most outstanding portion of the application.
-Here is a "real world" program with immlnently achievable objectives and a
specific plan to move.

* the management structure is straightforward and dictated by the scope of the
concept.

* given.the experience and credibility of the consultants and professional staff
(insofar as those are defined in this application), the organizational capability
to move on this problem is apparent -- given sufficient resources and time to
implement the concept.

* the costs described herein are entirely reasonable, given the reach and scope
of the program required to implement the concept.

Of all the specific steps and programs described herein to achieve the program

goals, I was cost enthusiastic about the Town Meeting plan of action. These problems

will only be resolved by free men and women acting in their own communities. The grant

applicant appears to understand that solutions can not be "parachuted in" to local

communities. Related to this, I have only one specific proposal for improving the

application and the program concept: The national, state, anchor city and town/county
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partnerships -- and the various committees and working groups flowing therefrom --

might be most effective if a majority (certainly more than one-fourth) of the

membership came from citizen and local-based organizations. Service providers and

other professionals have a role to play, but a specific willingness to learn from

local activists who are already tackling these problems will only strengthen the

application -- and ultimately the National Partnership as a whole.

With these modest suggestions for improvement, I believe the program is oustanding.

The award is justified without competition even in the absence of the suggested

elevation of the role of citizen and community activists.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DATA

Carl S. Hampton

Mr. Hampton is Criminal Justice Coordinator far the Prevention and Communications
Branch of the the Notional Institute on Drug Abuse, within the Alcohol, Drug Abuse and
Mental Health Administration in the Department af Health and Human Services.

A native af Chicago, Illinais, Mr. Hampton was graduated with a Bachelars degree fram
the University of Illinais, having majored in criminalogy and social problems. He
received a Masters degree in Public Administritian from the University of California in
Las Angeles, specializing in carrectionial administration. These academic credentials,
cambined with diversified wark experience in aH components of the criminal justice
system, with the exception of law enforcement, (caurts, institutions, prabation and
parole for juveniles and adults, males and females), has ranged from the south side of
Chicago ta East Las Angeles ta Washington, covering 15 years, a the County, State and
Fede- al level af Government. He hos specialized in policy formulation, progrom
development, planning and training far treatment and rehabilitation programs af
offenders. He has been affiliated, as on adjunct faculty prafessar, with universities and
calleges in the last ten years to include Pepperdine University in Califarnia, and the
American University for Administration of Justice.

The highlights of his management and administrative assignmerits have included CriminalJustice Caardinatar for the Special Action Offfice of Drug Abuse Prevention in the
Executive Office af the President, Praject Directar for the Management Cansultant
Team to the Department of Labor Correctional Manpower Prc-Triol and institutional
Programs, Assistant Regional Administrotor far the Califarnia Narcatics Treatment ond
Control Civil Commitment Program. His leadership in various community services have
included Assaciote Directar af the 0E0 CAP Agency in Los Angeles, Directar af a
neighborhood association in Watts, Manager of a camplex of Governmental services in
Venice, Califarnia, and group leader in a neighborhood center in Chicaga. His primary
case work interest has been with disadvantaged yauth, alcoholic and drug offenders.

Mr. Hampton has authared ond directed the develapment of many publicatians and is thehalder of numerous awards from prcfestional and civic graups ranging from The League
of United Latin American Citizens in Venice to Letters of Ccmmendatian fram the
Executive Office of the President. He is a distinguished military candidate from Officer
Candidate School and a former Captain in the United States Army Field Artillery with
command exerience.

He has three children.
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PEER REVIEW

of the

National Partnership to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse

Application if 5-0367-7-NY c(Ncme of ReviewerC- 4
Dote

Review Criterio

The application is to be reviewed based upon the extent it meets the following selection
criteria: (I) the problem to be addressed by the project is clearly stated; (2) the
objectives of the proposed project ore clearly stated; (3) the intrinsic nature of the
program's conceptual focus has merit; (4) the project design is sound and contains

elements directly linked to the achievement of project objectives; (5) the project
monagement structure is rdequote to the successful conduct of the project; (6)
organizational ccpability 1: demonstrated at a level sufficient to successfully support the
project; ond (7) budgeted costs are reasonable in comparison to the activities proposed to

be undertaken.

Please mcke written comments on the attached pages on each review criteria.
Numerical volues have been assigned to each criteria. The values applied should be

reflected in your written comments.
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APPENDIX A

PECULATION ON COMPETITION AND PEER REVIEW POLICY

Federal RetIster I V 50. No. 149 / Friday. August 7. 1983 I Rules and Regulations

1. 73 MI 1(98 im aMended by adding
paragraphs ()) and (k)

111144 Yserimoon or hsower Bums al
Invesugatket arta

III The foilowing system of records b
antnot from 5 U.S.C. 53 .1( 1c1131.10.
(e1(1). (.1(4) (C) and (H). In and (BP

(1) Nattonal Canter faith. Analysrs of
Violent -tme (NCAV J(JLSTIMI FBI-
015). These exemptions apply onh to the
extent that information In this system is
sublect to examtmoon pureuant to 5
U.S.C. 35a (I)(1) and RM.

00 Exemptions from the particular
subsectiona are justified for tha
following reasons:

111 From subsection Inii3) bennune
pnoviding the accounting of disclosures
to tha subject could prematurely reveal
Investigative interest by the Fal and
other lase enforcenero :seances. thereby
pnoviding the individiel an opportunity
to impede an actin livestigation.
destroy or aloft evidence. end possibly

'oder harm to violeat crime victims
d/or witnesses. I

(2) From subsectiois (d). (e)(4) (C) and
OIL and (f) because diaclosure to the
subject could interfere with enforcement
proceedings of a animal jostles agency.
reveal the identity of a conficiettial
source. result In an =warranted
invasion of another'S privacy. reveal the
details of a serisitiverinvestigatire
teci.M. mu. or endanger the life and
safety of law enforcement personnet
poienidal violent cime victims. and
Minuses. DI 'bun also could prevent
the flown &pm...rens/on of a violent or .
exceptionally danger's= criminal
Notre should Ise or she modify Ls or
her =B&W of operation In order to
evade law enforcement. Also.
specifically from subsecton
Which permit, an individual to request
amendment of a mead. because the
nature of the information In the system
Is etch that an individual criminal
offender would frequently demand
amendment of derogatory infonnatlon.
forcing the FBI to conttnuously
retrograde its criminal investgauuns In
an attempt to resolve questions of
accuracy. etc. I

(3) From suivectloo (gi because the '
e inem Is except from the access and
amendment p7ovisioes of oubsection (d).

(4) From subsectinn (e)(1) becanseit Is
not always possible to establish
relevanceand necessity otthe .

Information at the time it x obtained or
developed. Information, the relevance
and =cant, of which:nay not her
readib apparent frequently can prover -

to be of investigative value at a later
date ond time.

(FR Doc 33-16= Filed 4-1-aSi RAS am)
1140.4 CLOS .1111.-41

Otte. of Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention

DI CFA Part 34

Competitions/wit Peer Revrew Policy

AGINCO Office of juvenile justice and
Delinquency Prevention. justice.
ecnosc Final Competition and Peer
Review Regulation.

SUUNAJIT:The Office of juvenile justice
and Delinquency Prevention (01(17P) Is
publishing tto.1 regulation to
implement the competition and peer
review requirements of section r..3(d) of
the (uremia justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act of 1974. 41 U.S.C. 5501. et
seq.. as amended (Pub. L 93-413. as
emended by Pub. L 94-503, Pub. L. 95-
US. Pub, L 96-509. and Pub. L 96-173)
(banunafter *Act-). The regulation
poems the award of categorical grant
hmds under Part B. Subpart 11 ISpecial
Emphasis Prevention and Treatment
Progamel. end Part C (National
institute for juvenile justice and
Delinquency Prevennon--NBIDP) of the
Act
erevicrrve DATt This regulation Is
affective August Z 1945.
FOX latirflast tiaiOnsieTIOa COSTAL-Ts
Dr. lames C. Howell. Office of the
Deputy 4,-'-riniftrator. 0)113P. 633
Indiana A. mue. NW. Room 744
Washington. D.C. D3501: telephone M32/
773-5911.
.5UPISIMENTARY IMPORMATIOPC

Background Information
This regulation =maim. to new

requirement in the Act. The statute
previously contained no requirement for
up of conopeti bon or peer review in the
awardof funds to programa and projects
under either Part &Subpart II. or Part C
of the Act.

Exclusioos
rationale for excluding:spec:182

types of funding from the sco; sot the
competition and peer renew regulation
warrants further explanation.

(1) Exclusion of prefects releged for
fondles prior to October = :284. The
replatten excluder projects for which
initial applications werereceived mir
to oron OctoberIZ 1944. and which
nrarive(d) en Initief award after such
date a 34.2(b))...Theptimary basia for-
this exclaim:tie-that Section =i)dI(p of
the AcrepariEes that"newprogramr

31381

selected after the effective date of the .
Act shall be renewed before selection
and thereafter se appropriate through a
formai peer review process . ".
Further, our review of the legislative
In:col' of die 1954 Amendments to the
Act indicates that Congress intended
that the provision apply only to 'new"
programs. not those already selected
and hem; proceised for funding. The
axclusion sonnet to proiecta under the
"Pnvate Sonar Corrections' Program.
(Sae discussion under Comment I.)

(2) Exclusion of procurement
carrtracU. The regulation does not cover
procurement ContraCtl (1 34.101)). This is
because Offi3Ps procurement concerto
are already subject to other Federal
laws (the Federal Property and
Administrative Services Act) and
repletion. (the Federal Acquioition
Regulation). which severely Ulm soli
source contract awards, and because
bath the statute and Ito lemslative
hiotory maks specific reference to
"as Mature awards and not to the-
procurement of goods and services for
the benefit and use of the government.

(3) Enciusion of competitively
awarded Part C programs and projects
(rom peer review. These are excluded
by statute. The pew review requirement
applies only to assistance awards under
Pert B. Subpart U. at the Act and
noncompentise Pert C awards. (See
&omission under Comment 6.)

(4)i:relation o f contintroCon projects.
Seaton 344c) provides that the hooding
of "continuation" awards is axcepted
from tha regulation. This exception
applies to awards for the continuation of
project activities which weze initially
funded under projects selected for
award prior to or on October 11.. 1984.
When continuation awarcla an made
that extend the projected or anticipated
project completion data. 01113P intends.
by use of this limiting language, to fund
only those specific follow-on activities
whtch were within the scope of anti
consistent with the original purposes
and objectives at Ma project.

(5)Exciusion of other types of
projects Other specific types of projector
are excluded from log reifulaticm For
example. Federal Inter-agency fund
transfers are excluded because It would
serve ni purpose to include them.

irsnerration of Subprzt C.F.:elegancy
lepedited Review

Section =)d)(3) of the Act provides -
that -the Administrator ' shall
provide for emergency expedited . --
consideration of penrearproposals
what necessary to avoid any delay :
which would preclude carrying our the
pregram.-
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24.4 Xdoitionst competitive atiollotton
menerements and preanamea

(al Applications for vents. Any
applicant eligible far assistance may
submit on or before such submission
deadline date or datea as the
Administrator may establish in program
announcement,. an application
containing such pertinent information
aad in accoraance with the forms and
instructions as presented therein and
any additioaal forms and Instructions as
may be specified by the Administrator.
Su= application shall be executed by
the acmilcant or an official or
representative of the applicant duly*
authorized to make sucn application and
to assume on behalf of the applicant the
obligations imposed by law, applicable
regulations. and any additional tenni
and conditions of tbe assistance award.
The Administretor may requite any
applicant eligible for assistance under
this Subpart to submit a preliminary
proposal for review and approval prior
to the acceptance of an application-

flo) Caoperoore coranytonents. (1)
Eligible parties tLay enterinto
cooperative arrangements with other
eligible parties, including those in
another State. to apply for assistance.

121 A thint application made by two or
more applicants for assistance under
this Subpart may have separate budgets
corresponding to the programs, services
and actividea perforated by each of the
joint applicants or may have combined
budget If joint applications present
separate budgets. tbe Administrator
may make separate awards, ar may
award a single assistance award
authorising separate amounts for each
of the joint applicants.

(c) Ere110 On of opplications
submitted underpart C of the Acs All
applications filed in accordance with
1 24.1 of this Subpart for assistance with
Part C funds shall be evaluated by the
Administrator through officers.
employees. and/or such expens or
consultants engaged for this purpose as
the Administrator determine, are
specially gualliled io the particalar Part
C program area covered by the
announced program. no-program
announcement shall clearly state the
application review procedures (peer
review or other) to be used for each
competitive Part C program
anommeetatnt.

(d) Applicant's pmformance on prior
o ward. Where the applicant has -
previously received an award from
OPP or another Federal agenqu the
applicant's compliance or
noncompliance with requirements
applicable to such prior award as- .

reflected in past written evaluation
reporta and memoranda on performance.

and the completeness ofrequired
submissions. may be considered by the
Administrator. However. in any caro
where the Administrator proposes to
deny assistance based upon the
applicant's noncompliance with
tequirements applicable to a prior
award. the Administrator shall do so
only after affording the applicant
reasonable notice and an opportunity to
rebut the proposed hula far denial of
assiatance.

(e) Disposition of Applications. On the
basis of competition and applicable
review procedures completed pursuant
10 dile part. the Administrator will
either:

(1) Approve the application for
funding. in whole or in put for such
amount of funds, and subject to such
conditions as the Administrator deems
necessary or desirable for the
completion of the approved proleet

(2) Determine that tha applicadon Ls of
acceptable quality for funding, in that it
meats minimum criteria. but that the
applica don must be disapproved for
funding because it did not rank
sufficiently high in relation to other
applications approved for funding to .

qualify for an award baud on the level
of funding allocated to the program: or

(3) Reject the application for failure to
meet tha applicable selection criteria at

sufficiently high level to )ustily en
award of fuods or for any other reason
which the Administrator determines
adversely impacts upon the applicant's
capability to successfully carry out the
project

(f) Notification of disposition. ne
Ath0021.1tra tor will notify the applicant
in writing of the disposition of the
applicadon. A sigaed Grant/
Cooperative Agreement form will he
issued to notify the applicant of an'
approved project application.

(id Mealy. dote of approved grant.
Federal financial assistance is normally
available only with respect to
obligations incurred subsequent to the
e ffective data of an approved assistance
prolect.The effective date of the projed
will be set forth in tha Grant/
Cooperative Agreement form. Recipients
may be reimbursed for costs resulting
from obligations incurred before tba
e ffeedva date of the assistance award if
such costa are authorized by tha
Administrator in the notificadon of grant
award or subsequently in writing. and .
otherwise would tre allowable as costs
of the assistance award under
applicable guidelines. reguladons. and *-
grant terms and conditions-

Subbed BPirot Review

1 14.100 Purpose and so014=041117/.

(a ) This subpart of the regulation
implements =bon 225(d)(2( of the
juvenile justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act of 1974. as amended.
This provision requires that projects
funded under new programs selected for
categorical assistance awards under the
Special Emphasis diocedonary grant
program (section 224). liter October 12.
1954. shall be reviewed before selection
and thereafter Is appropriate through a
formal peer review process. Such
process must utilize experts (other than
officials and employees of the
Department of (uence) in fields related
to the subject matter of the proposed
Drain=

(b)Thia subpart of the regulation
applies to ail grant, cooperative
agreement. and other assistance awards
selected by the Administrator. OPP.
after October 12.1984, under Part B.
Subpart U. secticin =4. and awarda
under Part C that are being ©outdated
for noncompetitive award (and hence
subject to section =rol(1)(1d(i) of the ,
juvenile justice and Delinquency
Prevention Art 011974 (42 U.S.C. 5601)1.
except as provided In the Exceptions to ,

APPlicathlitY set forth below.

y 34.101 Ur:Odom to strtstethility.
The assistance and procurement

contract situadons spectSed in I 34.2
(a). (h). (O. (e). VI. (a). (4 and Il( of
Subpart A and all Part C awards
competitively funded pursuant to
srotion 2=(ti)(11(A) are considered by
OPP to be outside the scope of the
section =(d) peer review requirement
ell set forth io this subpart.

I 34.101 Peer review promnnured

The CTIDP peer review process will
be contained in an Off.IP Peer Revtew
Mantra which is currently under
development in consultation with tbe
Directors and other appropriate offleiale
of doe National Science Foundation and
the National institute of Mental Health.
In addition to specifying substantive and
procedural matters related to the peer
review process. the Manual will address
Such issues as standards of conduct.
corolla of Interest. compensadon of
peer reelawers. stn. The peer review
process far ail usistance awards
subject In this Subpart will be
conducted in a manner consistent with
this Subpart as implemented in the Peer

-Review ManuaL
-4 14.103 penned++.

. -"Peer review' means tha technical
evaluation by a group of experts (other
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OJJDP PEER REVIEW MANUAL

Office of the Administrator
Office af Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

Washington, D.0 20531
November 5, 1985

Purpose. This manual establishes guidance far peer reviewers employed by the Of fice af

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP). It supplements the Department of

Justice, OJJDP, Regulation an Campetition and Peer Review Policy, 28 CFR Part 34

(See Appendix A).

The OJJDP Review SysTem. Accamplishment of OJJDP's mission is dependent, to a large

extent, upan the success af the programs and projects it funds. In this regard, a critical

part af the pracess is the initial sekctian of projects far award. There are two main

stages in this pracess. The first is "peer review", the technical and pragrammatic

evaluation of praject applications using specific review criteria established in pragram

announcements. The second is "internal review", ta determine applicant compliance with

basic program and statutary requirements, to review the resuRs of peer review, and to

provide overall evaluations and pragram recommendations ta the Administrator.

"Supplementary review" may olso be obtained in addition to peer review and internal

review. The results af these reviews, if needed, wauld augment the peer review and

internal review processes.

Peer ReviewPurpase. The purpose of the peer review stage of the OJJDP review

system is to obtain advice on the technical and programmatic merit of grant opplicatians

(in the form of funding recommendations) in arder that OJJDP officials inay have the

benefit af an independent assessment af all applications under review. Thus, this stage in

the review system helps greatif irt the identification af those applications evidencing the

highest level of averall merit.
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Peer ReviewPolicy. It is the policy of the OJJDP to use peer review in the evaluation

of all assistance awards except those specifically excluded under the terms of the OJJDP

Competition and Peer Review regulation (See "Exclusions", 28 CFR Port 34). The Office

has used peer review in the evaluation of applications sut:Wnitted under competitive

program announcements (mostly in the case of research and evaluation projects, and to a

lesser extent, assistance awards) for several years. Therefore this policy is now modified

to expand the application of peer review to all types of assistance awards except those

otherwise excluded from coverage. OJJDP will also use peer review in areas where it is

not required, as determined to be appropriate. For example, peer review may be used for

competitively awarded research, developmental, or demonstration projects funded under

Port C of the Juvenile Justice Act.

Peer review recommendations ore advisory only and not binding on the OJJDP

Administrator except in the case of noncompetitive project applications that ore

determined through peer review not to be of such outstanding merit as to justify a

noncompetitive award. Although the Office's enabling legisleion (The Juvenile Justke

and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974, as amended) requires peer review for certain

applications, the final decision whether or not to fund on application rests solely with the

OJJDP Administrator. However, the Administrator will give great weight topeer review

recommendations in the selection of projects for oword.

Definitions. "Peer review" means the technical evaluation by a group of experts

qualified by training and experience in a particular area or field of juvenile justice or a

related field to be considered "peers" of applicants and give expert advice on the

technical and programmatic merit of assistance applications in those areas or fields.

.1,Q 3
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A "peer reviewer" is on individual qualified to perform peer review and who is not on

officer or employee of the Deportment of Justice.

A "Peer Review Group" (PRG) consists of three or more oFPr reviewers selected to

review, evaluate, and make recommendations ,.vith ., to o group of pre-applications

or applications submitted to OJJDP in response to a cc.,....eritive program announcement,

or to review o single noncompetitive application to determine whether it is of

outstanding merit. The work of a PRG may be conducted in person or by moil.

"Peer review recommendations" consist of actions (ranging from funding to denial) that

peer reviewers recommend to the Administrator on pre-applications or applications

submitted in response to a competitive program announcement, or on noncompetitive

applications.

An "internal reviewer" is on officer or employee of the Deportment of Justice qualified

by experience and expertise to conduct appropriate application/progrom reviews.

An "Internal Review Group" (IRG) consists of those internal reviewers selected to review

a group of pre-applications or applications submitted to OJJDP in response to a

competitive progrom announcement, to review a single noncompetitive applica!ion, or to

review and evaluate the recommendations of a PRG GS port of the internal review

process.
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"Supplementary reviews" are those performed by peer reviewers which are necessary for

particular programs or project applications: I) to address highly technical aspects of

applications which initial PRG members are not qualified to address; 2) to obtain

additional reviews in instances in which the initial PRG results do not represent a

consensus of opinion with respect to a funding recommendation; or 3) in the event of

conflicts of interest within the Peer Review Group, resulting in an insufficient umber of

reviews.

"Competitive" awards are those made under OJJDP program announcements (published in

the Federal Register), which inform the public of the availability of funds for specific

purposes and invite formal applications (or, in some instances, pre-applications).

"Noncompetitive" awards ore those made in the absence of program announcements

inviting applications. Such applications may be solicited by OJJDP or unsolicited, i.e.

submitted ot the initiative of the applicant.

"Finoncid review" refers to a determination of whether the proposed costs contained in a

formal application are allowable and adequately justified. This review is performed by

the Financial Management Grants Assistance Division, Office of the Comptroller, Office

of Justice Programs (OJP). (OJJDP is located within the organizational structure of the

OJP.)
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Number of Peer Reviewers. The number of peer reviewers constituting o PRG will vory

by progrom (as offected by the volume of opplicotions onticipoted or received). A

minimum of three peer reviewers will review eoch opplicotion, whether the review is

conducted through PRG meetings or by moil. The objective is to ensure o diversity of

bockgrounds ond perspectives.

Reviewer Quolificotions. Peer Reviewers sholl exhibit: I) generolized knowledge of

juvenile justice or reloted fields; or 2) speciolized knowledge in oreos or fields oddressed

by the applications to be reviewed under o porticulor progrom; or 3) o combinotion of I)

ond 2). Use of these reviewer criterio Will be governed by the review tosk. For exomple,

in the cose of an opplicotion, or o group of opplicotions, on which the Administrotor

wishes odvice with respect to their volue to the field, greater weight would be assigned

to the first criterion. However, in the cose of o group of opplicotions submitted in

response to o highly technicol or speciolized progrom oreo, greoter weight would be

ossigned to the second criterion.

Peer Review Group Pool. 0./JDP will maintain a "pool° of potentiol peer reviewers, from

which peer reviewers sholl be selected. Any individuol with requisite expertise moy be

included in the pool ot his or her request or by OJJDP. This pool is mointoined primorily

for peer review purposes. Every effort will be made to include o sufficient number of

notionolly recognized ond interested experts to meet the Office's peer review needs.

Experts ore continuolly odded os OJJDP stoff ond of ficiols leorn of additionol experts not

presently in the pool.

106
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Selectian af Reviewers. A Peer Review Graup shall be created far the purpose af

reviewing applications (ar preapplicatians) submitted under each program announcement

ar ta review a single noncompetitive application being considered far fundiny an the basis

of outstanding merit. Selection of peer reviewers will be made from the peer review

group pool. The OJJDP Program Manager will specify the particular areas of expertise

applicable to each review task. Those reviewers within the pool possessing such areas of

expertise shall be identified as "eligible reviewers". In addition, the Program Manager

may add other qualified experts ta the list of eligible reviewers. The Program Manager

shall then select from among the eligible reviewers, using the fallowing criteria: I) prior

performance an similar tasks (if any), 2) applicability of expertise relevant ta the

particular task, and 3) where appropriate, e.g., in the case of a requirement of several

typus of expertise ta accomplish a particular review task, representation of the

necessary range of types of expertise.

In addition, the Program Manager shall give particular attention ta avoiding the creation

of unbalanced PRGs. It is important that such groups be structured ta provide broad

representation and many views an matters under the PRG's purview. Particular attention

will be given ta groups wha should be, but are nat presently, well represented. Same

general considerations that should help achieve reasonable balance in PRGs are the

fallowing: I) Individual qualificationseach member should have recagnized pertinent

expertise ar demonstrated ability as a reviewer, ar bath; 2) Fields of expertisewithin

reasonable limits, members' fields of specialty should be complementary within the

group; 3) Public impactwhere pertinent, same members should be representative of

regions, organizations, or segments of the public directly affected by issues under

consideration; 4) Academic impactmembers from the academic community should

represent small, medium,.and large institutions, as well as public and private

institutians. Whenever passible, concurrent ar successive selections of individuals from

107
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the some institution should be avoided; 5) Nonacademic impact--Representatives from

outside the academic community ore desirable in all instancesfrom both public and

private programs; i;) Underrepresented viewsspecial attention should be paid to

obtaining qualified reviewers from such underrepresented groups as minorities, women,

and the handicapped; 7) Age distribution--members should be selected from as brood a

range of age graups as is feasible; and 8) Geographic balancemembers should be drawn

from as broad a set of geographical areas as is feasible.

Selection of internal reviewers shall be based upon the level and type of expertise

required for the review task. Program Managers shall submit a peer review group

recommendation ta the cognizant Division Director, the Deputy Administrotar, and the

Administrator.

The Administrator, OJJDP, shall hove final approval authority over the camposition of

Peer Review Groups and Internal Review Groups.

Standards of Conduct. All peer reviewers employed by OJJDP ore "special Government

emplayees" and, as such, ore subject ta Deportment of Justice Standards of Canduct (28

C.F.R. -- See Appendix B).

Conflict of Interest. In addition to the general DOJ conflict of interest rules, set farth

in its Standards of Canduct, OJJDP peer reviewers ore subject to the following rules with

respect ta conflict of interest.

It is OJJDP policy to prohibit a PRG member from participating in the review of uny

application when he or she hos a conflict of interest. (Such a potential or real conflict

must be brought to the ottentian of the OJJDP Program Manager.) Accordingly, such
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PRG members may not receive copies, participote in site visits, or be present during the

PRG's discussion of any application in which there is a real or apparent conflict of

interest.

Individuals shall not be used as peer reviewers, or shall have oppropriate restrictions

placed on their participation, where the following relationships become known to the

OJJDP Program Manager: I) reviewer would be directly involved in the project, e.g., as

an advisory board member, a consultant, collaborator, or as a conference speaker whose

expenses would be paid from the grant; 2) reviewer is from the same institution or

orgonization os the applicant or was recently employed there; 3) reviewer and applicant

have a family relationship; 4) reviewer and applicont have been related as a student and

thesis odvisor or post-doctoral advisor; 5) reviewer and epplicant are known to be close

friends or open antagonists; 6) reviewer ond applicant have collaborated recently on work

related to the proposal; 7) reviewer has a proposal planned for submission or currently

under review within the same subject area; 8) reviewer has had a recent declination,

substantial budget reduction, or other unfavorable action from the OJJDP; 9) reviewer is

currently directly involved in a closely asociated project; 10) reviewer is under

consideration for a position at the applicant's institution or organization; I I) reviewer

has served in an official ar semi-official capacity in a closely associated organization; or

12) reviewer's organization has members (or closely affiliated officials; e.g., board of

trustees members) who serve in an official capacity with the applicant organization or

institution.

Standard Revkw Criteria. AU program and individual project applications subject ta

PRG review will, at a minimum, be evaluated using the fallowing standard review

criteria: I) the problem ta be addressed by the project is clearly stated; 2) the objectives

of the proposed project are clearly defined; 3) the project design is sound and
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contains program elements directly linked to the achievement of project objectives; 4)

1)-
project management structure is adequate to the successful conduct of the project;

5) oiyanizational capability is demonstraled at a level sufficient to successfully support

the p.7:ject; and 6) budgeted costs are reasonable in comparison to the activities proposed

to be underta.ken..

Each program announcement will indicate any additional program-specific review

criteria to be followed in peer review for that program.

Pre-Applications. In the case of programs for which a forge number of applications is

expected, pre-applications (also called "concept papers") may be required at the

Administrator's option. Generally, pre-applications will be initially reviewed by qualified

OJJDP staff to eliminate those which clearly lack sufficient merit ta qualify az potential

candidates for funding consideration, because of failure to meet minimum statutory or

program requirements. Minimum statutory (where applicab/e) and program requiremmts

will be specified in the program announcement. Staff review is not intended to eliminate

from further consideration pre-applications which might be considered marginal; rather,

this review would only eliminate those preoppHcations which hove such serious

deficiencies that further development of o formal application would constitute a waste

of applicant and OJJDP resources. An example is a proposal ta establish a diversion

program which is submitted in response to a program announcement requesting proposals

to provide intensive treatment far chronic violent offenders within correctional

institutions.

The Administratar may, as determined by the number of applications, program

complexity and other factors as may be appropriate, subject pre-applicstions ta the peer

review process prior ta the development of formal applications.
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Internal Review. This review shall be conducted to determine the level of applicant

compliance with specific program and statutory requirements. These requirements will

vary from ane program to the next and will be included in program announcements. In

addition, this review may include review and evaluation of the peer review process, peer

review recommendations, and the results of supplementary reviews, if any.

Internal review may be conducted by the Program Manager or by a farmally established

Internal Review Group. It shall result in an averall evaluation af the applicatian(s) and

the identification of major applicant strengths and weaknesses.

Peer Review Methods. Peer review may be conducted at meetings of peer reviewers held

under OJJDF oversight, through mail reviews, or a combination of both. Where

appropriate, site visits by PRGs may also be employed. The primary method of peer

review for eoch announced competitive program, including all review criteria to be used

by peer reviewers, will be specified in each program announcement.

Far peer review conducted through meetings, PRG members will be gathered together

far instruction, including review of this manual, and the OJJDP Program Manager will

oversee the conduct of review sessions. Where time ar other factors such as cast

preclude the convening of a PRG, mail reviews, with appropriate instructions, will be

used. Mail reviews will be the normal procedure used to evaluate competitive

applications when only a small number is submitted.

11 1
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The peer review process consists of two types of assessments of applications: quolitative

and quantitative. For each application, at least three primary reviewers will be assigned

to perform both of these types of review.

The qualitative assessment shall consist of written comments on each of the review

criteria set forth above.

The quantitative assessment shall consist of numerical values assigned to each of the

applications using the review criteria. These values shall reflect the written comments

on each criterion. The maximum score on each criterion shall be indicated in the

program announcement and shall total 100 points. By way of illustration:

I) Statement of the problem-20 points

2) Defin;*Ion of objectives-20 points

3) Project design-20 points

4) Management structureI5 points

5) Organizational capability-15 points

6) Reasonableness of costs-10 points

The results of peer review will be a relative aggregate ranking of applications in the

form of "Summary Ratings". These will be based on numerical values assigned by

individual peer reviewers, in the following manner:
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Outstonding (90-100 points): Recommended for funding. Highest priority for support

based on outstanding merit.

Good (70-89 points): Recommend for funding. Qualified for support if sufficient

funds are ovailable.

Fair (50-69 points): Qualified for support, provided specified deficiencies are

corrected.

Poor (Fewer than 50 paints): Should not be supported because the proposal has

serious deficiencies which disqualify it for funding support.

As determined to be oppropriate by OJJDP, when a group of opplications is reviewed by a

PRG at a meeting, eoch application may also be reviewed by up to three "secondary

reviewers". Their review shall be conducted far infarmationol and discussion purposes

only ond not be subject to the formol rating procedure. Their review will prepare them

to discuss the applicotion octively with the primary reviewers. Following completion of

the primary and secondary reviews, the entire PRG shall discuss each application. Such

discussion shall be led by the Program Monager. Following this discussion, the primary

reviewers then have the opportunity ta revise their criterion ond oggregote scares. The

averoge of these oggregate scores constitutes the PRG's recommendation with respect to

funding of each opplication.

Following completion of peer review, internal stoff review, ond any supplementory

reviews deNrmined to be necessary, the Program Manager shall forward the results of

the review process to the Administrotar, the cognizant Division Director and the Deputy

Administrotor, together with on overall summory of the review process and the resulting

recommendations. The peer review recommendations, in conjunction with the results of

internal review, ore intended to assist the Administrator in the consideration of

competing opplications and the selection of opplicotians for funding. Should the

-113



111

13

Administrator's final selections differ fram the PRG's recommendations, a written

statement af reasons shall be campleted by the Administrator and made a part of the

pragram record. The Administrator's final selections are also subject ta financial review

and appraval oy the Office af the Camptraller, OJP.

Review af Noncompetitive Applicatians. Noncompetitive assistance applicatians which

the Administrator determines warrant peer review, pursuant ta Section 225 (d)(l)(B)(0,

will normally be evaluated through mail reviews. Evaluatians of these applications shall

be canducted using the same methods as far competitive applicatians. Hawever, in

additian ta the six standard review criteria, a seventh criterian shall be used: the extent

to which the program (ar praject) concept is of autstanding merit. This criterian shall be

allocated an appropriate propartian af the possible 100 paints. In arder ta qualify far

funding, such applicatians must be determined thraugh the peer review pracess ta rate as

"outstanding" by a majority af the peer reviewers, and the remaining reviewer(s) must

rate the applicotian at least "goad".

Guidelines far Selection of Applicatians. All applications will, at a minimum, be subject

ta review based on the extent ta which they meet the "general selectian criteria"

specified in 28 C.F.R., Sec. 34.3 and any additianal campetitive applicatian requirements

and pracedures as specified in the pragram announcement.

In addition to a consideration af general and pragram-specific selection criteria, peer

review recammendatians, and any internal and supplementary reviews submitted far

cansideratian, the Administratar, in determining whether ar nat ta apprave applications

far funding under Part B, Subpart II, Section 224, af the Juvenile Justice Act, will

consider: I) the relative cost and effectiveness of the prapased praject in effectuating

the purpases af Part B; 2) the extent ta which the praposed praject will incarparate new

11 4
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or innovative techniques; 3) the extent to which the proposed project meets the

objectives and priorities of the State Formula Grant Plan, when a State plan has been

approved by the Administrator under Sec. 223(c) and when the location and scope of the

program makes such consideration appropriate; 4) the increase in capacity of a public or

private agency, institution, or individual applicant to provide services to address juvenile

delinquency and juvenile delinquency prevention; 5) the extent to which the proposed

project serves communities which have high rates of youth unemployment, school

dropout, and delinquency; and 6) where applicable, the adverse impact that may result

from the restriction of eligibility, based upon population, for cities with a population

greater than forty thousand, located within States which have no city with a population

aver two hundred and fifty thousand.

Each program announcement will set forth the specific criteria to be used in the review

of proposals submitted under it. However, the Administrator may use the above criteria

(and others as specified in the program announcement, such as geographic balance) in

making the find funding decision.

The Administrator's application of these considerations does not obviate use of peer

review results. Rather, in the context of peer review, these factors would be most

applicable in the event of closely competing applications. Thus, application of the above

considerations would help achieve a pattern of balanced fundingother things being

equal.

Confidentiality. PRG members must treat as absolutely confidential all application

materials, reviewers' comments, deliberations, and recommendations of the PRG.

Reviewers are prohibited from providing any information about the PRG's evaluation of

an individual application to the Project/Progrom Director or cognizant staf f of the

115
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proposed project. Also, application materials and information about the PRG's discussion

ar recommendations on particular applications must not be divulged to or discussed with

any persons not involved in the review process. Should a PRG member receive a request

for application material or information about review discussions or recommendations, the

individual requesting the information is to be referred to the OJJDP Program Manager.

Informing Reviewers of Action. OJJDP staff workloads normally preclude routine notice

to each reviewer of the action token on specific proposals. Reviewer inquiries should be

addressed to the OJJDP Program Manager.

informing Applicants of Reviewer Comments. Unsuccessful applicants will receive (on

their proposal only) either a summary of reviewer comments which specify application

deficiencies, or copies af reviewer rating and comment sheets (with reviewer

identification removed). Where summaries are provided initially, copies of reviewer

rating and comment sheets will be provided if an applicant specifically requests these

documents. Likewise, successful applicants may receive both summaries of reviewer

comments and verbatim copies of peer reviews (excluding reviewer identification). The

office contact person far such information is the Program Manager.

Management. A technical support contractor may assist the OJJDP Program Manager in

managing the peer review process.

Oversight and Audit. An OJJDP Competition and Peer Review Oversight Coordinator

shall: I) oversee the competition and peer review process, and 2) obtain on annual

independent assessment of the peer review selection process.

1.16
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Compensation. All peer reviewers will be eligible to be paid an established fee: $150.00

per day. Reviewers shall not be paid far time spent in the preliminary review and rating

of applications. PRG members shall be paid only for time spent in the conduct of PRG

meetings. Mail reviewers shall be paid only far time spent preparing written evaluations

of proposals. In addition, peer reviewers will be eligible for reimbursement for travel

expenses, including per diem in lieu of subsistence, as authorized by Section 5703 of

5, United States Cade.
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Memorandum

Subject Legal Principles Applicable to
Determining Personal Liability of
Directors of the National Partnership
to Prevent Drug and Alcohol Abuse
:Jmong Youth

Date

October 17, 19867----

To Fmm jAlkai)
Frank Porpotage J n J;,/Wilson
Program Manager Associate General Counsel
Special Emphasis Division, OJJDP OGC, OJP

This is in response to your request of September 26, 1986 for a
legal memorandum regarding whether the individual Board members
of the National Partnership can be held liable for decisions made
by Partnership management. I presume that you are asking
specifically about possible claims for costs incurred under the
grant that may be disallowed by OJJDP in the future.

There follows a general survey of legal principles based on
caselaw.

General Principles of Director Liability

As a general proposition, where a corporation is unable to, or
fails to, pay its debts, directors are not personally liable even
where the corporation is insolvent. This is consistent with the
basic principle of agency law that an agent (director) is not
responsible for acts done on behalf of the principal. Rather,
the directors' primary duty is to administer the assets of thR
corporation for the benefit of its owners and creditors (Marti-
v. Chambers, 214 F. 769). Directors, then, are neither insurors
nor guarantors of corporate debts.

However, there are certain circumstances under which directors
may be held personally liable for corporate debts: e.g., where
there is a constitutional, statutory or charter provision
imposing liability; where directors have agreed by contract to be
so bound; or where the director is found to be the alter-ego of
the corporation; that is, where the interest and ownership are so
closely united that, for all practical purposes, there is no
distinction between the individual director and the corporation
(Wittman v. Whittingham, 259 P. 63, 85 Cal. App. 140). The
alter-ego theory is primarily applied in the case of 'a closely-
held corporation.

118



116

2

Moreover, directors and officers may be held personally liable
for corporate obligations if the corporation has been so
defectively organized as to have neither de jure nor de facto
existence (Baker v. Bates-Street Shirt Co., C.C.A. Me., 6 F.2d
854). Although the de facto existence of a corporation will
generally excuse personal liability, directors have been held to
be personally liable, despite their good faith efforts, where
they contract debts in the name of a corporation which, for legal
purposes, has not yet come into existence at all. This rule is
consistent with the principle of agency law that he who acts as
agent for a nonexisting or legally incompetent principal is
personally liable to any person with whom the agent dealt who is
ignorant of the facts (American Soap Co. v. Bogue, 152 N.E. 393,
20 Ohio App. 375). Also see §4:02, "Nonprofit Enterprises: Law
and Taxation", attached.

Directors of Non-Profit Corporations

The officers and agents of a charitable corporation or
association are bound by the general rules concerning the
authority and responsibility of a fiduciary. Persons dealing
with them must take notice - at their peril - of the powers
granted to the charity by its articles of incorporation (Horton
v. Tabitha Home, 145 N.W. 1023).

Misfeasance

The primary remedy for corporate creditors is found pursuant to
statutory law rather than the common law. Many states have
enacted statutes making directors personally liable for corporate
damages or corporate debts. Most require that directors lie found
guilty of certain official neglect or misconduct, e.g.,
contracting for pre-incorporation debts, making excessive debts,
or making a prohibited loan (see, e.g., Rubinstein v. Kaprzak,
124 A. 362, 2 N.J. Misc. 323).

Generally, these statutes are considered to be remedial and
compensatory in nature as far as the interests of creditors are
concerned. As such, the courts have generally held that the
statutes should receive a broad, liberal construction (Broderick
v. Marcus, 261 NYS 625). Where, however, a statute is construed
to be penal in nature, courts have held that the statute must be
strictly construed in favor of the individual(s) sought tp be
charged.

!
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Moreover, the standard by which corporate directors/officers may
be excused from liability is one of "substantial compliance" with
the statute, e.g., overlooking a mere technical detail which does
not affect the substance, and which is therefore not sufficient
to impose liability.

Directors are liable only to the extent that a debt could be
enforced against the corporation (see e.g., Knower v. Haines, 31
F. 513).

Officers and agents may be individually liable for Injury
resulting from their own acts or conduct, particularly if such
injury results from their misfeasance rather than from
nonfeasance (Pease v. Parsons, 173 N.E. 406, 273 Mass. 111).
Such liability is determined by state statute. New York statute,
for example, imposes on directors of charitable corporations the
same liability imposed on stockholders, differing only in degree
(Marsh v. Kaye, 61 N.E. 177, 168 N.Y. 196).

Duty to Exercise Due Cra.e

The precise relations and duties of directors vary with the
character of the particular corporation and the nature of its
business, the understanding between the members of that
corporation or the administrative practices approved by them, and
the general usage in that type of corporate business. See §4:08,
"Nonprofit Enterprises: Law and Taxation", attached.

Some cases compare directors to "mandatories", persons who have
gratuitously undertaken to perform certain duties, and who are
therefore bound to apply ordinary skill and diligence - but no
more. "One who voluntarily takes the position of director, and
invites confidence in that relation, undertakes, like a
mandatory, with those he represents, or for whom he acts, that he
possesses at least ordinary knowledge and skill, and that he will
bring them to bear in the discharge of his duties." (Bosworth v.
Allen, 168 N.Y.167, 61 N.E.163).

A lack of due care in making a decision which causes harm to a
corporation can be actionable. However, directors may violate'
the duty of due care through lack of attention or failure to
adequately supervise officers or employees. A claim based on
failure to supervise generally involves n allegation that the
directors failed in their duty to detect or prevent mismanagement
by corporate officers or employees. Although widespread
delegation of authority for day to day corporate affairs is
permissable, such delegation does not relieve directors of their
obligation to exercise due care in the supervision of officers or
employees (Lowell Hoit & Co. v. Detig, 320 Ill App 179, 50 N.E.2d
602, 603 (1943)).
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Directors' Responsibility to Have
Knowledge of Corporate Activities

Directors are not personally liable for the acts or omisssions of
corporate officers or employees merely by virtue of their
position as directors. In order to establish liability, a
plaintiff must show either that the director had knowledge of the
wrongful act or that in the exercise of due care, the director
should have been aware of circumstances demanding corrective
action (Harman v. Willbern, 374 F Supp 1149,1163 (D Kan 1974)).

A lack of knowledge of wrongdoing is not an absolute defense.
The law does not recognize a "figurehead" director. Thus, a
director cannot close his eyes to what is going on around him in
the conduct of the business of the corporation, and thereby avoid
liability for failing to act. Directors are charged with
knowledge of facts which they reasonably should have known or
discovered in the discharge of their duties. A director is
expected to attend director's meetings and to have a general
knowledge of the financial condition of the company and of its
system of management. The courts have found violations of the
duty of due care where a director habitually failed to attend
director's meetings and where a director did not pay the
slightest attention to her duties and was unfamilier with
information contained in the company's annual financial
statements which would have alerted her to alleged fraud (Francis
v. United Jersey Bank, 87 NJ 15, 432 A2d 814 (1981)).

A director is generally entitled to rely on the integrity of
management if he has attended meetings and fulfilled his duty of
attention, and if such reliance is reasonable under the
circumstances. The extent to which reliance will be deemed
reasonable will depend on the facts and circumstances of the
particular case: The existance of facts which would arouse the
suspicion of the ordinary prudent director will furnish the basis
for liability of a director or officer who fails to make
reasonable inquiries and act with due care regarding his
suspicions (Preston-Thomas Const. Inc. v. Central Leasing Corp.,
518 P2d 1125, 1127 (Okla Ct ApP 1973)).

Directors Actions or Lack Thereof Must be the Proximate Cause
of Loss or Damages

Even if a plaintiff can show that a director or officer violated
a duty of due care, recovery will be denied unless the plaintiff
can also show causation. The plaintiff must demonstrate that the
proper performance of the officer's or director's duties'would
have avoided the loss (See Francis v. United Jersey Bank, supra).
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In order to make a d,!tormlnation regarding potential liability of
members of the Partnership Board of Directors, the details would
have to be reviewed to determine the facts and the above legal
principles applied. The degree of lack of due care of the
directors and the ..1..ement of causation for any actual loss would
also have to be determined.

Comment

If a claim accrues against the Partnership and is unpaid, this
office will work with OJJDP to conduct a review in accordance
with the principles of this memorandum.

Please note that nothing contained in this memorandum should be
construed to indicate a preliminary determination or view on the
actual liability of Partnership board members for future claims
against the Partnership.

Attachment

cc: Richard B. Abell, Acting Assistant Attorney General
Verne L. Speirs, Acting Administrator, OJJDP
Jack A. Nadol, Comptroller
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CHAPTER 4

LIABILITY OF MEMBERS AND
DIRECTORS
§ 4:01. Liability of Members.
§ 4:02. Legal Standards Determining Liability of Directors.
§ 4:03. General Duties of Trustees.
§4:04. General Duties of Corporate Directors.
§ 4:05. Duty of Loyalty.
§ 4:06. --Corporate Opportunity.
§ 4:07. --Use of Inside Information.
§ 4:08. Duty of Care.
§ 4:09. Standards Applicable to Nonprofit Enterprises.
§ 4:10. Statutory Law Relating to Liability of Directors.
§ 4:11. Investment of Institutional Funds.
§ 4:12. Indemnification of Officers and Directors.
§ 4:13- Checklist of Points To Remember.

4:01. Liability of Members.
While directors of a corporation are liable for a breach of

their management duties, because members of a nonprofit
corporation do not manage the corporation, they generally are
not subject to the potential liability problems that face direc-
tors.' The question of liability of members of a nonprofit
organization normally arises regarding liability for debts or
obligations of the organization. For those nonprofit organiza-
tions that are incorporated, members have immunity from
personal liability.2 This concept is a fundamental principle of
the general law relating to corporations.3

The Model Nonprofit Corporation Act is silent regarding
liability of members of a nonprofit corporation. However, a few
states have provisions on the subject. For exr,mple, the Califor-
nia Nonprofit Corporation Law and the New Je3 y Nonprofit
Corporation Act provide that members of a nonprofit corp-va-
tion are not personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or
obligations of the corporation.* These provisions follow the

Chap. 4Page 1
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common-law rule providing for immunity from liability for
shareholders of corporations.

I Controlling shareholders of a for-profit corporation often are subject to
the same duties as corporate directors and, thus, are also liable for a breach of
duties. See Fletcher Cyc Corp §838. However, nonprofit corporations would
not nonnally have a separate class of 'controlling members.

2 United States. Nettles v. Childs, 100 F2d 952 (CA4, 1939).
Members of unincorporated nonprofit associations may be individually

liable for debts and obligations of the association. See discussion at §§ 1:08,
12:01. This is a major reason why nonprofit organizations should be
incorporated.

4 See Cal Corp Code §§ 5350, 7350; NJ Stet Ann §15A:5-25.

§4:02. Legal Standards Determining Liability of Di-
rectors.
Directors of a nonprofit enterprise have a duty to manage

the affairs of the organization so that its property will be used
fgr the public purposes for whit-F it was entrusted. However,
there is no clear-cut body of law establishing the legal standards
to be applied in determining the roles and responsibilities of
directors. The charitable corporation is a relatively new legal
entity that does not fit neatly into the established common-law
categories of corporation or trust.' The Model Nonprofit
Corporation Act and, thus, the statutes of many of the states
that have adopted the Model Act are silent regarding liability
for a breach of duty on the part of the directors.

As a general rule, a court will not interfere with the internal
management of a nonprofit organization unless there is a willful
abuse of the discretionary powers of the trustees or directors, or
there is a neglect of duty or bad faith.2 Trustees and corporate
directors can be for losses caused by their negligent
mismanagement of property and investments.3 However, in
'determining whether negligenee occurred, the standard and
degree of care required differs in many states. There is a higher
standard of care applicable to a trustee than to a corporate
director.4 Which standard applies to the director of a nonprofit
corporation has not been clearly established.3 The standards
applicable to both trustees of private trusts and directors of
business corporations are summarized to provide a background

Chap. 4Page 2
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for a determination of the standards that should be applicable to
trustees and directors of a nonprofit organization.6

I United States. See Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training
School for Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (D DC, 1974).

2 See, e.g.:
Michigan. Ayres v. Hadaway, 303 Mich 589, 6 NW2d 905 (1942).
New York. Schrank v. Brown, 192 Misc 80, 80 NYS2d 452 (1942);

Central New York Bridge Association, Inc. v. American Contract Bridge, Inc.,
72 Misc 2d 271, 339 NYS2d 438 (1972).

Ohio. State v. Judges of Court of Common Pleas, 183 Ohio St 239, 181
NE2d 261 (1962).

3 United States. See Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National School for
Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (D DC, 1974).

United States. ". Commonwealth Bond Corp., 27 F Supp 315,
320 (SD NY, 1938).

5 United States. Sti-,rn v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training
School for Deaconesses and Mizionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (D DC, 1974)
where the court held tithi :12ctors of nonprofit corporations resembled
directors of regular corporations and should be subject to the corporate
standard rather than the more stringent standard governing trustees.

Massachusetts. See City of Boston v. Curley, 276 Mass 549, 177 NE 557
(1931) where the court was of the opinion that a court should look through the
corporate form for a nonprofit organization and hold the members to the
trustee standard. See also Wellesley College v. Attorney General, 313 Mass
722, 49 NE 2d 220 (1943).

Wisconsin. Old Settlors Club of Milwaukee, Inc v. Haun, 245 Wis 213, 13
NW2d 913 (1944).

5 See §§4:03-4:08.

§ 4:03. General Duties of Trustees.
Once a trustee has accepted a trust, he or she must continue

to administer the trust. A trustee can resign only with permis-
sion of the court or by the consent of the beneficiaries unless the
trust instrument provides otherwise.' A trustee is liable for the
trust property regardless of whether or not the trustee receives
compensation.2

The most fundamental duty owed by a trustee to beneficia-
ries of the trust is the duty of loyalty.3 The fiduciary relation-
ship between the trustee and the beneficiaries of a trust is an
especially intense one. The trustee must administer the trust
solely in the interest of the beneficiaries; the trustee may not
place himself in a position where it would be for his own benefit

Chap. 4Page 3
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to violate the duty of loyalty.4 When a trustee's personal
interests come into conflict with his duty to beneficiaries of the
trust, courts have fixed a high and strict standard for the
trustee's conduct. The trustee's interest must yield to that of the
beneficiaries., In this regard, a transaction involving the trustee
personally that was in all respects fair and reasonable might
stand so long as the trustee dealt directly with the beneficiaries,
made full disclosure, and did not take advantage of his position.6
Should the trustee act without consent of the beneficiaries,
however, the transaction will be set aside even though it was
otherwise fair and reasonable.'

A purchase of trust property by a trustee individually, or a
sale to the trust of the trustee's individual property, can be set
aside no matter how fair the sale may have been.6 A trustee
violates his duty to the beneficiaries not only where he
purchases trust property for himself individually but also where
he has a personal interest in the purchase of such a substantial
nature that it might affect his judgment in making the sale,

A trustee is also subject to a duty of care. This requires that
the trustee, in administering the trust, exercise the care and skill
that a man of ordinary prudence would exercise in dealing with
his own property." This standard causes a trustee to be liable
for acts of simple negligence."

A trustee may not delegate to others the administration of
the trust." While the trustee need not personally perform every
act that may be necessary in the execution of the trust, the
trustee must remain the executive manager of the trust.13 The
trustee may not delegate the responsibility for managing the
trust property or making trust investments."

Scott, Law of Trusts §169 (3d Ed).
2 Scott, Law of Trusts §169 (3d Ed).
3 See Restatement (Second) of Trusts §379. Self-dealing is prohibited. See

Scott, Lew of Trusts § 170 (3d Ed).
4 Scott, Law of Trusts § 170 (3d Ed).
I United States. See Blankenship v. Doyle, 329 F Supp 1089 (D DC,

1971).
*Scott, Law of Trusts § 170.1 (3d Ed).
7 Scott, Law of Trusts §170.1 (3d Ed).

The Uniform Trust Act §5 forbids a trustee from directly or indirectly
buying or selling any property from the trust, from or to himself, or from or to
any relative, employee, partner, or other business associate.

Chap. 4Page 4
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9 Scott, Law of Trusts § 170.10 (3d Ed).
.10 If a trustee has greater skill or more tncilor,-. tuna others, the trustee is

under a duty to employ the greater skill and fed les. See Scott, Law of Trust.s
§ 174 (3d Ed). In addition, if a trustee has tP,-. vesented himself as having a
higher degree of skill or greater facilities than others possess, the trustee may
incur a liability by failing to measure up to the standard he has set for himself.
A person who induces another to employ him as a trustee by representing that
he has special knowledge or special skill is held to the standard of skill which
he rep resented himself to have. See Scott, Law of Trusts § 174 (3d Ed).

n, Restatement (Second) of Torts § 174.
12 See Scott, Law of Trusts § 171 (3d Ed).

See, e.g.:
Massachusetts. City of Boston v. Curley, 276 Mass 549, 177 NE 557

(1931).
New York. In re Hutchinson, 32 Misc2d 879, 224 NYS2d 438 (1962).
13 Scott, Law of Trusts § 171 (3d Ed).
'Scott, Law of Trusts §171.1-2 (3d Ed).

§ 4:04. General Duties of Corporate Directors.
While directors of corporations are also subject to a duty of

loyalty and a duty of care to the corporation, the duties of
directors are less stringent than those required of trustees.' The
lesser standards have been applied to the corporate director
based upon the theory that corporate directors have many areas
of responsibility.2 Trustees, on the other hand, are often said to
be charged only with management of trust funds, and thus, can
devote more time and expertise to the task.3

Despite the fact that corporate directors are held to lesser
standards than are trustees, directors are nonetheless fiduciaries
and continue to have a status similar to that of trustees.' A
director must act for the benefit of members of the corporation,
and, in the case of a nonprofit corporation, for the benefit of the
public.5

I United States. See Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training
School for Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (I) DC, 1974).

2 United States. Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training School
for Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (D DC, 1974).

3 United States. Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training School
for Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003 (D DC, 1974).

United States. See Pepper v. Litton, 308 US 295, 84 L Ed 281, 60 S Ct
238 (1939).

See also Fletcher Cyc Corp § 838.

Chap. 4Page 5
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*5 See. e.g.:
United States. Christiansen v. National Savings and Trust Company,

683 F2d 520,528 (CA DC, 1982). The fiduciary duties of a corporate director
run to the corporation, however, and not directly to its members or the general
public.

Georgia. Trustees of Jess P. Williams Hospital v. Nisbvt, 181 Ga 821, 14
SE2d 64, 76 (1941).

Ohio. Haluka v. Baker, 66 Ohio App 308, 24 NE2d 68, 70 (1940).

§ 4:05. Duty of Loyalty.
The duty of loyalty for a corporate director requires that a

director not exploit corporate opportunities or misuse inside
information.' Only reasonable salaries may be paid board
members, and often directors serve without compensation! A
board member must account to the corporation for any profits
received as a result of the directorship.3

A director may not obtain a private or secret profit as a
result of his or her official position; the corporation must have
the benefit of any advantage the director has acquired.4

The purchase or lease of corporate property by an officer or
director is voidable, but not void, in contrast to the trust
standard.5 A director may assert a fairness defense to a charge of
self-dealing.6 However, such a transaction will be upheld only if
it is indeed fair and was for a sufficient consideration! The
presumption in such cases generally is against validity. In
addition, courts apply a more stringent test to determine
fairness.8

A corporate director may not cast a vote upon a matter in
which the director has an adverse interest.9 However, there has
been some support for the possibility that a vote of an interested
director, while not necessarily valid, may be counted in favor of
a transaction between the director and the corporation if the
transaction appears to be fair and is characterized in good
faith."

1 Scott, Law of Trusts § 348.2 at 2780 (3d Ed).
Fletcher Cyc Corp § 861.1.
Brodsky& Adamski Corp Officers & Dir § 3:01.
See §§ 4:06, 4:07.
2 See Fletcher Cyc Corp § 514.1.
3 Scott, Law of Trusts § 170.2 at 1304-07.

Chap. 4Page 6
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New York. New York Trust Co. v. American Realty Co., 244 NY 209,
155 NE 102 (1926).

Illinois. Flynn v. Zimmerman, 231 III App 2d 467, 163 NE2d 568
(1960).

Missouri. Knox Glass Bottle Company v. Underwood, 228 Miss 699, 89
So 2d 799 (1956), cert den, 353 US 977 (1957).

North Carolina. Mountain Top Youth Camp, Inc. v. Lyon, 20 NC App
694, 202 SE2d 498 (1974).

Delaware. Johnson v. Greene, 35 Del Ch 479, 121 A2d 919 (1956).
Texan. Wiberg v. Gulf Coast Land & Development, 360 SW2d 563 (Tex

Civ App 1962).
7 Wyoming. See Voss Oil Company v. Voss, 367 P2d 977 (1962).
' Arkansas. Geominerals Corporation v. Grace, 232 Ark 524, 338 SW2d

935 (1960).
Delaware. Alcott v. Hyman, 42 Del Ch 233, 208 A2d 501 (1965).
9 Illinois. Weiss Medical Complex v. Kim, 87 III App 3d 111, 408 NE2d

959 (1980).
Utah. Davis v. Health Development Company, 558 P2d 594 (1976).
10 Delaware. Sterling v. Mayflower Hotel Corporation, 33 Del Ch 293, 93

A2d 107 (1952).
Massachusetts. Spiegel v. Beacon Participations, Inc, 297 Mass 398, 8

NE2d 895 (1937).
New York. In re Burkin, 1 NY2d 570, 136 NE2d 862 (1956).

§ 4:06. --Corporate Opportunity.
A corporate director is under a fiduciary obligation not to

divert a corporate business opportunity for his or her own
personal gain.' This so-called doctrine of corporate opportunity
is a species of the duty of a fiduciary to act with undivided
loyalty to the corporation. The doctrine charges any interest
acquired by the director with a trust for the benefit of the
corporation.2 The theory is that an insider should not use his
inside position to benefit himself by seizing an investment
opportunity available to and suitable for the corporation. It
operates because the corporation was not given the opportunity
to nngage in the transaction.3

If a business opportunity comes to a corporate director in
his individual capacity rather than his official capacity, howev-
er, and the opportunity is one which is not essential to the
corporation and in which it has no interest or expectancy, the
director is entitled to treat the opportunity as his own.4 The test
in determining whether a corporate officer has appropriated a

Chap. 4Page 7
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corporate opportunity is whether there was a specific duty on
the part of the director to act or contract in regard to the
particular matter as the representative of the corporation.5

1 See Fletcher Cyc Corp §861.1; Brodsky & Adamski, Corp Officers & Dir
ch 4.

2 See, e.g.:
Massachusetts. Durfee v. Durfee & Canning, Inc, 323 Mass 187, 80

NE2d 522 (1948).
New York. Turner v. American Metal Co, 36 NYS2d 356 (1942); Litwin

v. Allen, 25 NYS2d 667 (1940).
Ohio. Hubbard v. Pape. 2 Ohio App 2d 326, 203 NE2d 365 (1964).
Pennsylvania. Zampetti v. Cavanaugh, 3406 Pa 259, 176 A2d 906

(1962).
Wisconsin. General Automotive Manufacturing Co. v. Singer, 19 Wis 2d

528, 120 NW2d 659 (1963).
3 See Fletcher Cyc Corp §861.1.

See, e.g.:
Delawa.re. Equity Corporation v. Milton, 42 Del Ch 425, 221 A2d 494

(1966); Johnston v. Greene, 35 Del Ch 479, 121 A2d 919 (1956).
Indiana. Tower Recreation, Inc. v. Beard, 141 Ind App 649, 231 NE2d

154 (1967).
Minnesota. Miller v. Miller, 301 Minn 207, 222 NW2d 71 (1974).
Pennsylvania. Dravosburg Land Co. v. Scott, 340 Pa 280, 16 A2d 415

(1940).
5 Illinois. Northwestern Terra Cotta Corporation v. Wilson, 74 III App 2d

38, 219 NE2d 860 (1966).
Kentucky. Urban J. Alexander Company v. Trinble, 311 Ky 635, 224

SW2d 923 (1949).
Massachusetts. Black v. Parker Manufacturing Company, 329 Mass

105, 106 NE2d 544 (1952).
Missouri. Franco v. J D Streett & Company, 360 SW2d 597 (Mo, 1962).
Pennsylvania. Robinson v. Brier, 412 Pa 255, 194 A2d 204 (1963).

§ 4:07. --Use of Inside Information.
The law relating to a corporate director's duty regarding use

of inside information is ill-defined. Under some state law and
under federal law, it is a higher duty, resembling the duty Gf a
trustee.'

For for-profit corporations, federal statutes provide that
directors and shareholders with at least 10% ownership must
return to the corporation all profits derived from sales and

Chap. 4Page 8
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purchases or purchases and sales of equity securities of the
corporation within a six month period.2 Liability attaches
regardless of the intention of the insider.3 While this rule
generally is not a part of state law, some states have adopted the
concept.'

' See Securities Exchange Act of 1934, §§10b, 16(b); 15 USC §§78j(b),
78p.

'Securities Exchange Act of 1934 §16(b); 15 USC § 78p.
3 United States. See National Medical Enterprises v. Small, 680 F2d 83

(CA9, 1982).
4 See, e.g.:
California. Black v. Shearson, Hammill and Company, 266 Cal App 2d

362, 72 Cal MAI- 157 (1968).
Delaware. Brophy v. Cities Service Company, 31 Del Ch 241, 70 A2d 5

(1949).
New York. Diamcad v. Oreamuno, 24 NY2d 494, 248 NE2d 910 (1969).

In the Diamond case, the New York court held that the inside information of a
corporate officer or director is an asset of the corporation, acquired by the
insider as a fiduciary of the company. The court held that a misappropriation
of such information is a violation of that trust. The New York court quoted the
well-established rule that a person who acquires special knowledge or
information by virtue of his fiduciary relationship with another is not free to
exploit that knowledge or information for his own personal benefit but must
account to his principal for any profits derived therefrom. The court then
likened a corporate director to a trustee in this regard and stated that "just as a
trustee has no right to retain for himself the profits yielded by property placed
in his possession but must account to his beneficiaries, a corporate fiduciary,
who is entrusted with potentially valuable information, may not appropriate
that asset for his use even though, in so doing, he causes no injury to the
corporation."

But see, e.g.:
Florida. Schein v. Chasen, 313 So 2d 639 (1975); Schein v. Lum's, Inc.,

519 F2d 453 (CA2, 1975). The Florida court refused to extend what it termed
the 'innovative ruling of the New York court in Diamond to someone who
gave a tip of insider information. it stated that the Diamond doctrine applied
only to corporate fiduciaries who actually profit by insider information and
should not cover inside eiders, abettors, or conspirators. The court commented
that the Diamond rule was a significant alteration of the common law
principles applicable to directors.

Indiana. Freeman v. Decio, 584 F2d 186 (CA7, 1978). An Indiana court
refused to permit a suit by shareholders against corporate officers and
directors for alleged illegal trading of corporate stock on the basis of material
insider information. The Indiana court was of the opinion that it would be
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better to aetermine wliether there was any potential loss to the corporation
from the use of insider information before deciding to characterize insider
information as an asset with respect to which the insider owes the corporation
a duty of loyalty. According to the Indiana court, a court should look first as to
whether there was a possibility of a loss to the corporation before it held the
director accountable to the corporation.

114:08. Duty of Care.
The duty of care requires that directors exercise reasonable

skills in the exercise of their responsibilities.' A director should
exercise the same care and skill which an ordinarily prudent
person would exercise under similar circumstances in his or her
own personal affairs.2 While this duty is similar to that of a
trustee, a corporate director has broader discretion than does a
trustee. A director may delegate to officers or to committees the
operation of the corporation.3 Further, courts have scated that
while directors are liable for negligence in the performance of
their duties, they are not insurers and thus are not liable for
errors of judgment or for mistakes so long as they act with
reasonable skill and prudence.4

The liability of corporate directors for damages caused by
negligent or unauthorized acts rests upon the common law rule
that renders every agent liable who violates his authority or
neglects his duty to the damage of his principal.6 By accepting
the office, directors implicitly undertake to give their best
judgment to the enterprise.6 The acceptance of the office of
director implies a knowledge of the duties assumed. Directors
will not be excused because of their lack of experience or
ability.7 However, directors are not responsible for mere errors
ofjudgment or want of care short of clear and gross negligence.6

Directors are entitled to some protection for their negligent
acts when they act under advice of counsel.9 However, where the
terms of their powers are explicit, advice of counsel is of no
avail."

1 See Henn & Alexander, Law of Corporations § 234 (3d Ed).
2 See Brodsky & Adamski Corp Officers & Dir § 2:01.
3 See Brodsky & Adamski Corp Officers & Dir § 2:01.

This is called the 'business judgment rule.
United States. See discussion of the rule in Financial Industrial Fund,

Inc., v. McDonnell Douglas Corporation, 474 F2d 514 (CA10, 1973); Herald

Chap. 4Page 10
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Company v. Seawell, 472 F2d 1081 (CA10, 1972); Panter v. Marshall Field &
Company, 646 F2d 271 (CA7, 1981).

See also, e.g.:
Delaware. Olson Brothers v. Englehart, 42 Del Ch 348, 211 A2d 610

(1965).
Illinois. Shlensky v. Wrigley, 95 III App 2d 173, 237 NE2d 776 (1968).
Pennsylvania. Wolf v. Fried, 473 Pa 26, 373 A2d 734 (1977).

United States. See Robinson v. Linfield College, 42 F Supp 147 (D
Wash, 1941), affd 136 F2d 805 (CA9, 1943).

See Lewis, The Business Judgment Rule and Corporate Directors'
Liability for Mismanagement, 22 Baylor L Rev 157 (1970).

Delaware. Bennett v. Propp, 41 Del Ch 14, 187 A2d 405 (1962).
New York. Walker v. Man, 142 Misc 177, 253 NYS 458 (1931).
7 California. Minton v. Cavaney, 56 Cal 2d 576, 364 P2d 473 (1961).
Tennessee. Neese v. Brown, 218 Tenn 686, 405 SW2d 577 (1964).

Delaware. Cheff v. Mathes, 41 Del Ch 494, 199 A2d 548 (1964).
New York. Hornstein v. Paramount Pictures Inc., 292 NY 468, 55 NE2d

740 (1944).
9 United States. Spirt v. Bechtel, 232 F2d 241 (CA2, 1956).
Louisiana. Pool v. Pool, 22 So 2d 131 (La App, 1945).
The New Jersey Nonprofit Corporation Act provides that a trustee of a

nonprofit corporation will not be liable if he or she, in good faith, relies on the
advice of counsel for the corporation or upon written reports setting forth the
financial data concerning the corporation and prepared by independent
certified public accountants or upon financip,I statements presented to them as
being correct by officers of the corporation. NJ Stat Ann 5 15A:6-14.

lo New York. People v. Marcus, 261 NY 268, 185 NE 97 (1933).

§4:09. Standards Applicable to Nonprofit Enter-
prises.
To apply fiduciary standards to directors or trustees of

nonprofit enterprises involves an analysis of the type of
nonprofit organization. A charitable trust is generally subject to
trust standards.1 The nonprofit corporation that, while nonprof-
it, is not charitable in nature, is governed by corporate
standards. However, the charitable nonprofit corporation
presents a dilemma because it is much the same as the
charitable trust.

There is a question whether different standards should be
applied to the charitable trust and the charitable corporation
simply because of a difference in organizational structure.2 For
example, should all self-dealing be prohibited in a charitable
organization, applying the trust standard, or should only
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harmful self-dealing be prohibited, applying the corporate
standard?3 The Internal Revenue Code provisions applicable to
private foundations cause charitable organizations that are
private foundations to be subject to the trust standard regardless
of organization structure.4 All self-dealing for private founda-
tions is prohibited.5 The public charity, on the other hand, is
not subjected to the self-dealing provisions applicable to private
foundations.5 However, again, the distinction is not organiza-
tional structure, but whether or not the organization is publicly
oriented.

The current trend is to apply corporate rather than trust
principles in determir ng the legal liability of directors of
charitable corporation., based on the concept that their func-
tions are virtually indistinguishable from those of their "pure"
corporate counterparts.7 Some states have solved the problem
by statutory law that prescribes the legal standards and liability
adirectors of nonprofit organizations.5

Scott, Law of Trusts § 379 (3d Ed).
2 See Duties of Charitable Trust Trustees and Charitable Corporation

Directors, 2 Real Prop Prob & Tr J 545 (1967).
3 See The Fiduciary Duties of Loyalty and Care Associated with the

Directors and Trustees of Charitable Organizations, 64 Va L Rev 449, 457
(1978).

See discussion in Chapter 10.
5 See § 10:04.
6 See discussion of public charities in Chapter 9.
New Jersey. Midlantic National Bank v. Frank G. Thompson

Foundation, 405 A2d 866 (1979).

See e.g.:
United States. Stern v. Lucy Webb Hayes National Training School for

Deaconesses and Missionaries, 381 F Supp 1003, 1013 (D DC, 1974).
There is disagreement with this concept. The corporate standard may be

too lax. Directors of nonprofit corporations are not subjected to supervision by
shareholders having access and direct interest in the corporate records. They
often represent the general public and, thus, there is often no one to bring suit
for breach of fiduciary duties. The right to sue for breach of duties generally is
given the state's Attorney General who seldom has an interest in enforcing
corporate duties. Some have advocated that there should be a flat prohibition
on all self-dealing involving controlling persons in nonprofit organizations. See
Hansmann, Reforming Nonprofit Corporation Law, 129 U Pa L Rev 4987
(1981).
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Illinois. See Scott v. George F. Harding Museum, 58 III App 3d 4n0. 7,

NE2d 756 (1978); People ex rel. Scott v. Silverstein, 86 III App 3d 605, 41u
NE2d 243 (1980) for application of Charitable Trust Act to an incorporated
museum.

See discussion at §4:10.

4:10. Statutory Law Relating to Liability of Direc-
tors.
Some states have sought to clarify the standards applicable

to trustees and directors of nonprofit organizations by specific
statutory provisions determining the standards.' These provi-
sions, for the most part, have adopted the corporate standard
rather than the more restrictive trust standard.2

New York's Not-for-Profit Corporation Law provides that
directors and officers must discharge their duties in good faith
and with that degree of diligence, care and skill that an
ordinarily prudent man would exercise under similar circum-
stances in like positions.3 Directors are specifically held liable if
they vote for or concur in certain enumerated corporate actions,
such as wrongfully distributing the corporate assets to members,
directors or officers:. The provisions follow those of the New
York Business Corporation Law and, thus, provide the standard
of care of the corporate director.5 Action to enforce the duty of
care and the liability of directors and officers may be brought by
the corporation itself through a director, receiver, trustee in
bankruptcy, judgment creditor or a member in a derivative
action, or by the Attorney General.6

California's Nonprofit Corporation Law has extensive
provisions relating to the standards of conduct for corporate
directors.' A director is to perform the duties of a director in
good faith and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as
an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under
similar circumstances.5 While self-dealing can cause a director
to be liable to the corporation, transactions that were fair and
reasonable as to the corporation at the time the corporation
entered into the transactions, and transactions approved in
good faith by a vote of a majority of the directors without
counting the vote of the interested director and with knowledge
of the material facts concerning the transactions and the
director's interest, will not be set aside, In addition, interested
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directors may be counted in determining the presence of a
quorum at a meeting of the board to approve or ratify such a
contract or transaction."

Pennsylvania's Corporation Not-for-Profit Code provides
that no contract or transaction between a nonprofit corporation
and one or more of its members, directors or officers or between
the nonprofit corporation and a business organization in which
a director, member or officer has a financial interest, is void or
voidable solely because the interested director, member, or
officer was present at or participated in the meeting of the board
that authorized the contract or transaction." This is the case
even if the interested director's vote was counted so long as the
material facts as to the relationship nf the officer in the
transaction were disclosed or known to the board and the board
in good faith authorized the contract or transaction by the
affirmative votes of a majority of disinterested directors. This is
permitted even though the disinterested directors were less than
a quorum."

In New Jersey, directors, called trustees, are relieved of
liability if they relied in good faith upon opinion of counsel for
the corporation or upon written reports setting forth financial
data of the corporation prepared by independent public account-
ants or books of accounts or reports of the corporation
represented to them to be correct by the corporation officers."

I See Cal Corp Code §§5230-5237, 7230-7238; NY Not-for-Profit Coro
Law, §§717, 719, 710; NJ Stat Ann § 15A:6-14 and Pa Stat Ann § 7728.

2 However, see Pa Stat Ann §7549 which provides that, for any property
vested in trust in a corporation, the directors are held to the same degree of
responsibility and accountability as if they were trustees of an unincorporated
organization. Property committed to charitable purposes may not be diverted
to other purposes except by court order.

s NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 717.
4 NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 719.
s See NY Bus Corp Law § 717.
NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 720.

7 Cal Corp Code §§5230-5237, 7230-7238.
Cal Corp Code §§523i , 7231.

9 Cal Corp Code §§5233, 7233.
lo Cal Corp Code §§5523(g), 7234.
11 Pa Stat Ann § 7728(a).
12 Pa Stat Ann § 7728(a).
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13 NJ Stet Ann §15A:6-14.
New Jersey. Case law in New Jersey has applied corporate standar& to

nonprofit organizations. See Leeds v. Harrison, 7 NJ Super 558, 72 A2d 371
(1950); Stoolman v. Camden County Council Boy Scouts of America, 77 NJ
Super 129, 185 A2d 436 (1962); Midlantic National Bank v. Frank G.
Thompson Foundation, 170 NJ Super 128, 405 A2d 866 (1979).

In Leeds V. Harrison, 7 NJ Super 558, 72 A2d 371 (1950), the New Jersey
court stated that the same rights and liabilities exist between the trustees of a
nonprofit corporation and the members as exist between the directors and
stockholders of a corporation for profit.

§ 4:11. Investment of Institutional Funds.
A number of states have adopted the Uniform Management

of Institutional Funds Act which provides a standard of
business care and prudence in the investment of funds of certain
nonprofit organizations.1 The act authorizes the delegation of
investment decisions and provides for the expenditure of the
appreciation of invested funds.2 The standard of care is that of a
reasonable and prudent director of a nonprofit corporation
similar to that of a director of a business corporation.'

Drafters of the act adopted corporate standards based upon
their assumption that corporate standards are more appropriate
than trustee standards.4 The drafters expressed concern that
fear of liability from use of the trustee standard could have a
debilitating effect upon members of a governing board of a
nonprofit corporation, most of whom would be uncompensated
public minded citizens.'

1 See, e.g.:

Cal Civ Code §§2290.1-2290.12; Colo Rev Stet §§ 15-1-1101 to 15-1-
1109; Conn Gen Stet Ann §§45-100h to 45-100p; Del Code Ann, ch 12
§§4701-4708; Kan Stet Ann §§58-35601 to 58-2-3610; Ky Rev Stet
§§273.510 to 273.590; La Rev Stet Ann §§9.2337.1 to 9.2337.8;Minn Stet Ann
§§309.62 to 309.71; NJ Stet Ann §15:18-1-15 to 15:18-24; Ohio Rev Code Ann
§§1715.51 to 1715.59; RI Gen Laws §§18-12-1 to 18-12-9; Tenn Code Ann
§§35-1101 to 35-1109; Vt Stet Ann tit 14, §§3401-3407; Wash Rev Code
§§24.44.010 to 24.44.900; Wis Stet Ann §112.10.

2 Uniform Management of Institutional Funth Act §§ 2, 5.
3 Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act §6.
New Jersey. See Midlantic National Bank v. Frank G. Thompson

Foundation, 405 A2d 866 (1979) wherein the New Jersey Supreme Court noted
that one of the purposes of the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds
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,erning bodies of charitable corporations to avoid the
Ales normally applicable to trustees.
Management of Institutional Funds Act ti 6, Commission-

Management of InstitutiLnal Funds Act, C,Ninnissioners'

§ 4:12. Indemnification of Officers and Directors.
While the expenditure of reasonable sums to defend a suit

brought against a nonprofit organization has been held to be an
expenditure for the carrying on of the ordinary business of the
organization,' the payment of attorneys' fees to defend directors
of a nonprofit corporation prior to a determination that the
directors were not guilty of negligence or misconduct in the
performance of their duties has been held to be an unauthorized
transfer of funds of the corporation, not in conformity with the
nonprofit purposes for which the corporation was formed.°

There is no common law right of indemnification for
corporate directors.3 Any such right is statutory. Consequently,
a few states have added provisions providing for indemnifica-
tion of directors for liability for damages and for expenses to
defend an action brought against the director.'

New York's Not-for-Profit Corporation Law provides for
indemnifis.ation of directors or officers of a nonprofit organiza-
tion but also provides that provision may not be made to
indemnify directors or officers in the certificate of incorpora-
tion, the bylaws, or by resolution of members or agreement,
unless consistent with statutory provisions.° The statute pro-
vides that a nonprofit corporation may indemnify any person
made a party to an action to procure a judgment for the
corporation. for reasonable expenses, including attorneys' fees,
but any settlement must be approved by a court.° In other cases,
officers and directors may be indemnified if they acted in good
faith.° The statute also permits a corporation to purchase
insurance to indemnify the corporation for expenses in connec-
tion with indemnification of the directors or officers.°

California statutes provide for indemnification of any
nerpon who is a party or is threatened to be made a party to a
lawsuit as an agont of the corporation if the person acted in good
faith.° Aa in the New York statute, any provision for indemni-
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fication in the articles, bylaws, resolution, or agreement, must be
consistent with the statute on indemnification." A corporation
may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any corpo-
rate agent against any liability asserted against the agent except
acts of self-dealing."

Texas statute provides that a corporation may indemnify
any director or officer of a nonprofit corporation except in
relation to matters in which the director or officer has been
guilty of negligence or misconduct." If a corporation has not
fully indemnified an officer or director, a court may assess
indemnity against the corporation for reasonable expenses plus
attorneys' fees, provided that the person indemnified was not
guilty of negligence or misconduct."

For a charitable organization that is a private foundation
for income tax purposes," indemnification of officers or direc-
tors may be a prohibited act of self-dealing."

Texas. Ex parte Edman, 609 SW2d 532 (1980).
2 New York. Diamond v. Diamond, 307 NY 263, 120 NE2d 819 (1954).
Texas. Texas Society v. Fort Bend Chapter, 590 SW2d 156 (Tex Civ

App, 1979).
3 Texas. Texas Society v. Fort Bend Chapter, 590 SW2d 156 (Tex Civ

App, 1979).
For an excellent discussion of indemnification of officers and directors of

corporations see Bishop Law of Corporate Officers & Directors: Indemnifica-
tion & Insurance.

4 See, e.g., Cal Corp Code §§5238, 7237; NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law
§§ 721-727; Pa Stat Ann tit 15, § 7511; Tex Civ Stat § 1396-2.22.

See Bishop Law of Corporate Officers & Directors: Indemnification &
Insurance for a discussion of state statutes on indemnification of officers and
directors of for-profit corporations.

See also Brodsky & Adamski Corp Officers & Dir §§ 19:02-19:06.
9 NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law §721.
6 NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 722.
7 NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 723.
NY Not-for-Profit Corp Law § 727.

9 Cal Corp Code §§ 5238, 7237.
10 Cal Corp Code §§ 5238(g), 7237(g).

Cal Corp Code §§ 5238(i), 7237(i).
12 Tex Civ Stat §1396-2.22.
" Tex Civ Stat §1396-2.22.
" See definition and discussion of privat, foundations in Chapter 10.
19 See discussion at § 10:06. See specifically § 10:06, n 44.
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*4:13. Checklist of Points To Remember.
1. Members of nonprofit organizations have immunity

from personal liability for debts or obligations of the
organization.'

2. Generally, a court will not interfere with the internal
management of a nonprofit organization unless there is
a willful abuse of the discretionary powers of the
directors or there is a neglect of duty or bad faith.2 In
determining whether any negligence on the part of the
directors occurred, the standard and degree of care
required of directors differs in many states.33. There is a higher standard of care applicable to a
trustee than to a corporate director.' Most states apply
the standards applicable to corporate directors to
directors of nonprofit organizations.a

4. Corporate directors may delegate the operation of the
corporation to officers or to committees.6 Trustees may
not do so!5. Corporate directors are not responsible for mere errors
of judgment or for want of care short of clear and gross
negligence.a6. The duty of loyalty for a corporate director requires
that a director not exploit corporate opportunities or
misuse inside information. A director may not obtain a
private or secret profit as a result of his or her official
position.a7. The purchase or lease of corporate property by a
director is voidable, not void, in contrast to the trust
standard."8. A corporate director may not cast a vote on a matter in
which the director has an adverse interest."9. In some cases, reliance of advice of counsel or upon
financial records prepared by independent certified
public accountants protects a director from liability."

10. A number of states have adopted the Uniform Manage-
ment of Institutional Funds Act which authorizes the
delegation of investment decisions for nonprofit corpo-
rations."
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11. A few states have added provisions providing for
indemnification of directors for liability for damages
and for expenses to defend an action brought against
the director."

2 See §4:01.
2 See § 4:02.
3 See §4:02.
4 See §4:02.
5 See §§4:09 and 4:10.
6 See § 4:08.
7 See § 4:03.

See § 4:08.
See § 4:05.

1° See §4:05.
" See §4:05.
"See § 4:08.
13 See §4:11.
" See § 4:12.
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.§ 45.735-1

PART 45-STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

Sec.
45.735-1 Purpose and scope.
45.735-2 BUIC Policy.
45.735-3 Definitions.
45.735-4 Disqualification arising from per-

- sonal or political relationship.
45.735-5 Disqualification arising from pri-

vate financial interests..
45.735-6 Activities and compensation of

employees Ln claims against and other
matters affecting the Government.

45.735-7 Disqualification of former ern.
ployees: disqualification of Partners of
current employees.

45.735-7a Disciplinary proceedings under
18 U.S.C. 207(1).

45.735-8 Salary of employees payable only
by United States.

45.735-9 Private professional practice and
outside employment.

45.735-10 Improper use of official informa-
tion.

45.735-11 Investmenta.
45.735-12 Speeches. publIcationa and

teaching.
45.735-13 [Reserved]
45.735-14 GUM entertainment, and favors.

45.735-14a Reimbursement 'for travel and
subsistence; acceptance of awards.

45.735-15 Employee indebtedness.
45.735-16 Misuse of Federal property.
45.735-17 Gambling, betting, and lotteries.
45.735-18 [Reserved]
45.735-19 Partisan political activities.
45.735-21 Miscellaneous statutory provi-

sions.
45.735-22 Reporting of outside interests by

persons other than special Government
employees.

45.735-23 Reporting of outside interests by
special Government employees.

45.735-24 Reviewing statements of finan-
cial interests.

45.735-25 Supplemental regulations.
45.735-26 Designated Agency Ethics Off!.

cial.
45.735-27 Public financial disclosure re.

quirements.

APPIMIX-Cons OP ETHICS FOR GOVERNMENT
SERVICE

Am./wally: 80 Stat. 379: 5 U.S.C. 301. Re-
organization Plan No. 2 of 1950. 64 Stat,
1261: 3 CFR 1949-1953 Comp.. E.O. 11222; 3
CFR, 1964-1965 Comp.: 3 CFR Part 735,
unless otherwise noted.

Souls= Order No. 350-65. 30 FR 17202,
Dec. 31. 1965. unless otherwise noted.

Caoss Roans= For Attorney Generars
"Memorandum Regarding the Conflict of
Interest Provisions of Pub. L. 87-849". see
the appendix to thia Part.
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§ 45.735-1 Purpose and scope.
(a) In conformity with sections 201

through 209 of Title 18 of the United
States Code (as enacted by Pub. L. 87-
849) and other statutes of the United
States. and In conformity with Execu-
tive Order No. 11222 of May 8. 1985,
and Title 5, Chapter I. Part 735, of the
Code of Federal Regulations, relating
to conflicts of Interest and ethical
standards of behavior, this part pre-
scribes policies, standards and instruc-
tion: with regard to the conduct and
behavior of employees and former em-
ployees (as defined In § 45.735-3 (b)
and (d) respectively) of the Depart-
ment of Justice.

(b) This part, among other things,
reflects prohibitions and requirements
imposed by the criminal and civil laws
of the United States. However, the
paraphrased restatements of criminal
and civil statutes contained in this
part are designed for informational
purposes only and in no way consti-
tute an interpretation or construction
thereof that is binding upon the De-
partment of Justice or the Federal
Government. Moreover, this part does
not purport to paraphrase or enumer-
ate all restrictions or requirements im-
posed by statutes. Executive orders,
regulations or otherwise upon Federal
employees and former Federal em-
Ployees. The omission of a reference to
any such restriction or requirement in
no way alters the legal effect of that
restriction or requirement and any
such restriction or requirement, as the
case may be, continues to be applica-
ble to employees and former employ-
ees in accordance with its own terms.
Furthermore, attorneys employed by
the Department should be guided in
their conduct by the Code of Profe3-
sional Responsibility of the American
Bar Association. Interpretations and
applications of the Code to an attor-
ney's official duties should be obtained
pursuant to 1 45.735-2(e).

(c) Any violation of any provision of
this part shall make the employee in-
volved subiect to appropriate discipli-
nary action which shall be in addition
to any penalty which might be pre-
scribed by statute or regulation.
[Order No. 350-65. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1965. as amended by Order No. 960-81. 46
FR 52357. Oct. 27, 1981]

45.735-2 Basic policy.
Fnnloyees shall:
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(a) Conduct themselves in a marmer
that creates and maintains respect for
the Department of Justice and the
U.S. Government. In all their activi-
ties. personal and official, they should
always be mindful of the high stand-
ards of behavior expected of them:

(b) Employees should discuss with
their inunedlate supervisors anY Prob-
lems concerning ethics or professional
conduct that they cannot resolve per-
sonally by reference to the standards
set forth in this part. Supervisors
should ascertain all pertinent infortna-
non bearing upon any such problem
coming to their attention and shall
take prompt action to see that prob-
lems that cannot be readily resolved
are submitted to the Assistant Attor-
ney General or other official in charge
of the employees' Office. Board or Di-
vision. In the case of personnel em-
ployed by the United States Attor-
neys, problems may be referred. to the
Director of the Executive Office for
United States Attorneys.
(Order No. 350-85, 30 FR 17202, Dec. 31.
1985. as amended by Order No. 980-81. 48
FR 52358. Oct. 27, 19811

0 43.7334 Definitions.
(a) Division. "Division" means a

principal component of the Depart-
ment of Justice, including a division.
bureau, service, office or board.

(b) Employee. "Employee" means an
officer or employee of the Department
of Justice and includes a special Gov-
ernment employee (as defined in para-
graph (c) of this section) in the ab-
sence of contrary indication. Presiden-
tial appointees shall be deemed em-
ployees for the purposes of this part.
In situations in which this part re-
quires an employee to report informa-
tion to, or seek approval for certain ac-
tivities from, the head of a division, an
employee who is the head of a division
or who is an appointee of the Attorney
General not assigned to a division.
shall report to, or seek approval frOnz.
the Deputy Attorney General, and the
Deputy Attorney General shall report
to. or seek approval from, the Attor-
ney General.

(c) Special Government employee.
"Special Government employee"
means an officer or employee of the
Department of Justice who is retained.

§ 45.735-4

designated, appointed, or employed to
perform, with or without compensa-
tion, for not more than 130 days
during any period of 365 consecutive
days. temporary duties either on a
full-time or intermittent basis.

(d) Former employee "Former em-
ployee" means a former Department
of Justice employee or former special
Government employee, as defined in
paragraph (c) of this section.

(e) Person. "Person" means an indi-
vidual, a corporation, a company, an
association, a firm, a partnership, a so-
ciety, a Joint stock companY, or any
other organization or institution.
(Order No. 350-85, 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31,
1985. as amended by Order No. 899-77, 42
FR 15315. Mar. 21, 1977: Order No. 980-81.
48 FR 52358, Oct, 27. 19813

45.735-4 Disqualification arising from
personal or political relationship.

(a) Unless authorized under para.
graPh OD of this section. no employee
shall participate in a criminal investi-
gation or prosecution if he has a per-
sonal or political relationship with:

(1) Any person or organization sub-
stantially involved in the conduct that
is the subject of the investigation or
prosecution: or

(2) Any person or organization
which he knows has a specific and sub-
stantial interest that would be directly
affected by the outcome of the investi-
gation or prosecution.

(b) An employee assigne i. ze or oth-
erwise participating b a criv1inal in-
vestigation or prose:is*. who be-
lieves that his pardsi. may be
prohibited by paragt 5.) of this
section shall report th dar and all
attendant facts and C'Irc.,,atitances to
his supervisor at the level of section
chief or the equivalent or higher. If
the supervisor determines that a per-
sonal or political relationship exists
between the employee and a person or
organization described in paragraph
(a) of this section. he shall relieve the
employee from participation unless he
determines further, in writing, after
full consideration of all the facts and
circumstances. that:

(1) The relationship will not have
the effect of rendering the employee's
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service I-ss than fully impartial and
professit al: and

(2) The employee's participation
woukl no' create an appearance of a
conflict oc interest likely to affect the
publi perception of the integrity of
the imestigation or prosecution.

(c) )'or tr.-, purposes of this section:
(1) "Political relationship" means a

close identification with an elected of-
ficial, a condklate (whether or not suc-
cessful) for elective, public office, a po-
litical party, or a campaign organiza-
tion. arisir g from service as a principal
Adviser th.zeto or a principal official
thi,zeot. and

12) "Personal relationship" means a
close and substantial connection of the
type normally viewed as likely to
induce partiality. An employee is pre-
sumed to have a Personal relationship
with hls father, mother, brother,
sister, child and spouse. Whether rela-

. tionahlps (including friendships) of an
omapi nee to other persons or organiza-
Joi-s are "personal" must be judged

. In individual basis with due regard
6,v4n to the subjective opinion of the

t," This section pertains to agency
m-.Adtgement and is not intended to
innate rights enforceable by private in-
dividuals or organizations.
(Order No. 99343, 48 PR 2319. Jan. 19,
1983)

Disqualification arising from
' private financial Interests.
(a) No employee shall participate

personally and substantially as a Gov-
ernment employee, through decision,
approval, disapproval, recommenda-
tion. the rendering of advice. Investi-
gation or otherwise. in a judicial or
other proceeding, application, request
for a ruling or other determination,
contract, claim, controversy, charge,
accusation, arrest or other particular
matter in which, to his knowledge, he,
his spouse, minor child. partner, orga-
nization in which he Is serving as offi-
cer, director, trustee. partner or em-
ployee, or any person or organization
with whom he is negotiating or has
any arrangement concerning prospec-
tive employment, has a financial inter-
est, unless authorized to do so in ac-
cordance with the following described
procedure:

Title 28Judicial Administration

(1) The employee shall inform the
head of his division of the nature and
circumstances of the matter and Of
the financial interest involved and
shall request a determination as to the
Propriety of his participation in the
maner.

(2) The head of the division, after
examining the information submitted,
may relieve the employee from partici.
Pation in the matter. or he may
submit the matter to the Deputy At-
torney General with recommendations
for appropriate action. In cases so re.
ferred to him, the Deputy Attorney
General may relieve the employee
from participation in the matter or
may approve the employee's participa.
Lion in the matter upon determining
in writing that the interest involved is
not so substantial as to be likely to
affect the integrity of the services
which the Government may expect
from such employee.

lb) The financial interests described
below are hereby exempted from the
prohibition of 18 U.S.C. 208(a) aa
being too remote or too inconsequen-
tial to affect the integrity of an em-
ployee's services in a matter:

The stock, bond, or policy holdings of an
employee in a mutual fund. Investment cont.
pany, bank or Insurance company which
owns an interest ln an entity involved in the
matter, provided that in the cue of a
mutual fund, Inyeatment company 07 hank
the fair value of such stock or bond bolatnE
does not exceed 1 percent of the value of
the reported asseta of the mutual fund. tn.
rutment company, or bank.
(18 tr.s.c. 208)
(Order No. 350-65, 30 PR 17202. pec. 31.
1965, as amended bY Order No. 699-77.
FR 15315, Mar. 21, 1977: Order No. 98041,
48 PR 52358, Oct. 27. 19811

§ 45,735-8 Activities and compensation of
employees in claims against and other
matters affecting the Government.

(a) No employee, otherwise than in
the PrOPer discharge of his official
duties. shall

(1) Act as agent or attorney for PrOs-
ecuting any claim against the United
States. or receive any gratUlty, or any
share of or interest in any such claim
in consideration of assistance in the
prosecution of such claim:
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, (2) Act as agent or attorney for
anyone before any department.
agency, court, court-martial. office, or
any civil, military, or naval commis-
sion in connection with any proceed-
ing. application, request for a ruling or
other determination, contract. claim.
controversy, charge, accusation. arrest
or other particular matter in which
the United States is a party or has a
direct and substantial interest: or

(3) Directly or indirectly receive or
agree to receive, or ask. demand. solicit
or seek, any compensation for any
services rendered or to be rendered
either by himself or another, before
any department agency, court. court-
martial. officer. or any civil, military,
or naval commission. in relation to any
matter enumerated and described in
paragraph (a)(2) of this section.

(b) A special Government employee
shall be subject to paragraph (a) of
this section only In relation to a par-
ticular matter involving a specific
party or parties (1) in which he has at
any time participated Personally and
substantially as a Government em-
ployee through decision. approval. dis-
approval, recommendation, the ren-
dering of advice, investigation, or oth-
erwise. or (2) which is Pending in the
Justice Department Provided, That
Paragraph (b)(2) of this section shall
not apply in the case of a special Gov-
ernment employee who has served in
the Justice Department no more than
60 days during the immediately pre-
ceding period of 365 consecutive daya.

(c) Nothing in this part shall be
deemed to prohibit an employee, 1f it
is not otherwise inconsistent with the
faithful performanCe of his duties.
from acting without compensation as
agent or attorney for any person in a
disciplinary, loyalty, or other Federal
personnel administration proceeding
involving such person.

(d) Nothing in this part shall be
deemed to prohibit an employee from
acting, with or without compensation.
as agent or attorney for his parents,
sPouse, child, or any person for whom,
or for any estate for which, he is sera-
ing as guardian. executor, administra-
tor. trustee, or other personal fiduci-
ary. except In those matters in which
he has participated personally and
substantially as a Government ern.

33-089 0-414---28

§45.733-7

ployee. through decision, approval,
disapproval. recommendation, the ren-
dering of advice, Investigation, or oth-
erwise, or which are the subject of his
official responsibility, as defined in
section 202(b) of Title 18 of the United
States Code. provided that the head of
his division approves.

(e) Nothing in this part shall be
deemed to prohibit an employee from
giving testimony under oath or from
making statements required to be
made under penaltY for perjury or
contempt.
(18 U.S.C. 203, 205)

645.735-7 Disqualification of former em-
ployees: disqualificadon of partners of
current employees.

(a) No individual who has been an
employee shall, after his employment
has ceased, knowingly act as ai.ent or
attorney for, or otherwise represent,
anY other person (except the United
States) in any formal or informal ap-
pearance before, or, with the intent to
influence, make any oral or written
comxnunication on behalf of any other
Person (except the United States) (1)
to any department, agency, cOurt.
court-martial, or any civil, military, or
naval commission of the United States
or the District of Columbia. or any of-
ficer or employee thereof. (2) in con-
nection with any judicial or other Pro-
ceeding, application, request for a
ruling or other determination. con-
tract, claim, controversy, investigation.
charge. accusation. arrest. or other
particular matter involving a specific
party or parties in which the United
States or the District of Columbia is a
Party or has a direct and substantial
interest. and (3) in which he partici-
pated personally and substantially as
an employee through decision, approv-
al. disapproval. recommendation, the
rendering of advice, investigation or
otherwiae. while so employed. (18
U.S.C. 207(a))

(b) No individual who has been an
employee shall, within two years after
his employment has ceased., knowingly
act as agent or attorney for. or other-
wise represent, any other person
(except the United States) in any
formal or informal appearance before,
or with intent to influence, make any
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oral or written communication on
behalf of any other person (except the
United States) (1) to an organization
enumerated in paragraph (a)(1) of this
section. or any officer or employee
thereof. (2) in connection with anY
matter enumerated and described in
paragraph (a)(2) of this section. and
(3) which was actually pending under
his official responsibility as an em-
ployee within a period of one year
prior to the termination of such re-
sponsibility. (18 U.S.C. 207( b )(i))

(c) No individual who has been an
employee in an executive level posi-
tion, in a position with a comparable
or greater rate of pay. or in a position
that involved significant decisiontnak-
lug or supervisory responsibility as
designated by the Director. of the
Office of Government Ethics under 18
U.S.C. 207(d)(1)(C), shall. within two
years after his employment in such
position has ceased, knowingly repre-
sent or aid, counsel, advise. consult, or
assist in representing any other person
(except the United States) by personal
presence at any formal or informal ap-
pearance before (1) an organization
enumerated in paragraph (a)(1) of this
section. or an officer or employee
thereof,. (2) in connection with any
matter enumerated and described in
paragraph (a)(2) of this section. and
(3) in which he participated personally
or substantially as an employee. (18
U.S.C. 207(b)(11))

(d) No individual (other than one
who was a special Government em-
ployee with service of less than sixty
days in a given calendar year) who has
been an employee in an executive level
Position or a position with a comPara-
ble or greater rate a pay, or in a posi-
tion which involved significant deci-
sionmaking or supervisory responsibil-
ity as designated by the Director of
the Office of Government Ethics
under 18 U.S.C. 207(d)(1)(C), shall,
within one year after such employ-
ment has ceased, knowingly engage in
conduct described in the next sen-
tence. The prohibited knowing con-
duct is that of acting as attorney or
agent for, or otherwise representing,
anyone other than the United States
in any formal or informal appearance
before. or with the intent to influence.
making any oral or written comniuni-

Title 28Judicial Administration

cation on behalf of anyone other than
the United States (1) to the Depart-
ment of Justice, or any employee
thereof. (2) in connection with any
rulemaking or any matter enumerated
and described in paragraph (a)(2) of
this section. and (3) which is pending
before this Department or in which it
has a direct and substantial interest.
(18 U.S.C. 207(c): but see 5 CFR
737.13. 737.31 and 737.32)

(e) No partner of an employee shall
act as agent or attorney for anyone
other than the United States before
an organization enumerated in para-
graph (a)(1) of this section, or any of-
ficer or employee thereof, in connec-
tion ;rith any matter enumerated and
described in paragraph (a)(2) of this
sectiva in which such Government em-
ployee is participating or has partici-
pated personally and substantially as a
Government employee through deci-
sion, approval, disapproval. recommen-
dation. the rendering of advice, inves-
tigation or otherwise, or which is the
subject of his official responsibility.
(1817.S.C. 207(a))

(Order No. 885-80. 45 FR 26328. Apr. 18.
10801

5 45.735-7a Disciplinary proceedinp
under 18 MSC. 207(j).

(a) Upon a determination by the As-
sistant Attorney General in charge of
the Criminal Division (Assistant Attor-
ney General), after investigation, that
there is reasonable cause to believe
that a former officer or employee. in-
cluding a former special Government
employee, of the Department of Jus-
tice (former departmental employee)
has violated 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) or
Cc), the Assistant Attorney General
shall cause a coPY of written charges
of the violation(s) to be served upon
such individual, either personally or
by registered mail. The charg(ts shall
be accompanied by a notice to the
former departmental employee to
show cause within a specified time of
not less than 30 days after receipt of
the notice why he or she should not be
prohibited from engaging in represen-
tational activities in relation to mat-
ters pending in the Department of
Justice. as authorized by 18 U.S.C.
207(.1), or subjected to other appropri-
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ate disciplinary action under that stat-
ute. The notice to show cause shall in-
clude:

(1) A statement of allegations, and
their basis, sufficiently detailed to
enable the former departmental em-
ployee to prepare an adequate defense.

(2) Notification of the right to a
hearing. and

(3) An explanation of the method by
which a hearing may be requested.

(b) If a former departmental
ee who submits an answer to the

notice to show cause does not request
a hearing or if the Assistant Attorney
General does not receive an answer
within five days after the expiration
of the time prescribed by the notice,
the Assistant Attorney General shall
forward the record, Including the
report(s) of investigation to the Attor-
ney General. In the case of a failure to
answer, such failure shall constitute a
waiver of defense.

(c) Upon receipt of a former depart-
mental employee's request for a hear-
ing, the Assistant Attorney General
shall notify him or her of the time and
place thereof, giving due regard both
to such pemon's need for an adequate
period to prepare a suitable defense
and an expeditious resolution bf alle-
gations that rosy be damaging to his
or her reputation.

(d) The presiding officer at the hear-
ing and any related proceedings shall
be a federal administrative law judge
or other federal official with compara-
ble duties. He shall insure that the
former departmental employee has.
among others, the rights:

(1) To self.representation or repre-
sentation by counsel.

(2) To introduce and examine wit-
nesses and submit physical evidence.

(3) To confront and cross-examine
adverse witnesses,

(4) To present oral argument. and
(5) To a transcript or recording of

the proceedings. upon request.
(e) The Assistant Attorney General

shall designate one or more officers or
employees of the Department of Jus-
tice to present the evidence against
the former departmental employee
and perform other functions incident
to the proceedings.

(f) A decision adverse to the former
departmental employee must be sus-

§ 45.735-70

tained by substantial evidence that he
violated 18 U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) or (c).

(g) The presiding officer shall issue
an Initial decision based exclusively on
the transcript of testimony and exhib-
its. together with all Patters and re-
quests filed in the proceeding, and
shall set forth in the decision findings
and conclusions. supported by reasons,
on the material issues of fact and law
presented on the record.

(h) Within 30 days after issuance of
the Initial decision. either 9arty. maY
appeal to the Attorney General, who
in that event shall issue the final deci-
sion based on the record of the pro-
ceedings or those portions thereof
cited by the parties to limit the issues.
If the final decision modifies or re-
verses the initial decibion. the Attor-
ney General shall specify Cle findings
of fact and conclusions of law that
vary from those of the presiding offi-
cer.

(1) If a former departmental employ-
ee fails to appeal from an adverse ini-
tial decision within the prescribed
period of time, the presiding officer
shall forward the record of the pro-
ceedings to the Attorney General.

(1) In the case of a former depart-
mental employee who filed an answer
to the notice to show cause but did not
request a hearing. the Attorney Gen-
eral shall make the final decision on
the record submitted to him by the
Assistant Attorney General Pursuant
to subsection (b) of this section.

(k) The Attorney General, in a case
where:

(1) The defense has been waived.
(2) The former departmental em-

ployee has failed to appeal from an ad-
verse initial decision. or

(3) The Attorney General has issued
a final decision that the former de-
Partmental employee violated 18
U.S.C. 207 (a), (b) or (c),
may issue an order:

(1) Prohibiting the former depart-
mental employee from making. on
behalf of any other person (except the
United States). any informal or formal
appearance before, or. with the intent
to influence, any oral or written com-
munication to. the Department of Jus-
tice on a pending matter of business
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for a period not to exceed five years.
or

(ii) Prescribing other appropriate
disciplinary action.

(1) An order issued under either
Paragraph (k)(3) (1) or (11) of this sec-
tion may be supplemented by a direc-
tive to officers and employees of the
Department of Justice not to engage
in conduct in relation to the former
departmental employee that would
contravene such order.
(Order No. 889-80, 45 FR 31717. May 14.
19801

0 45.735-8 Salary of employees payable
only by United States.

(a) No employee, other than a spe-
cial Government employee or an em-
ployee serving without compensation,
shall receive any salary, or any contri-
bution to or supplement of salary, as
compensation for hig services as an
employee a the Department of Jus-
tice. from anY source other than the
Government of the United States.
except as nmy be contributed out of
the treasury of any State. county, or
municipality.

(b) Nothing in this part shall be
deemed to prohibit an employee from
continuing to participate in a bona
fide pension. retirement. group life,
health, or accident insurance, profit-
sharing, stock bonus, or other employ-
ee. welfare, or benefit plan maintained
by a former employer.
(18 I -S.C. 209)

§45.735-9 Private professional practice
and outside employment.

(a) No professional employee shall
engage in the private practice of his
profession, including the PraCtioe of
law, except as may be authorized by or
under paragraPh (c) or (e) of this sec-
tion. Acceptance of a forwarding fee
shall be deemed to be within the fore-
going prohibition. Teaching will not be
considered "professional practice" for
purposes of this rule. Employees who
wish to undertake teaching engage-
ments should consult 145.735-12.

(b) Paragraph (a) of this section
shall not be applicable to special Gov-
errunent employees.

(c)(1) Employees are encouraged to
provide public interest professional

Title 28Judicial Administration

services so long as such services do not
interfere with their official responsi-
bilities. Such public interest services
must be conducted without compensa-
tion, and during off-duty hours or
while on leave. Leave will be granted
for court appearances or other neces-
sary incidents of representation In ac-
cordance with established Policy on
leave administration (see DOJ Order
1830.1A). Representation of Federal
employees in Equal Employment Op-
portunity (MO) complaint procedures
may be provided in accordance with
I 45.735-6(c) of this title and the De-
partment's established EEO policy
(see DOJ Order 1713.5) rather than
this subsection. No employee May
seek. or assist a plaintiff who seeks, an
award of attorney's fees for services
provided pursuant to this subsection.

(2) Any pro bono services provided
by an employee must be consistent
with Federal law and regulations. In
determining whether to provide pro
bono services in a particular matter,
the employee should give particular
attention to the requirements of para-
graph (f) of this section. Notice of in-
tention to provide pm bono services
shall be given in writing to the head of
the employee's division (or in the case
of an Assistant U.S. Attorney to the
Executive Office of U.S. Attorneys
with the U.S. Attorney's comments ap-
pended thereto). Should the division
head or Executive Office believe the
public interest professional service
may not conform to the requirements
of this section the disagreement will
Promptly be 'referred to the Deputy
Attorney General for final resolution.

(3) Public interest services should
fall into one of the following catego-
ries:

(1) Service to a client who does not
have the financial resources to pay for
Professional services:

(11) Services to assert or defend indi-
vidual or public rights which society
has a special interest in protecting;

(111) Services to further the organiza-
tional purpose-of a charitable, reli-
gious, civic, or educational organiza-
tion; or

(iv) Services designed to improve the
administration of justice.

(d) Employees May provide profes-
sional services, pursuant to § 45.735-
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6(d) of this title, to those relatives and
personal fiduciaries who are listed in
that section.

(e) The Deputy Attorney General
may make other specific exceptions to
paragraph (a) of this section in unusu-
al circumstances. Application for ex-
ceptions must be made tn writing stat-
ing the reasons therefor. and directed
to the Deputy Attorney General
through the applicant's superior.
Action taken by the Deputy AttorneY
General with respect to any such ap-
plication shall be made in writing and
shall be directed to the applicant.

(f) No employee shall engage in auy
Professional practice under this sec-
tion or any other outside employmentif

(1) The activity will-in any manner
interfere with the proper and effective
performance of the employee's official
duties:

(2) The activity will create or appear
to create a conflict of interest:

(3) The activity will reflect adversely
upon the Department of Justice:

(4) The employee's position In the
Department of Justice will influence
or appear to influence the outcome of
the matter:

(5) The activity will involie asser-
tions that are contrary to the interests
or positions of the United States; or

(6) The activity involves anY crimi-
nal matter or proceeding whether Fed-
eral, State or local, or any other
matter or proceeding in which the
United States (including the District
of Columbia government) is a party or
has a direct and substantial interest.
(Order No. 909-80. 45 TAR 57125. Aug. 27.
1980. as amended bY Order No. 980-81. 48
FR 52358. Oct. 27, 19811

g 45.735-10 Improger use of official infor-
mation.

No employee shall use for financial
gain for himself or for another person,
or make any other improper use of.
whether by direct action on his part or
by counsel, recommendation, or sug-
gestion to another person, information
which comes to the employee by
reason of his status as a Department
of Justice employee and which has not
become part of the body of public in-
formation.

§ 45.735-12

fl 45.735-11 Investments.
No employee shall make invest-

ments: (a) In enterprises which it is
reasonable to believe will be involved
in decisions to be made by him. (b) on
the basis of information which comes
to him by reason of his status as a De-
partment of Justice employee and
which has not become part of the
body of public information or (c)
which are reasonably likely to create
any conflict in the proper discharge of
his official duties.

45.735-12 Speeches, publications and
teaching.

(a) No employee shall, accept a fee
from an outside source on account of a
public appearance. speech, lecture, or
publication if the public appearance or
the preparation of the speech, lecture,
or publication was a pert of the offi-
cial duties of the employee.

(a) No employee shal' receive com-
Pensation or anything af monetary
value for any consultation, lecture,
teaching, discussion, writtng, or ap-
pearance the subject matter of which
is devoted substantially to the respon-
sibilities, programs or operations of
the Department. or which draws sub-
stantially on official data or ideas
which have not become part of the
body of public information.

(c) No employee shall engage,
whether with or without compensa-
tion, in teaching, lecturing or writing
that is dependent on information ob-
tained as a result of his Government
employment except when that infor-
mation has been made available to the
general public or when the Deputy At-
torney General gives written authori-
zation for the use of nonpublic infor-
mation on the basis that the use is in
the public interest.

(d)(1) The Attorney General,
Deputy Attorney General, Associate
Attorney General, and the heads of di-
visions shall not make speeches or oth-
erwise lend their names or support in
a prominent fashion to a fundraising
drive or a fundraising event or similar
event intended for the benefit of any
person. No Department of Justice em-
Ployee or special Government employ-
ee shall engage in any of these activi-
ties if the invitation was extended pri-
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marily because of his official position
'with the Department or if the fact of
his official position with the Depart.
ment has been or will be used in the
promotion of the event to any signifi-
cant degree.

(2) For purposes of this subsection,
an event wil be regarded as a fundrals.
Ing event if anY portion of the ticket
or other cost of admission is designat-
ed as a charitable contribution for tax
purposes, If one of its purposes is to
produce net proceeds for the benefit
of any person, or if it is a "kickoff"
dinner or similar occasion that is part
of a broader fundraising effort.

(3) Nothing in this subsection shall
apply to the Combined Federal Cam-
paign or any. other authorized fund-
raising drive directed primarily at Fed-
eral employees, or to a 'fundraising
event of an organization which Ls
exempt from taxation under 28 U.S.C.
501(c)(3).

(4) Nothing in this subsection shall
apply to a meeting, seminar, or confer-
ence sponsored by a professional or
other appropriate organization where
a tuition or other fee is charged for at-
tendance if such tuition or fee [s rea-
sonable under the circumstances.

(e) When an employee is prohibited
by this section from accepting com-
pensation for an activity, he is also
prohibited from suggesting that the
person offering such compensation
donate it to a particular charity or
other third party.
torder No. 350-83, 30 FR 17202, Dec. 31.
1985, as amended by Order No. 899-77, 42
FR 15315. Mar, 21, 1977; Order No. 780-77,
42 FR 84119, Dec. 22. 1977; Order No. 84 f-
78, 43 FR 52702, Nov. 14. 1978:44 FR 38028.
June 20, 1979; Order No. 887-80, 45 FR
29574. May 5, 1980; Order No. 980-81, 48 FR
52358. Oct. 27.19811

45.735-13 [Reserved]

45.735-14 Gifts, entertainment. and
favors.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph
(c) of this section, an employee other
than a special Government employee
shall not solicit or accept, for himself
or another person, directly or indirect-
ly, any gift, gratuity, favor, entertain-
ment, loan, or any other thing of mon-
etary value, from a person who:

Title 28Judicial Administration

(1) Has, or Is seeking to obtain, con-
tractual or other business or financial
relations with the Department;

(2) Conducts operations or activities
that are regulated by the Department:

(3) Is engaged, either as principal or
attorney, in proceedings before the
Departmental or in court proceedings
in which the United States Ls an ad-
verse party; or

(4) Has interests that may be sub-
stantially affected bY the performance
or nonperformance of the employee's
official duty.

(b) Except as provided in paragraph
(c) of this section, a special Govern-
ment employee shall be subject to the
prohibition set forth in paragraph
(a)(4) of this section.

(c) Paragraphs (a) and (b) of this
section shall not be construed to pro-
hibit

(1) Solicitation or acceptance of any-
thing of monetary value from a friend,
parent, spouse, child or other close rel-
ative when the circumstances make it
clear that the motivation for the
action is a personal or family relation-
ship.

(2) Acceptance of food and refresh-
ments of nominal value on Infrequent
occasions in the ordinary course of a
luncheon or dinner meeting or other
meeting.

(3) Acceptance of loans from banks
or other financial institutions on cus-
tomary terms of finance for proper
and usual activities of employees, such
as home mortgage loans.

(4) Acceptance of unsolicited adver-
tising or promotional material, such as
pens, pencils, note pads, calendars and
other items of nominal intrinsic value.

(d) No employee shall accept a gift,
present, decoration, or other thing
from a foreign government unless au-
thorized by Congress as provided by
the Constitution (Art. I, sec. 9, (I. ")
and in Pub. L. 89-873, 80 Stat. 932.

(e) No employee shall solicit c- -

tribution from another employee fc a.
gift to an official superior, nor make a
donation as a gift to an official superi-
or. nor accept a gift from an employee
receiving less pay than himself (5
U.S.C. 7351). However, this paragraph
does nct prohibit a voluntary gift of
nominal value or donation in a nomi-
nal amount made on a special occasion

396

150



148

CI(aptar IDeportment of Justice

such as marriage. Illness, or retire-
ment.
(5 U.S.C. 7351)
(Order No. 350-45. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1965. as amended by Order No. 383-67, 32
FR 13217. Sept. 19. 1967: Order No. 960-81.
46 FR 52358. OcL 27.19811

45.735-1Ist Reimbursement for travel
and subsistence: acceptancr of awards.

(a) Employees may not Accept reim-
bursement for travel or Qcpenses Inci-
dent to travel en official business from
any source other Mali the Federal
Government However, employees may
accept such reimbursement. from or-
ganizations that are exempt from tax-
ation under the Internal Revenue
Code, 26 U.S.C. 501(c)(3) for expenses
Incident to training or the attendance
at meetings In accordance with 5
U.S.C. 4111 and 5 CFR 410.702.

(b) Employees may accept reim-
bursement for travel or expenses Inci-
dent to travel of a nonofficial nature,
so long as the circumstances are such
that acceptance of the reimburaz-.,ent
Ls compatible with other resn'.' z:ons
set forth in this part.

(c) Employees will n..)t be deemed to
be on official business when they
attend the meetings of a charitable,
religious, professional, social, frater-
nal. educational, recreational, public
service or civic organization if they
have not been directed by the Depart-
ment to attend the meeting and if
they do not receive Government reim-
bursement for their travel or other ex-
penses incident to attendance at the
meetings.

(d) Employees may accept awards
from the organizations described in
paragraph (c) of this section, so long
as the circumstances are such that ac-
ceptance Ls compatible with other re-
strictions set forth in this part.

(e) Employees may accept reins-
bursernent for travel or expenses Inci-
dent to travel from an organization de-
scribed in paragraph (a) or (c) of this
section for the actual expenses of an
accompanying spouse in connection
with the employee% attendance at the
meetings of the organization or ac-
ceptance of an award from the organi-
zation. The acceptance of spousal ex-
penses under this paragraph shall not
depend upon the official or nonofficial

§ 45.735-17

nature of the employee's travel, but it
must be otherwise compatible with the
restrictions set forth in this part. In
particular, employees may not accept
spousal expenses from an organization
that:

(1) Has, or is seeking to obtain, con-
tractual or other business or financial
relations with the Department.

(2) Conducts operations or activities
that are regulated by the Department.

(3) Ls engaged, either as principal or
attorney. in Proceedings before the
Department or In court proceedings in
which the United States Is an adverae
party.

(4) Has interests that may be sub-
stantially affected by the performance
or nonperformance of the employee's
official duties.
(Order No. 960-81, 46 FR 52358, Oct. 27,
19811

0 46.735-16 Employee indebtedness.
The Department of Justice considers

the Indebtedness of its employees to
be essentially a matter of their own
concern. The Department of Justice
will not be placed in the position of
acting as a collection agency or of de-
termining the validity or amount of
contested debts. Nevertheless, failure
on the part of an employee without
good reason and in a proper and
timely manner to honor debts ac-
knowledged by him to be valid or re-
duced to Judgment by a court or to
make or to adhere to satisfactory ar-
rangements for the settlement thereof
may be the muse for disciplinary
action. In this connection each em-
ployee Is expected to meet his respon-
sibilities for payment of Federal,
State and local taxes.

9 46.735-16 Misuse of Federal property.
No employees may use Federal prop-

erty for other than officially approved
activities. Each employee Is responsi-
ble for protecting and conserving Fed-
eral property. Including equipment
and supplies.

015.735-17 Gambling, betting, and lotter-
ies.

No employee shall participate, while
on Government property or while on
duty for the Government, in the oper-
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ation of gambling devices. In conduct-
ing an organized lottery or pool. in
games for money or property, or in
selling or purchasing numbers tickets.

45.735-18 tReservedl

45.735-19 Partisan political activities.
(a) While certain political activities

are prohibited by the criminal statutes
of the United States (see 18 U.S.C.
Chapter 29). the basic restrictions on
political activity of employees are set
forth in 5 U.S.C. 7321-7328.

(b) Most employees are subject to
both statutory and Civil Service re-
strictions upon Partisan Polltial ac-
tivities although employees 4-4 the
Federal Government in some geo-
graphical areas may take part in cer-
tain local political activities. Employ-
ees have the right to vote as they
choose and to expresi opinions on po-
litical subjects and candidates. De-
tailed information may be obtained
through sdrninfstrative and Personnel
offices.
(Order No. 350-85. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 3L
1965. as amended by Order No. 383-87, 32
FR 13217, Sept, 19, 1967: Order No. 980-81.
46 PR 52358. Oct 27. 19813

0 45.735-21 Miscellaneous statutory provi-
sions.

Each employee should be aware of
the following statutory prohibitions
against:

(a) Lobbying with appropriated
funds (18 U.S.C. 1913).

(1)) Disloyalty and striking (5 U.S.C.
7311. 18 U.S.C. 1918).

( c) Employment of a member of a
Communist organization (5C U.S.C.
784).

(d) (1.) Disclosure of classified infor-
mation (18 U.S.C. 798, 50 U.S.C. 783):
and (2) disclosure of confidential in-
formation (1.8 U.S.C. 1905).

(e) Habitual use of intoxicants to
excess (5 U.S.C. 7352).

(f) Misuse of a Government vehicle
(31 U.S.C. 638a).

(g) Misuse of the franking privilege
(18 U.S.C. 1719).

(h) Use of deceit in an examination
or personnel action in connection with
Government employment (18 U.S.C.
1917).

Title 28--Judicial Administration

(1) Fraud or false statements in a
Government matter (18 U.S.C. 1001).

(j) Multilating or destroying a public
record (18 U.S.C. 2071).

(k) Counterfeiting and forging trons-
portation requests (18 U.S.C. 508).

(1)(1) Embezzlement of Government
money or property (18 U.S.C. 641): (2)
failing to account for public money (18
U.S.C. 643): and (3) embezzlement of
the money or property of are'her
person In the possession of an' en.
ee by reason of his employment U..
U.S.C. 654).

Cm) Unauthorized use of documents
relating to claims from or by the Gov-
ernment (18 U.S.C. 285).

(n) Acting as the agent of a foreign
principal registered under the Foreign
Agents Registration Act (18 U.S.C.
219).

(o) Engaging in violation of merit
system principles (5 U.S.C. 2301).

(p) Engaging in prohibited personnel
practices (5 U.S.C. 2302).
(Order No. 3504). 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1965. as amended by Order No. 383-67. 32
FR 13217. Sept. 19. 1967: Order No. 960-81.
48 FR 52358. Oct. 27.19813

45.735-22 Reporting of outsids interests
by persons ether than special Govern-
ment employees.

(a) Each employee occupying a posi-
tion designated in paragraph (c) of
this section. and who in not required to
submit a financial disclosure report
under 8 45.735-27 of this title, shall
submit to the head of his division a
statement on a form. made available
through the appropriatz division ad-
ministrative office. setting forth the
following informatiom

(1) A list of the names of all corpora-
tions. companies, firms, or other busi-
ness enterprises. partnerships. non-
profit organizations, and educational
or other institutions with or in which
he. his spouse, minor child or other
member of his Immediate household
has-

(i) Any connection as an employee.
officer, owner, director, member, trust-
ee, partner, adviser or consultant: or

(11) Any continuing financial inter-
est, through a pension or retirement
plan, shared income, or other arrange-
ment as a result of any current or
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prior employment or business or pro-
fessional association: or

MD Any financial interest through
the ownership of stock, stock options.
bonds, securities, or other arrange-
ments including trusts, except those Vv.
nancial interests described In § 45.735-
5(b).

(2) A list of the names of his credi-
tors and the creditors of his spouse,
minor child or other member of his
immediate household, other than
those creditors to whom any such
person may be Indebted by reason of a
mortgage on property which he occu-
pies as a personal residence or to
whom such person may be indebted
for current and ordinary household
and living expenses such as those in-
curred for household furnishings, an
automobile, education, vacations or
the like.

(3) A list of his interests and those
of his spouse, minor child or other
member of his immediate household
in real property or rights in lands.
other than property which he occupies
as a personal residence.
Par the purpose of this section
"member of his immediate household"
means a resident of the employee's
household who Is related to him by
blood.

(b) Each employee designs:ued in
paragraph (c) of this section who
enters upon duty after the date of this
order, and who is not required to
submit a financial disclosure report
under § 45.735-27 of this title, shall
submit such statement not later than
30 days after the date of his entrance
on duty or 90 days after the effective
date of this order, whichever is later.

(c) Statements of employment and
financial interest are required of the
following employees:

(1) Office of the AttorneY General:
Counsellor
Special Assistants
Special Counsels

(2) Office of the Deputy Attorney
General:
Associate Deputy Attorneys General
Executive Assistant

(3) Office of the Associate Attorney
General:
Deputy Associate Attorneys General

§ 45.735-22

Special Assistants

(4) Office of the Solicitor General:
Tax Assistant

(5) Off ice of Legal Counsel:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General

(6) Office of Legal Policy:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General

(7) Off ice of Legislative Affairs:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Chief. Legislative end Legal Section

(8) Justice Management Division:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Staff Directors
Administrative Counsel

(9) Office of Professional Responsi-
bility:
Counsel on Professional Responsibility
Deputy Counsel
Assistant Counsels

(10) Community Relations Service:
Deputy Director
Associate Director
Chief Counsel
Regional Directors

(11) Antitrust Divisiom
Deputy Assistant Attorney General
Director of Economic Policy Office
Director of OPerations
Deputy Director of Operations
Director. Policy Planning Office
Section Chiefs
Field Office chiefs

(12) Civil Division:
Deputy Assistant Attorney General
Section Chiefs

(13) Civil Rights Division:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Special Assistants
Executive Officer
Section Chiefs
Director(s) of Offices

(19) Criminal Division:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Section Chiefs

(15) Land and Resources Di-
vision:
Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Section Chiefs

(18) Tax Division:
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Deputy Assistant Attorneys General
Section Chiefs

(17) Federal Bureau of Investigation:
Assistant Director. Administrative Services

Division

(18) National Institute of Correc-
tions (Bureau of Prisuas):
Director, National Institute of Corrections
Employees classified at GS-I3 or above who

are Ln pviitiona involving: (I) Contracting
or proem .:menr.. or OD administering, au-
diting or monitoring grants and contracts

(19) Drug Enforcement Administra-
tion:
Assistant Administrators
Office Directors
Chief Counsel
Chief Inspector
Controller
LaboratorY Directors -
Regional Directors
Chief, Administrative Services Division
Contract and Procurement Officer
Contract Specialists. G8-13 and above
Chief. Compliance Division
Section Chiefs. Compliance Division
Project Officer. GS-13 and above

(20) Immigration and Naturalization
Service:

Associate Commissioner, Management
Assistant Commissioner. Administration
Regional Commissioners
Deputy Regional Commissioners
Associate Deputy Regional Commissioners,

Management

(21) Office of Justice Assistance, Re-
search and Statistics:
Assistant D7rectors
Special .M.-:tperits to the DirectOr and tht

Assistrnt Directors
GetteralCinusel
Administrator. Law Enforcement M....Seance

Administration
Administrator, Office of Juvenile Justice

and Delinquency Prevention
Director, National Institute of Justice
Director. Bureau of Justice Statistics
All Deputy Administrators of the above of-

fices
Employees classified st GS-13 or above who

are in positions involving: a) Contracting
or procurement. or (h) administering, au-
diting or monitoring grants and rontracts.
(22) United States Marshab Service:

Director
Deputy Director
United States Marshals

Title 28Judicial Administration

(d) Changes in. Or additions to, the
information contained in an employ
ee's statement of employment and fi-
nancial interests shall be reported in a
supplementary statement as of June
30 each year. If no changes or addi-
tions occur, a negative report is re-
quired. Notwithstanding the filing of
the annual report required by this sec-
tion, each employee shall at all ti nes
avoid acquiring a financial interest
that could result, or taking In nctiin
that would' result, in a violation of the
conflict-of.interest provisions set forth
in this Part.

(e) U any information required to be
included on a statement of employ-
ment and financial interests or supple-
mentary statement, including holdings
placed in trust, is not known to the
employee but is known to another
person, the employee shall request
that other person to submit informa-
tion in his behalf.

(f) Paragraph (a) of this section does
not require an employee to submit any
information relating to his connection
with, or interest in. a professional soci-
ety or a charitable. religious. social,
fraternal, recreational, public service,
civic, or political organization or a
simitor organization not conducted as
a business enterprise. For the purpose
of this section, educational and other
institutions doing research and devel-
opment or related work involving
grants of money from or contracts
with the Government are deemed
"business enterprises" and are re-
quired to be included in an employee's
statement of employment and finan-
cial interests.

(g) The Department shall hold each
statement of employment and Mum-
ob.l interests in confidence, and each
statement shall be maintained in con-
felential files in the immediate office
o. the division head. Each division
head shall designate which employees
are authorized to review and retain
the statements and shall limit such
designation tc those employees who
are Ids immediate assistants. Employ-
ees se designated are responsible for
maintt.lning the statements in coal-
dence and shall not allow access to, or
allow information to be disclosed
from, a statement except to carry out
the purpce-e of this part. The Depart-
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ment may not disclose information
from a statement except as the Civil
Service Commission or the Associate
Attorney General mc.y determine for
good cause. Upon termination of the
employment in the Department of any
person subject to this section. state-
ments which he has submitted in ac-
cordance with paragraph (a) of this
section shall be disposed of in accord-
ance with established Department pro-
cedures applicable to corlidential
records. In the event an employee sub-
ject to this section is transferred
within the Department. statements
which he has filed pursuant to para-
graph (a) of this section shall be trans-
ferred to the head of the division to
which the employee is reassigned.

(h) The statements of employment
and financial interests and supplemen-
tazy statementfrequired of employees
are in addition to, and not in substitu-
tion for, or in derogation of, any simi-
lar requirement imposed by law, order
or regulation. The submission of a
statement by an employee does not
Permit him or any other Person to par-
ticipate in a matter in which his or the
other person's participation is prohib-
ited by law, order, or regulation.

(1) Any employee who believes that
his position has been improperly de-
termined to be subject. to the report-
ing requirements of 45.735-22 may
obtain review of such determination
through the grievance procedure net
forth in 20 CFR Part 48 [At 38 FR
12098. June 25. 1971, 28 CFR Part 48
was removed].
(28 U.S.C. 509. 510)

(Order No. 350-85. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1985, as amended by Order No, 383-87. 32
FR 13217. Sept. 19. 1967: Order No. 412-89,
34 FR 5728. Mar. 27, 1969: Order No. 853-78,
41 FR 27317, July 2. 1978: Order No. 899-T7,
42 FR 15315. Mar, 21. 1977: Order No. 732-
77, 42 FR 35970. July .13. 1977: Order No,
899-80, 45 FR 43703. June 30, 1980; Order
No. 960-81. 46 FR 52358, Oct. 27. 19811

45.735-23 Reperting of outside interests
by special Government employewi

(a) A special Government employee
shall submit to the head of his division
a statement of employment and finan-
cial interests which reports: 41) All
other employment, and (2) those fi-
nancial interests which the head of his

§ 45.735-24

division determines are relevant in the
light of the duties he is to perform.

(b) A statement required under this
section shall be submitted at the time
of employment and shall be kept cur-
rent throughout the period of employ-
ment by the filing of supplementary
statements in accordance with the re-
quirements of 9 45.735-22(d). State-
ments shall be on forms made avail-
able through division administrative
officers.

(c) This section shall not be con-
strued as requiring the submission of
information referred to in 45.735-
22(f).

(d) Paragraphs (g) and (h) of
I 45.735-22 shall be applicable with re-
spect to statements required by this
section.
(Order No. 350-65. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1965. as amended by Order No. 383-67. 32
FR 13218. Sept. 19. 19671

45.735-24 Reviewing statements of finan-
cial Interests.

(a) The head of each division shall
review financial statements required
of any of his subordinates by
114 45.735-22 and 45.735-23 to deter-
mine whether there exists a conflict,
or possibility of conflict, between the
interests of a subordinate and the per-
formance of his service for the Gov-
ernment. If the head of the division
determines that such a conflict or pos-
sibility of cOnflict exists, he shall con-
sult with the subordinate. U he con-
chides that Temedial action should be
taken, he shall refer the statement to
the Associate Attorney General,
through the Department Counselor,
with his recommendation for such
action. The Associate Attorney Gener-
al. after such investigation as he
deems necessary, shall direct appropri-
ate remedial action if he deems it nec-
ensarY.

(b) Remedial action may include, but
in not limited to:

(1) Changes in assigned duties.
(2) Divestment by the employee of

his conflicting interest.
(3) Disqualification for a particular

action.
(4) Exemption pursuant to 4 45.735-

5.
(5) Disciplinary action.

401



153

§ 45.735-25

(Order No. 350-65. 30 FR 17202. Dec. 31.
1965. as amended by Order No. 899-77, 42
FR 15315. Mar. 21. 19771

9 45.735-25 Supplemsntal regulations.
The heads of divisions may issue

supplemental and implementing regu-
lations not inconsistent with this part.

0 45.735-26 Designated Agency Ethics Of-
ficial.

(a) The Assistant Attorney General
for Administration is the "designated
agency ethics official" (DAEO) for
this Department. Each division head is
directed to nominate an individual to
be designated by the DAEO as a
Deputy DAV) for the component
under the division head's supervision.

(b) In addition to the duties listed in
5 CFR 738.203, the DAEO shall pro-
vide for the regular distribution of
conduct regulations to employees, and
otherwise sada the Offices. Boards
and Divisions in meeting their respon-
sibilities under this part.

(c) Each Deputy DAEO, under the
general supervision and guidance of
the DAEO. shall have responsibility
for coordinating and managing the De-
partment's Ethics Program within his
or her component, including the edu-
cation and counselling of employees
on matters of conduct and profession-
al ethics.

(d) Each Deputy DAEO, within his
or her component, shall:

(1) Assist in the review and certifica-
tion of public financial disclosure
statements filed under the Ethics in
Government Act of 1978 as required
by 28 CPR 45.735-27(d):

(2) Assist in the review and certifica-
tion of any confidential financial dis-
closure reports filed by employees;

(3) Counsel employees with regard
to actual or potential conflicts of in-
terest and other ethical standards:

(4) Counsel departing and former
employees on post-employment con-
flicts of interest standards:

(5) Provide training and education in
standards of conduct for all employ-
ees:

(8) Provide for the efficient dissemi-
nation. collection and review of public
and confidential financial disclosure
statements required by the Ethics in

Title 25Judicial Administration

Government Act of 1978 and regula.
tions published thereunder:

(7) Report annually to the DAEO
any circumstances or situations which
have resulted or may result in non.
compliance with ethics laws and regu-
lations;

(8) Assist the division head in taking
prompt and effective action, including
administrative action, to remedy:

CD Violations or potential violations,
or appearances thereof, of the Depart-
ment's standards of conduct, including
post-employment regulations:

(il) The failure to file a financial dis-
closure report or portions thereof;

(HD Potential or actual conflicts of
interest, or appearances thereof.
which were disclosed on a financial
disclosure report; and

(iv) Potential or actual violation of
other Jaws governing the conduct or fi-
nancial holdings of officers or employ-
ees of the Department;

(9) Assist the division head in ensur-
ing that ordered remedial actions, in.
eluding divestiture and disqualifies.
tion. are actually taken; and

(10) Perform other duties as re .
quired by the DAEO, the Attorney
General, or, when appropriate. the
Office o2 Government Ethics.

(e) Each division head will notify the
DAEO when that division's Deputy
DAEO is no longer able to serve and
will nominate a new Deputy DAEO to
be appointed by the DAEO.
(Order No. 950-81, 48 FR 52359. Oct. 27.
1981. and Order No.1045-84. 49 FR 5921.
Feb. 16, 19841

1145.735-27 Public financial disclosure re-
nu I retnents.

(a) Pertons required to file. (1)
Except as provided in paragraph (a)(2)
of this section. the following persons
must file a public financial disclosure
report as required by Title II of the
Ethics In Government Act of 1978;

(1) Each employee in the Depart-
ment of Justice whose salary is fixed
under Subchapter II of Chapter 53 of
Title 5, United States Code (the Exec-
utive Schedule);

(ii) Each employee whose position is
classified at GS-16 or above of the
General Schedule prescribed by 5
U.S.C. 5332 or whose salary is required
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by law to be established at the mini-
mum rate of basic pay for level GS-16
or above of the General Schedule;

(HD Each United States Attorney;
(iv) Each Assistant United States At-

torney occupying a supervisory posi-
tion whose optimum Pay level is estab-
lished at the equivalent of the mini-
mum rate of basic pay for GS-16 or
above and who is actually compensat-
ed at a rate of pay equal to or greater
than the minimum rate of basic PaY
for GS-16.

(v) Each employee appointed pursu-
ant to section 3105 of Title 5. United
States Code (Administrative Law
Judges);

(vi) Each employee who is in a posi-
tion which is excepted from the com-
petitive service because it is of a confi-
dential or policy-making character
(Schedule C), as set forth in 5 CPR
213.3310, and who has a role in advis-
ing or making policy determinations
with respect to agency programs or
policies. Schedule C employees having
policy-making roles, such as Special
Assistants to the head of a division,
must file a report under this provision,
but Schedule C employees who do not
have a policy role, such as chauffeurs.
private secretaries, and stenographers,
need not;

(vii) Any other employee . (other
than an Assistant United States Attor-
ney or an employee compensated
under the General Schedule), includ-
ing a special government employee,
paid at a rate equal to or greater than
the minimum rate of basic pay estab-
lished for level GS-16 of the General
Schedule: and

(VW) Any Person nominated by the
President to a position described in
paragraphs (a)(1 )(i) through (a)(1)(vii)
of this section appointment to which
requires the advice and consent of the
Senate.

(2) An employee identified in para-
graph (a)(1) of this section who is re-
tained, designated, appointed or em-
ployed to perform services on all or
Part of 60 or fewer days in a calendar
year is not required to file a public 0-
nancial disclosure report. However, an
employee who was initially expected

'Section 213.3310 was superseded by a
document published at 46 FR 20147. Apr. 3,
1981. revisina Part 213 In its entirety.
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to perform ,n 60 or fewer
days ?Jut wht thcrx alter performs
etrytces on more than LIC days in a cal-
endar Year must immediately comply
with the public disclosure require-
ments as if he had been covered by
those requirements as of the date of
his initial retention, designation, ap-
pointment, or erhployment.

(b) rime of filing. (1) Each employee
described in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion must file a report: (i) Within 30
days of 11.4311111111g his position, unless
he has left another position in the Ex-
ecutive Branch covered by the public
disclosure reciulrements: (11) annually.
on or before May 15. covering the pre-
ceding calendar year: and (Hi) within
30 days of leaving his position, unless
he accepts another position in the Ex-
ecutive Branch covered by the public
disclosure requirements.

(2) The reviewing official designated
in paragraph (d) of th1 section may,
for good cause, extend the deadline
for filing reports identified in para-
graph (a)(1) of this section for up to
20 days. The reviewing official may
grant an extension of up to 15 addi-
tional days if the employee submits in
writing rettsons which establish good
cause for an extension. Any further
extension must be approved by the Di-
rector of the Office of Government
Ethics.

(3) A person nominated to a position
appointment to which requires the
advice and consent of the Senate must
file his report within 5 days of the
transmittal of his nomination to the
Senate by the President.

(4) The Assistant Attorney General
for Admblistration and an employee in
or nomf; e to a position appointment
to whic1 2 requires the advice and con-
sent of the Senate shall furnish a copy
of his report to the Director of the
Office of Government Ethics at the
time he files the original report with
the appropriate reviewing official.

(c) Approvals by Director of the
Office of Government Ethics. A Public-
ly available waiver permitting the
omission of information pertaining to
certain gifts under section 202(a)(2) of
the Act and the approval of blind
trusts under section 202(0(3)()) of
the Act may only be granted by the

403

157



155

§ 45.735-27

Director of the Office of Government
Ethics.

4c1) Identification of reviewing offi-
cials. (1) Reports filed by employees
described in paragraph (a) of this sec-
tion shall be filed with and reviewed
by the following officials:

(1) The Associate Attorney General
shall review reports filed by the Attor-
ney General and any employee in the
Office of the Attorney General:

(11) The Attorney General shall
review reports filed by the Deputy At-
torney General:

Wit The Deputy Attorney General
shall review reports filed by the Asso-
ciate Attorney General. Solicitor Gen-
eral, Director of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, and the head a each di-
vision under his supervision:

(iv) The Associate Attorney General
shall review reports filed by the head
of each division not included in para-
graph (d)(1)(111) of this section;

(v) The Director of the Executive
Office for United States Attorneys
shall review reports filed by United
States Attorneys and Assistant United
States Attorneys:

(vi) Except as provided above, the
head of each division shall review re-
ports filed by employees of that divi-
sion.

(2) The function of reviewing reports
under paragraphs (d)(1)(111) through
(d)(1)(v1) of this section may be dele-
gated to an Associate Deputy Attorney
General. Deputy ,Associate Attorney
General, or deputy, associate, or assist-
ant head of a division, as the case may
be.

(3) The report filed by a person
nominated to a position appointment
to which requires the advice and con-
sent of the Senate shall be filed with
and reviewed by the official designat-
ed in paragraph (d)(1) of this section
as having responsibility for reviewing
reports filed by the incumbent in the
position.

(4) Each reviewing official is resPon
sible for ensuring that reports re-
quired to be filed with him are filed in
a complete and timely manner.

(e) Review procedure. (1) Each re-
viewing official shall endeavor to
review each report filed with him
within 15 days of receiving it (and
shall review the report within 80 days

Title 28Judicial Administration

of receipt) to determine whether, on
the basis of information contained in
the report. the reporting individual is
in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations governing conflicts of in.
terest and apparent conflicts of inter-
est.

(2) If the reviewing officiai believes
additional information Is required to
be submitted, he shall notify the Indi-
vidual and inform him of the date on
which the additional Information must
be submitted.

(3) If. on the basis of information
contained in the report, the reviewing
official is of the opinion that the re-
porting individual is in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations,
he shall sign the report and forward it
to the Assistant Attorney for Adminis-
tration. The revieWing official shall
retain a copy of the report.

(4) U. on the basis of information
contained in the report, the reviewing
official believes that the reporting in-
dividual is not in compliance with al>.
pUcable laws and regulations, he shall
notify the individual, state what reme .
dial action he believes is appropriate,
and afford the reporting individual a
reasonable opportunity to aubnilt an
oral or written response.

(5) If, alter considering the report-
ing individual's response, the review-
ing official concludes that the report-
ing individual is not in compliance
with applicable law and regulations
and that the reporting individual has
not taken adequate measures to come
into compliance, the reviewing official
shall refer the matter to the Associate
Attorney General (or if referral to the
Associate Attorney General is inappro-
priate, to the Deputy Attorney Gener-
al) with his recommendation regarding
remedial action to be taken.

(E) After such investigation as he
deems appropriate. the Associate At-
torney General shall direct remedial
action or refer the matter to the At-
torney General, Deputy Attorney
General. or Solicitor General for an-
propriate action, including possible re-
ferral to the President if the situation
involves an employee in a position ap-
pointment to which requires the
advice and consent of the Senate.
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(7) Remedial action under this sub-
section may include, but is not limited
to:

(L) Divestiture:
(ID Restitution;
(lin Establishment of a blind trust:
(1v) Request for exemption under 18

U.S.C. 208(b): or
(v) Disqualification. transfer. reas-

signment, limitation of duties, or dis-
charge.

(8) When satisfactory mea.sures have
been taken to resolve any problems
identified in the review process, the re-
viewing official or thi official ordering
remedial action shall sign the report
with such notations and comments as
may be appropriate.

(f) Pub tic availability of report. (1)
The Assistant Attorney General for
Administration shall provide for the
inspection of a report by. or the fur-
nishing of a copy of a report to, any
person upon request within 15 days
after the report is filed with the ap-
propriate reviewing official.

(2) U the Assistant Attorney Gener-
al for Administration has not yet re-
ceived the report, signed by the re-
viewing official, which a member of
the public itos requested to inspect or
copy, the Assistant Attorney General
for Administration shall request the
reviewing official to ensure that the
report is immediately made available
for inspection or copying.
(Order No. 832-79. 44 PR 29891, May 23.
1979. as amended by Order No, 1013-83, 48
PR 23184. May 24.19831

APPENDIXCODE OF ETHICS FOR
GOVERNMMNT SERVICE

(H. Con. R. No. 173. 85th Cong.]
Resolved by the House of Representatives

(the Senate concurring). That it is the sense
of the Congress that the following Code of
Ethics should be adhered to* by all Govern-
rnent employees, including officeholders:

Any person in Government service should:
1. Put loyalty to the highest moral princi-

ples and to country above loyalty W per-
son& party. or Government department.

2. Uphold the Constitution. law& and legal
regulations of the United States and of all
governments therein and never be a Party
to their evasion.

3. Give a full day's labor for a full day's
Pay: giving to the performance of his duties
his earnest effort and best thought.

Part 45, Appendix

4. Seek to find and employ more efficient
and economical ways of getting tasks accom.
plished.

5. Never discriminate unfairly by the dis-
pensing of specie favors or privileges to
anyone, whether for remuneration or not:
and never accept, for himself or his family.
favors or benetlts under circumstances
which might be construed by reasonable
persons as influencing the performance of
his governmental duties.

8. Make no private promises of any kind
binding upon the duties of office, since a
Government employee has no Private word
which can be binding on public duty.

7..Engage in no business with the Govern-
ment. either directly or indirectly, which Ls
inconsistent with the conscientious perform-
ance of hls governmental duties.

8. Never use any information coming to
him confidentially in the performance of
governmental duties as a means for making
private profit.

9. Expose corruption whenever discovered.
10. Uphold these principles, ever conscious

that publlc office is a public trust. Passed
July 11, 1958.

AmstaxMswoitanntrat RX nix Crorrucr
or Iirrtazsr Paco/mom or Pus. L. 87-849,
78 STAT. 11,19. APPROVED OCTOBER 23, 1982

urraopocrion
Public Law 87-849, which came into force

January 21. 1983, affected seven statutes
which applied W officers and employees of
the Government and were generally spoken
of as the "conflict of interest" law& These
included six sections of the criminal code, 18
U.S.C. 218, 281, 283, 284. 434. and 1914. and
a statute containing no penalties. section
190 of the Revised Statutes (5 U.S.C. 99).
Pub. L. 87449 (sometimes referred W here-
inafter as "the Act") repealed section 190
and one of the criminal statutes. 18 u.s.c.
218, without replacing them. In addition it

'Section 190 of the Revised Statutes (5
U.S.C. 99). which was repealed by section 3
of Pub. L. 87-849, applied to a former officer
or employee of the Government who had
served in a department of the executive
branch. It prohibited him, for a period of
two years after his emploYment had ceased.
from representing anyone in the prosecu-
tion of a claim against the United States
which was pending in that or any other ex-
ecutive department during his period of em-
ployment. The subject of postemployment
activities of former Government officers
and employees was also dealt with in an.
other statute which was repealed. 18 17.2.C.
284. Pub. L. 87-849 covens the subject in a

Continued
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repealed and supplanted the other five
criminal stslutes. It Is the purpose of this
memorandum to summarize the new law
and to describe the principal differences be-
tween it and tr.e legislation It has replaced.

The Act accomplished its revisions by en-
acting new sections 203. 205. 207. 208. and
209 of Title 18 of the United States Code

providing that theY supplant the above-
:motioned sections 281. 283. 284. 434 and
1914 of Title 18 respectively.' It will be con-
venient., therefore. after summarizing the
principal provisions of the new sactions. to
examine each section separately, comparing
it with its precursor before passing to the
next. First of all, however. it Is necessary to
deacribe the background and provisions of
the new 18 U.S.C. 2021a). which has no
counterPart among the statutes formerly in
effect.

SPRCIAL OOVERNIIINY IDEPLOTEISNEW I
U.S.C. 203(a)

In the main the prior conflict of interest
laws Imposed the same restrictions on indi-
viduals who serve the Government intermit-
tently or for a short period of time as on
those who serve full-time. The consequences
of this generalized treatment were pointed
out in the following paragraph of the
Senate Judiciary Committee report on the
bill which became Pub. L. 87-849: '

In considering the application of present
la:z in relation to the Government's utiliza-
tion of temporary or intermittent consult-
ants and advisers, it must be emphasized
that most of the existing conflict-of-interest
statutes were enacted In the 19th century
that is, at a time when persona outside the
Government rarely served it in this way.
The laws were therefore directed at activi-
ties of regular Government employees, and
their present impact on the occasionally
needed expertsthose whose main work is
performed outside the GovernmentIs

single section enacted aa the new 18 U.S.C.
207.

18 U.S.C. 218, which was repeaied by sec-
tion 1(c) of Pub. L. 87-849, prohibited the
PaYment to or acceptance by a Member of
Congress or officer or employee of the Gov-
ernment of any money or thing of value for
giving or procuring a Govemmeot contract.
Since this offense Is within the scOpe of the
newly enacted 18 U.S.C. 201 and 18 U.S.C.
203, relating to bribery and conflicts of in-
terest respectively. section 218 is no longer
necessary.

'See section 2 of Pub. L. 87-849. 18 U.S.C.
281 and 18 U.S.C. 283 were not completely
set aside by section 2 but remain in effect to
the extent that they apply to retired offi-
cers of the Armed Forces (see "Retired Offi-
cers of the Armed Forces." infra).

'S. Rept. 2213, 87th Cong.. 2d sess.. p. 8.
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unduly severe. This harsh impact consti-
tutes an appreciable deterrent to the Gov-
ernment's ubtalning needed parttime serv-
ices.

The recruiting problem noted by the Com.
mime generated a major part of the Wipe.
Ws tor the enactment of Pub. I... 87-849. The
Act dealt with the problem by creating a
category of Government employees termed
"special Government employees" and by ex-
cepting persons in this category from cer-
tain of the prohibitions imposed on ordi.
nary employees. The new 18 U.S.C. 202(a)
defines the term "special Government em-
ployee" to include, among others, officers
and employees of the departments and
agencies who are appointed or employed to
serve, with or without compensation, for not
more than 130 days during any period of
385 consecutive days either on a full-time or
intermittent basis.

SIIIISIABLY Or MCC SLAIN CONTLICI Or 1117TRIST
PROVISIONS OF PUB. L. 87-040

A regular officer or employee of the Gov-
ernmentthat Ls. one appointed or em-
ployed to serve more than 130 days in any
Period of 365 daysis in general subject to
the following major prohibitions (the cita-
tions are to the new sections of Title 18):

1. He may not, except in the discharge of
his official duties, represent anyone els+
before a court or Government agency In a
matter in which the United States is a Party
or has an interest. This prohibition applies
both to paid and unpaid representation of
another (18 U.S.C. 203 and 205).

2. He may not participate in his govern-
mental capacity in any matter in which he.
his spouse, minor child, outaide business as-
sociate or person with whom he is negotiat-
ing for employment has a financial interest
(18 U.S.0 208).

3. He may not, after his Government em-
ployment has ended, represent anyone
other than the United States In connection
with a matter in which the United States Is
a party or has an Interest and in which he
Participated personally and substantially
for the Government (18 U.S.C. 207(a)).

4. He may not, for 1 year after his Govern-
ment employment has ended, represent
anyone other than the United States In con-
nection with a matter in which the United
States Is a party or has an interest and
which was within the boundaries of his offi.
dal responsibility' during the last year of

The term "official responsibility" la de-
fined by the new 18 U.S.C. 202(b) to mean
"the direct administrative or oPeratIng au.
thority, whether intermediate or final, and
either exercisable alone or with others, and
either personally or through subordinates.
to approve, disapprove, or otherwise direct
Government action."
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his Government service (18 U.S.C. 207(b)).
This temporary restraint of course gives
way to the permanent restraint described in
paragraph 3 if the matter is one in which he
participated personally andsubstantially.

5, lie may not receive any salary, or sup-
plementation of his Government salarY,
from a private source as compensation for
his services to the Government (18 U.S.C.
209).

A special Government employee is In gen.
eral subject only to the following major pro-
hibitions:

1. (a) lie may not, except in the discharge
of his official duties, represent anyone else
before court or Government, agency in a
matter in which the United States is a Party
or has an interest and in which he has at
any time participated personally and sub-
stantially for the Government (18 U.S.C.
293 and 205).

(13) He may not, except in the discharge of
his official duties, represent anyone else tn a
matter pending before the agency he serves
unless he has served there no more than 80
days during the past 365 (18 U.S.C. 203 and
205). He Is bound by this restraint despite
the fact that the matter is not one in which
he has ever participated personally and sub-
stantially.

The restrictions described in subpara-
graphs (a) and (b) apply to both paid and
unpaid representation of another. These re-
strictions in combination are, of course, lesa
extensive than the one described in the cot.
responding paragraph 1 in the list set forth
above with regard to regular employees. .

2. He may not participate in his govern-
mental capacity in any matter in which he.
his spouse, minor child, outside busbies, es-
sociate or person with whom he Is negotiat-
ing for employment has a financial interest
(18 U.S.C. 208).

3. He may not, after his Government em-
PloYrnent has ended, represent anyone
other than the United States in connection
with a matter in which the United States is
a Party or bas an interest and in which he
Participated PeraonallY and substantially
for the Government (18 U.S.C. 207(a)).

4. He may not. for 1 year after his Govern-
ment employment has ended, represent
anyone other than the United States in con.
nection with a matter in which the United
States is a party or has an interest and
which was within the boundaries of his offi-
cial responsibility during the last year of his
Government Service (18 U.S.C. 207(b)). This
temporary restraint of course gives way to
the permanent restriction described In para.
graph 3 if the matter is one in which he par.
ticipated personally and substantially.

It will be seen that paragraphs 2. 3 and 4
for special Government employees are the
same as the corresponding paragraphs for
for regular employees. Paragraph 5 for the
latter, describing the bar against the receipt

33-089 0-84--fr
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of salary for Government work from a pri.
vate source does not apply to special Gov .
ernment employees.

As it appears below, there are a number of
exceptions to the prohibitions summarized
in the two lists.

COMPARISON Or ow AND NEW CON1LICT or IN
TIDIEST SECTIONS or trrtx I B. UNITED STATES
CODE

New 18 U.S.C. 203. Subsection (a) of this
section in general prohibits a Member of
Congress and an officer or employee of the
United States in any branch or agency of
the Government from soliciting or receiving
compensation for services rendered on
behalf of another person before a Govern.
ment department or agency in relation to
any particular matter in which the United
States Ls a party or has a direct and substan-
tial interest. The subsection does not pre.
dude compensation for services rendered on
behalf of another in court.

Subsection (a) is essentially a rewrite of
the repealed Portion of 18 U.S.C. 281. How.
ever, subsections (b) and (c) have no coun-
terparts in the previous statutes.

Subsection (b) makes it unlawful for
anyone to offer or pay compensation the so-
licitation or receipt of which is barred by
subaection (a).

Subsection (c) narrows the application of
subsection (a) in the case of a person serv-
ing as a special Government employee to
two, and only two. situations. First. subsec-
tion (c) bars him from rendering services
before the Government on behalf of others.
for compensation, in relation to a matter in-
volving a staecillc party or parties in which
he has participated personally and substan-
tially in the courae of his Government
duties. And second. It bars him from such
activities in relation to a matter involving a
specific party or Parties, even though he has
not participated in the matter Personally
and substantially, if it is pending in his de-
partrnent or agency and he has served
therein more than 60 days In the Mimed'.
ately preceding period of a year.

New 18 U.S.0 205. This section contains
two major prohibitions. The first prevents
an officer or employee of the United States
in any branch or agency of the Government
from acting as agent or attorney for pros-
ecuting any claim against tte United States.
including a claim in court, whether for corn.
pensation or not. It also prevents hlm from
receiving a Fractal% or a share or interest in
any such claim, for assistance in the Pros-
ecution thereof. This portion of section 205
ls similar to the repealed portion of 18
U.S.C. 283. which dealt only with claims
against the United States, but it omita a bar
contained in the latterLe.. a bar against
rendering uncompensated aid or assistance
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in the prosecution or support a a Claim
against the United States.

The second main prohibition of section
205 is concerned with more than claims. It
precludes an officer or employee of the Gov-
e-runent from acting as agent or attorney
for anyone else before a department, agency
or court in connection with any particular
matter In which the United States is a party
or has a direct and substantial interest

Section 205 provides for the same limited
*Pollution to a special Government em-
ployee as section 203. In short, It precludes
him from acting as agent or attorney only
(1) in a matter involving & specific party or
parties in which he has participated person-
ally and substantially in his governmental
capacity, and (2) in a matter Involving a sot,
MSc party or parties which is before his de-
partm(nt or agency, if he has served therein
more than GO days In the year past.

Since new sections 203 and 205 extend to
activities In the same range of matters, they
overlap to a greater extent than did their
predecessor sections 281 and 283. The fol-
lowing are the few Important differences be.
tween sections 203 and 203:

1. Section 23 applies to Members of Con-
gress as well as officers and employees of
the Government: section 205 applies only to
the latter.

2. Section 203 bars services rendered fer
compensation solicited or received, but not
thos" rendered without such compensation:
section 205 bars both kinds of services.

3. Section 203 bars services rendered
before the departments and agencies but
not services rendered in court; section 205
bars both.

It will be seen that while section 203 is
controlling as to Members of Comets, for
all Practical PUrPoses section 205 completely
overshadows section 203 in respect of offi-
cers and employees of the Government.

Section 205 permits it Government officer
or employee to reprksent another parson,
without compenation, in e disciplinary, loy-
alty or other personnel nutter. Another
provision declares that the section Coes pot
prevent an officer or employee from giving
testimony under oath or maldnz statements
required to be made under penalty for per-
jury or contempt.*

*These two provisions of section 205 refer
to an "officer or employee" and not. as do
certain of the other provisions of the Act, to
an "officer or employee, Including a special
Government employee." However. It Is Plain
from the definition in section 202(a) that a
special Government employee is embraced
within the comprehensive term "officer or
employee." There would seem to be little
doubt. therefore, that the Instance provi-
sions of section 205 apply ta sPecial Govern-
ment employees even in the absence of an
explicit reference to them.
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Section 205 also authorizes a limited
waiver of its restrictions and those of sec.
don 203 for the benefit of an officer or em-
ployee, including a special Government em-
ployee, who represents hls own parents,
spouse or child, or person or estate he serves
as a fiduciary. The waiver Is available to the
officer or employee, whether acting for any
such person with or without compensation,
but only If approved by the official making
aPPointments to hls portion. And in no
event does the waiver extend to his repre-
sentation of any such person in matters In
which he has participated personally and
substantially or which, even in the absence
of such participation, are the subject of his
official responsibility.

Finally. section 205 gives the head of a de-
Partment or agency the power, notwith-
standing any applicable restrictions in its
provisions or those of section 203, to allow a
special Government emloyee to represent
his regular employer or other outside orga-
nization In the performance of work under a
Government grant or contract. However,
this action is open to the department or
agency head only upon his certification,
published In the Fume Storm& that the
netional Interest requires it.

New 18 U.S.C. 207. Subsections (a) and (b)
of Oil& sectlon contain postemployment pro-
hibitions applicable to persons who have
enled senice as officers or employees of the
executive branch, the independent agencies
or the District of Columbia.* The prohibi-
tions fur persons who have served as special
Government employees are the same u for
persons who 'have performed regular duties.

The restraint of subsection (a) is against a
former officer or employee's acting as agent
or attornr; for anyone other than the

F ..tes In connection with certain
shether pending In the courts or

The matters are those involving
)arty or pasties in which the

tes is one of the parties or has a
substantial interest and in which

th7 et,r....,r officer or employee participated
as,d 'substantially while holding a ,

Guvernme.:,. Position.
Subsection (b) sets forth a. 1-year postem-

ployment prohibition in respect of those
matters which were within the area of off f-
alai responsibility of a former officer or em-

*The prohibitions of the two subsections
apply ta persons ending service In these
areas whether they leave the Government
entirely or move to the legislative or judicial
branch. As a practical matter, however, the
prohibitions would rarely be significant in
the latter situation because officers and em-
ployees of the legislative and judicial
branches are covered by sections 203 and
205.
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ployee at any time during the last year of
his service but which do not come within
subsection (a) beezuse he did not participate
In 'them Decal:ally and substantially. More
particularly, the prohibition of subsection
(b) prevents his per...1ne1 appearance In such
matters before a rourt or a department or
agency of the Government as agent or at.
torney for anyone other than the United
States.' Where, in the year prior Lo the end
of his service, a former officer or employee
has changed um of responsibility by
transferring from one agency to another.
the period of his postemployment ineligibil-
ity as to matters in a particular area ends 1
year after his responsibility for that area
ends. For example. if an individual transfers
from a supervisory position In the Internal
Revenue Service to supervi:ory position In
the Post Office Department au) leaves that
department for private employment 9
months later, he will be free of the restric.
lion of subsection (b) in 3 months Insofar as
Internal Revenue matters are concerned. He
will of course be bound by it for a year in re-
spect of Post Office Department matters.

The proviso following subsections (a) and
(b) authorizes an agency head, notwith-
standing anything to the contrary in their
provisions, to permit a former officer or em-
ployee with outstanding scientific qualifica-
tions to act as attorney or agent or appear
personally before the areay for another in
a matter In a scientific field. This authority
may be exercised by the agency head upon a
"national interest" certification publlahed
in the PIDELAS. Rama=

Subsections (a) and (b) describe the activi-
ties they forbid as being in connection with
"Particular material involving a specific
party or parties" in which the former offi-
cer or employee had participated. The
quoted language does not include general
rulemaking, the formulation of general
policy or standards, or other similar mat-
ters. Thus, put participation In or official
responsibillt 're a matter of this kind on
behalf of ti "ernment does not tile:mall-

'Neither t4. . ^03 nor section 205 pre-
vents a . ivernrnent employee.
during his . Affiliation with the
Government, fr presenting another
Person before the Government In a particu-
lar matter only because it ls within his offi-
cial responsibility. Therefore the Inclusion
of a former special Government employee
within the 1-year Postempioyment ban of
subsection (b) may subject him to a tempo-
rary restraint from which he was free prior
to the end of his Government service. How-
ever. 'since special Government employees
usually do not have "official responsibility."
ss that term ls defined in section 202(b).
their Inclusion within the 1-year 'ban will
not have a widespread effect.
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fy a former employee from representing an-
other person in a proceeding which is gov-
erned by the rule or other result of such
matter.

Subsection (a) bars permanently a greater
riety of actions than subsection (b) bars

temporarily. The conduct made unlawful by
the former is any action as apent or atter.
no, while that made unlawful by the latter
Is a personal appearance as apent or alter.
ney. However, neither subsection precludes
postemployment activities which may fairly
be characterized as no more than aiding or
assisting another. An Individual who has
left an agency to accept private employment
may, for example, immediately perform
technical work In his company's plant in re-
lation to a contract for which he had offi-
cial responsibilltyor, for that matter, in re-
lation to one he helped the agency negoti-
ate. On the other hand. he Is forbidden for
a year, in the first case to appear personally
before the agency aa the agent or attorney
of his company in connection with a dispute
over the terms of the contract. And he may
at no time appear personally before the
agency or otherwise act as agent or attorney
for his company in such dispute if he helped
negotiate the contract.

Comparing subsection (a) with the ante-
cedent 18 U.S.C. 284 discloaes that it follows
the latter in limiting disqualification to
cases where a former officer or employee ac-
tually participated in a matter for the Gov-
ernment. However. subsection (a) covers all
matters in which the United States is
party or has a direct and substantial inter-
est and not merely the "claims against the
United States" covered by 18 U.S.C. 284.
Subsection (a) also goes further than the
latter in imposing a lifetime instead of a 2-
year bar. Subsection (b) has no parallel in
18 TLS.C. 284 or any other provision of the
former conflict in Interest statutes.

It will be seen that aUbsections (a) and (b)
In combination are less restrictive in aome
respects, and more restrictive in others.
than the combination of the prior 18 U.S.C.
284 and 3 II.S.C. 99. Thus. former officers or
employees who were outside the Govern-
ment when the Act came Into force on Jam-

'Subsection (a). as it first appeared In
H.R. 8140. the bill which became Pub. L. 137-

. 49. made it unlawful for a former officer or
employee to act as agent or attorney for, or
aid or =alai, anyone In a matter in which
he had participated. The HOuss JudiciarY
Committee struck the underlined words,
and the bill became law without them. It
should be noted also that the repealed pro-
visions of 18 U.S.C. 283 made the distinction
between one's acting as agent or attorney
for another and his aiding or assisting an-
other.
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ary 21. 1983, will in certain situations be en
abled to carry on activitim before the Gov.
ernment which were previously barred. For
example the repeal of 5 U.S.C. 99 permits an
attorney who left an executive department
for private practice a year before to take
certain cases against the Government imme
diately which would be subject to the bar of
5 U.S.C. 99 for another year. On the other
hand, former officers or employees became
precluded on and after January 21. 1983.
from engaging or continuing to engage in
certain activities which were permissible
until that date. This result follows from the
replacement of the 2year bar of 18 U.S.C.
284 with the lifetime bar of subsection (a) in
comparable situations, from the increase in
the variety of matters covered by subsection
(a) as compared with 18 U.S.C. 284 and from
the Introduction of the 1.year bar of subsect
Lion (b).

3ubsection (c) of section 207 pertains to
an Individual outside the Government who
is in a business or professional partnership
with someone serving In the executive
branch, an independent agency or the Dis-
trict of Columbia. The subsection prevents
such Individual from acting as attorney or
agent for anyone other than the United
States in any matters, including those In
court, In which his partner In the Govern-
mein is Participating or T1SS Participated or
which are the subject of his partner's off I.
cial resPonsibility. Although Included In a
section dealing largely with Postenillloy
meat activities, this provision is not directed
to the postemployment situation.

The paragraph at the end of section 207
siso pertains to Individuals in a partnership
but sets forth no prohibition. This Para.
graph, which Ls of Importance mainly to
lawyers in private practice, rules out the
posalbUity that an individual will be deemed
subject to section 293. 295. 207(a) or 207(b)
solely because he has a partner who serves
or has served In the Government either as a
regular or a special Government employee.

New 18 U.S.C. 208. This section forbids
certain actions by an officer or employee of
the Government In his role aa a servant or
representative of the Government. Its
thrust ls therefore to be distinguished from
that of sections 203 and 295 which forbid
certain actions in his capacity as a repre-
sentative of persons outside the Govern-
ment.

Subaection (a) In substance requires an of.
neer or employee of the executive branch.
an Independent agency or the District of
Columbia, including a special Government
employee, to refrain from participating as
such in any matter In which, to his knowl-
edge, he. his spouse, minor child or partner
has financial Interest. He must also
remove himself from a matter in which a
business or nonprofit organization with
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which he is connected or is seeking employ.
me nt has a financial interest.

Subsection (b) Permits the agency of an
officer or employee to grant him SR ad hoc
exemption from sut..tection (al If the outside
financial interest in a matter Is deemed not
substantial enough to have an effect on the
integrity of his services. Financial interests
of this kind may alto be made nondisquall.
tying by a general regulation published in
the Flamm RoUSTRR.

Section 208 la similar in purpose to the
former 18 U.S.C. 434 but prohibits a greater
variety of conduct than the "transaction of
business with (al business entity" to
which L,e prohibition of section 434 was
limited. In addition, the provision in section
208 including the interests of it spouse and
others is new, la in the provisions authorix.
Ins exemptions for Insignificant Interests,

New Id U.S.C. :o9. Subsection (a) prevents
an officer or employee of the executive
branch, an independent agency or the Dis-
trict of Columbia from receiving, and
anyone from paylrg him, any salarY or sup-
plementation of salary from a private
source as componsation for his services to
the Government. This provision uses much
of the language of the former 18 U.S.C. 1914
and does not vary from that statute in sub
stance. The remainder of section 209 is new.

Subsection (b) specifically authorizom an
officer or employee covered by subsection
(I) to continue his participation in a bona
fide pension plan or other employee welfare
or benefit plan maintained by a former em-
ployer.

Subsection (c) provides that section 209
does not apply to a special Government em-
ploYee or to anyone serving the Govern.
ment without compensation, whether or not
he is a special Government employee.

Subsection (d) provides that the section
does not prohibit the payment or accept-
ance of contributions, awards or other ex.
penses under the terms of the Government
Employees Training Act (72 Stat. 327, 5
U.S.C. 2301-2319).

STATUTORY 10:130110101 most COX/TACT 0/
LITTSREST LAWS

Congress has In the pest enacted statutes
exempting persons In certain positionsusu.
ally advisory in naturefrom the provisions
of some or all of the former conflict of in.
terest laws. Section 2 of the Act grants cor-
responding exemptions from the new laws
with respect to legislative and judicial posi-
tions carrying such past exemptions. Hawn,
er, section 2 excludes positions in the execu
tive branch, an independent agency and the
District of Columbia from this grant. Aa a
consequence, all statutory exemptions for
persons serving In these sector/ of the Gov.
eminent ended on January 21.1983.
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Chapter I-Department of Justice

itrilliED MITERS or Tin ARMED roRcEs
public L.aw 87-849 enacted a new 18 U.S.C.

^06 which provides in general that the new
;ect:ons 203 and 205. replacing 18 U.S.C. 251
and 281. do not apPly to retired officers of
the armed forces and other uniformed serv-
ices. However. 18 U.S.C. 281 and 253 contain
special restrictions applicable to ret(red offi-
cers of the armed forces whicl. en: left in
force by the partial repealer at those stat-
utes set forth in section 2 of the Act.
The former 18 U.S.C. 284. which con-

tamed a 2-year disqualification against pos-
iemployment activities in connection with
claims against the United States. applied by
its terms to Persons who had served as com-
missioned officers Ind whose active service
had ceased either bY reason of retirement or
complete separation. Its replacement. the
broader 18 U.S.C. 207. also applies to per-
sons In those circurastances. Section 207.
therefore applies to retired officers of the
armed forces and overlaps the continuing
provisions of 18 U.S.C. 281 and 283 applica-
ble to such officers although to a different
extent than did 18 U.S.C. 284.

TolairitoTR.ARsAcriotis re noLATIon or Tut
weiemer or ENTRUSTS oR RRIBERT LAWS

Public Law 87-849 enacted a new section.
18 U.S.C. 218. which did not supplant a pre-
existing section of the criminal code. How-
ever, it was modeled on the last sentence of
the former 18 U.S.C. 216 authorizing LW.;
President to declare a Government contract
void whidt was entered into in violation of
that section. It will be recalled that section
218 was one of the two statutes repealed
without replacement.

The new 18 U.S.C. 218 grants the Presi-
dent and under presidential regulations, an
agency head the Power to void and rescind
any t&CtiOn or matter in relation to
which ha.s been a "final conviction"
for a violation of the confltct of interest or
bribery laws. The section also authorizes
the Government's recovery, in addition to
any Permit), prescribed by law or in a con-
tract. of the amount expended or thing
transferred on be:1AR of t,he Government.

Section 218 Specifically provides that the
powers lta grants are "in addition to any
other rernedin provided by law." According-
ly, It would not seem to override the deci-
sion in United States v. Mississippi VJfetj
Generating Co., 384 U.S. 520 11961/ a case
in which there was no -final conVictiOn.-

arstao9RAPIrr

Set forth below are the citatIona to the
legislative history of Public Law 87-849 end
a list of recent material which la pertinent
to a study of the Act. The listed 1080 report
of the Association of the Bar of the City of
New York la particularly valuable. For a
comprehensive bibliography of earlier mate-

64-942 (168)

P.Sre 45, AppendiA

dal relating to the conflict of Interest laws.
see 13 Record cf the Association of the Bar
of the City of New York 323 (May 1958).

LEctsLATIVE litsTORT or Pus. 1.. 87-849 (H.R.
8140. D7rn Conc.)

1. Hearings of June 1 and 2. 1961. before
the Antitrust Subcommittee (Subcommittee
No. 5) of the House Judiciary Committee.
87th Cong.. 1st sem.. ser. 3. on federal Con-
flict of Interest Leos lotion.

2. H. Rept. 748. 87th Cong.. 1st seas.
3. 107 Cong. Rec. 14794.
4. Hearing of June 21.. 1962. before the

Senate Judiciary Committee. 87th Cong.. 2c1
seat. on Conflict of Interest.

5. S. Rept. 2213. 87th Cong.. 2d sess.
6. 108 Cong. Rec. 20805 and 21130 (daily

ed.. October 3 and 4. 1962).

Omni MATERIAL

1. President's special megaige to Congress.
April 27. 1981. and attached draft bill. 107
Cong. Rec. 6835.

2. President's Memorandum of February
9. 1962. to the heads of executive deprW.-
meats and agencies entitled Preventi-7
Conflicts of Interest en the Part of Advir.-s
and Consultants to the Government 27 FR
1341.

3. 42 Op. A.G. No. 8. January 31. 1082.
4. Memorandum of December 10. 1958. fur

the Attorney General from the Office of
Legal Counsel re conflict of interest stat-
utes. Hearings before the Antitrust Subcom-
mittee (Subcommittee No. 5) of House Judi-
ciary Committee. 88th Cong.. 2d seas.. ser.
17. pt. 2, p. 619.

5. Staff report of Antitrust Subcommittee
(Subcommittee No. 5) of House Judiciary
Committee. 85th Cong.. 2d seas.. Federal
Conflict of Interest Legislation (Comm.
P:int 1958),

8. Report of the Asaociation of the Su of
the city of New York. Conflict nf Interest
and Federal Service (Harvard Press
1980).

L28 FR 985, Feb. 1. 19831 .

PART 47-RIGHT TO FINANCIAL
PRIVACY ACT

Sec.
47.1 Definitions.
47.2 Purpose.
47.3 Authorization.
47.4 Written reqiest.
47.5 Certification.

AurttetaITT: 301: 28 U.S.C. 509.
510; section ^.08 of the Right to Financial
Privacy Act of 1978. 12 U.S.C. 3408.

Sorilicat Order No. 822-79. 44 PR 1
mar. 13. 1979. unless otherwise no, 4
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